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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust
ple is to maximise shareholders’ total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internaticnally and also in

investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

IR Property Investment Trust ple (tne Company' or tre
Trust) was formedn 1905 and has been a dedicated
property iInvestar sirce 1682 Tne Company 1S an
Investment Trust and 1ts shares are premium histed on
the London Stock Excharge.

Benchmark
The benckmark 1s the FTSE ERPRASNARE'T Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterlirg

Investment policy

The Company seeks to achieve its objective by
Imvesting 1IN shares and secunties of proparty
companies and property related businesses on an
international basis, althougn, with a pan-Europear
benchmark, the majorty of the investments will be
located in that geograprical arez The Company alse
invests in irvestment property locatea in the U only

Fucther detals of the Investment Policies, the Agoetl
Allncation Gaicelines and pohcies regarairg tn= gse of
geartng are set gut in the Strategic Report o Suge 5
and the entire portfoho s shown on page 15

Investment manhager

BRI Investrmert Business Limited azts a3 tne
Comoary's alternative investnent fund managsr

1A FRAT wath po-tfolin management del=gatsd o
Thames Jiver Capital LLP (the Portfolin “arager or
tre Manager’ Marcas SPhayre-Munge as marag=n
the portfolo simce 1 Apnl 2011 anc cee~ patf o tre
=ane Managemenl team sin e 1957

SrrL BT F A T Nt 2T

independent board

Tre Directors are ali indesendent of the Manage-

and meet regularly to corsider investment strategy,

tc monitor adnerence 1o the stated objective and
Irjestmert polizies and to reviaw investmeant
performance Details of now the 3oa~d operates and
fulfils its responsitilities are set aut in the Repuort of the
Jrrettors onpages 1

Performance

Tre Firansal Hhgalights for the current year ave set ¢t
cooosite and =hstorical Peformarce can be faund on
oage 2 Key Performanee Ircicaturs are set out i tne

P

Strategic Report or pages 21 and 25

Retail investors advised by IFAs

Tre Comoany currently forcusts its affars so traf
its shares 2a~ be recommerdad by ndenesndant
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Financial highlights and performance

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021 Change

Balance Sheet

Net asset value per share 492.43p 417897p +17.8%
Shareholders’ funds (£°000) 1,562,739 1,326,433 +17 8%
Shares in 1gsue at the end of the year (m) 3174 3174 00%
Net debt'* 10.2% 16 5%

Share Price
Share price 456.50p 392 50p +16 3%
Market capitalisation £1,449m £1,246m +16 3%

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2027 Change
Revenue ' o -
Revenue earnings per share 1369 12 25p +17 8%
Dividends? N
Internim dividend per share 5.30p 520p +1 9%
Final dividend per share 9.20p G 00p +2 7%
Total dwidend per share 14 50p 14 20p +2 1%

Perform"aﬁ ce: Assets and Benchmark

Net Asset Value total returnde +21.4% +20 7%
Benchmark total return® +12.2% +159%
Share price total returns® +19.9% +28 3%

Ongoing'Charges;-{

Including performance fee +219% 140%
Excluding performance fee +0 60% 065%
Excluding performance fee and direct property cosls +0 58% 063%

Neloebl sthetoleliva de of oannotes cans inciud ng noticna exposure ta C°0s) 1ess cash as 3 prapor: on of netasser saue.
2 Dwiceras per snare are the d vicerds v respect of 17e finarcial year ended 37 Marcr 2022 An nter m Gwiderd o° 5 30c was saicer "4 2arJary 2022 Afinal
dividenaof 9 20g (2021 S 00p) w )l 2e paic or 2 AugLs! 20027 t0 s arerolcers or *rereg 8leron 24 June 2027 Tre srares woll bequeted ex-dwv cerc on
23 June2C22
The NA'Y Tota Seturn for the yesr s ca culated by re nvest ng the d v cends in“he assets o the Campary o™i the reevan ex-dwgend date. Jr.genis are Jesed
1o be rervested on the ex-aradend cate as this ‘s the protoco Jsed by the Cempany's benshrark anc ether ndices

I8}

4 The Share Prce T otal Returnis Saicu ated by re nvest ng the 2 v cends i the shares 57 the Company o~ the re evant ex-¢ v2end 2ae
. Cngo.ng Charges are caicu ares 'n accorzance w'th the 4 Cmethodoiogy. The Cngo ng Chargas rat 5s proy cet nthe Corepany s Ke,; ri‘ctmal on 2ocomen: are

calculatec ntriewththe PR Psregulation which s d'fferent o the 4,C methacoiogy.

o

o

Consicered o pe an Altenative Pefornance Meas.re as defred onpage "02

o>



Historical performance

L A Tl

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performance for

the year:

Total Return (%)

NAVA -85 215 22 4 283 22 80 155 91 115 207 21.4

Benchmark® B 89 178 149 733 54 65 1070 s6¢ 140 159 122
Share Price® 95 258 377 295 16 91 255 62 168 283 199
Shareholders’ funds

(F'm)

Total 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326 1,563

Ordinary shares 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326 1,563

sigma shares®™ 118 - S L : o B

Ordinary shares

Net revenue (pence

per share)

Farnings 707 674 809 889 836 1138 13.22 14 58 1462 1225 13.69

Lividends® 660 700 745 770 835 1050 1220 1380 1400 1420 1450

NAV per share 183.60 21525 25484 31812 33596 35247 39564 41854 35811 41797 49243

{pence)

) 15450 18630 24750 31050 29750 31450 38250 39400 31750 39250 45650

S-haré-;;r-iée (pengé)

Indices of growth
{rebased at 37 March 2012)

Share pricef! 100 121 160 201 193 204 248 255 206 254 295
Net Asset Value® 100 117 139 173 183 192 215 728 185 2728 268
Dividend Net® 100 106 113 17 127 159 185 205 212 215 218
RPI 100 103 106 10/ 108 112 116 118 122 123 134
Benchmark®™ 100 113 127 145 149 154 165 169 141 160 178

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Reporting Standards.

(AYThe NAV Total Return for each year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend cate. Dividends are
deemed Lo be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this 1s the protacol used by the Company’'s benchmark and other indices. "his 1s considered to be an Alternative
Perfarmance Measure as defined on page 102.

(B)Benchmark index compaosite ndex comprising the FTSE EPRA/NARE T Developed Eurcpe ™R ‘ndex up to March 2013, andthereafterthe FTSE EPRA/NAREIT
Developed Europe Capped Index. Source Thames River Capital

{C)The Share Price Total Return 1s calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-giv deng date

(D) The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redes'gnated as Ordinary shares on 17 Gecernber 2012

(E) Dividends per share in the year to which therr declaration relates and not the year they were paid.

(F}Share prices ondy These do not reflect dividends paig

{G)Captal onty values These do not reflect dvidends paid

{HIPrice only value of the indices set out in [B} above.

TR T A e A TN L S

vedas oibalens

SUaWBIE)S [eToueUly a0UBLIAAGS

2INSOPSIP QW4 IV pue Aressoln

WOV joa0ION

UOIBLLIOIUI IapjoyRIBYS




Chairman’s statement

In a year dominated by
volatility and powerful
global macroeconomic
and political themes, I'm
pleased to report a year
of healthy performance.
Our NAV total return for
the year was 21.4% against
a benchmark of 12.2%

David Watson
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Earmings for the year were 12 89p per share 127
nignertran tne previous year (12 25p) bt stll almest
£ behindg pre COVID-19 levels

santicipated - the Aalf Year Report, earnings
for the second hal® were lower than e tie previo.s
year This was partly necause of one-off tems in the
second half of the year to March 2027 w=izh aid »ot
recur and partly beczause of the significant changes in
dividend fimetablos seen through the year but vemicn
largely impacted tne second hal® Many companies
maved 1o maore frequent and smaller distnioutions
which reduced ircome in companson to the onor year
due simply to trming More details are set cut In tre
Manager's Report

These factors mask a positive ungerlying treno Jand,
as described above, our Manager has tocused the
portfolic on sources of sustainable income Tre
Board s therefore pleased to announce an irareass
inthe final dividend to 9.20p (202719 00g) brivging
the full year dividend 1o 14 50p, ar ircrease of just
over 2% This will require a small contnioution from
the Compary s revenue reserve We highlighted in the
ast Annual Report that we expected that ths would
De tne case and that the Board was happy 1o employ
some of the revenue reserve provicirg arefumn to
ore COV D16 income levels could be expectad 1 tre
medium term

Jur Maragens ‘esling comfctable apout the
Company's roverue outlook Oradends anacuneed
for the first quaner are show'ng ingreases ¢n the prior
year Mary of curievestes companies have medium
term debt ara~genents secd-ed when interast rates
weere at nistonc luws a-d sowill ot immediately feel
the imoact of highe inte-est rates Fotner a~ead,
this will become more of ariss.af higher rates
perast Gurownincoms lax rate will alsc imorease
fortne 2022723 fnaneial year As always, the Board
will keep an eye to the lorger term, 2.t raving built
Jp b revenue reserve Ovar many years, we feiitis
apoaronnate 1o mairtair dividend levels where we can
easily do so providec a longer term fall in irceme 1s
not expected. After the final dividend set out above,
the revenue rese-ve will be 11 27p pe- snare

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years {rebased)

. Benchmark Total Retum
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Chairman’s statement
continued

The upening gear g po3Ion was 15 5%, ard olosa:

at 10 2%, 1t Fuctuated over the vear betwean thase

evels as the geanng

oroved beref cial yet again

as actively managead O
cortfolio gives us cons'derable flexibil 1y to incre:
arn cecregse geating levels conxly ang tus bas

Sterling has traded i & ~a~9w -ange agamst
the EL-o throughout the vear ana it closes arly
fractionally stronger at the end of the year, so
currencies have not been a signi©cant factor

rthis year's results.

From the sta-ting acint of 6 1% tne ciscount, for
tre nost patt gradually ~arrowed 17 the penicd Lo

(o the bagincing of 2022 ard then traced at a sl

sremium throagh cancaty. Vi the invasion of
Uikrame and a general worsering of sertiment the
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Manager’s report

Although the economic
outlook remains unsettled,
property assets, particularly
where the income is index-
linked, should remain
relatively attractive despite
rising interest costs.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

<—J| ~2tur for tha year to trae anc of
atead of the berchmark total

o q

rAarea
refurn ot 412 2
The Sonng and Summer of 2027 saw a oenign bac<drop
uf contirang monstary poley largesse from ce~tral basie
Sraoled vt armproving cutloak for all econ Omlr‘:dﬂl—j
ts bode weall for many parta of the real estato landscan
Snare prces actoss oul Jrivere responded accordirgly
rerour NAY graw by 142 fram April to Augast ust

the surnme- holidays investors mPrEd%mg\y fretted over
the themes cf a global slowcown (braakrdown in supply
chans, COY D-19 mpactea mamfd\,lu ring capabilities

in Asiay coupled with nsing wage and ensargy costs. Al

of which heightened the nsk of stagflation. Share price
valatihity increased hugely ard we experienced 20% swings
inthe value of the berchnark between the beginning of
Septernber anc the end of hovember Sug farge swings |-
sentiment reflected the changes in expectation of central
banks behavicu- - S\mp\atermc would they turr
hawkish {ann atwhat pace: to help cuntrol these reneved
inflationary pressJres The \abt phase of the financial year
(December to March} was marked by a steady decline in
real estate equity prices as the expectation of multinle rate
rises by the US Federal Reserve and the 3ank of England
alongeide more Fawkish rhetons from the Zaropean
Central Bank waz priced in Thea last month of the financal
year was, of course overskadowed by the ternble evants
in Ukraines immediately addieg to erergy and othes raw
material inflaticn expectaticns.

What | have summansad nece s the performance of
par-European real estate equities cver the 12 months to
the enc o Mamh -atrer than underlyving prooerty valles.
Share o710es are volatile ard react Quickly to macn
driven sentiment Urcerlying real estate valuss tenc to
adjust when t~e price of caprtal cranges as copnses to
the expectatior of ‘Lture prive Lhanges Thay are alsc
anchoredd 1.0~ mane o ally beins depe-ident cnthe
expectation of looal ~=~tal growth orcortrastion Spreads
have wid=~ac and debt 1
historicatly v, ard “rocially, at tm morment, debt s sl
readily aaianle As warned i last vears Antual R2port,

if equity rrar<ets allow hetes cormpar2s 10 frane an [7ge
discounts to therimpliat gaet sal.etnen prvate veriles
{who canuperate vath rugher lererage & ~ence a loveer
cost of caoitall will take themorriate T8 ~as Seen a

key the e this year anc the Compary s perfurmanne bas
benefiied from a number of ransactions, Sxpectation of
capital groest ~ amancat pre s cen2 s it shtatioral
or retall 1 sesiors] s sk s mpu'ﬁr‘t to urderlying
pricing t-as the gyraticr o obpanhely st soare o0ees
encouragiTo G == raraachor valumes and pr sate mq'kut
optimisT o maiiss 17 mary of s s ub-markets arad this
examin=a in nore detanl iatemin toe ranor
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Manager’s report
continued

Treport‘olio positioning ~ac been neavily adjstd
I the immeciate 'post vacoing peniod {Q4 2020, 31
2027 essentially closing the underweight to Europ2an
shopping centres and renewing exposure to office
markets with snoter commute times (e a ‘osus o
the smaller cities, rot Londo- anc Panis) They ‘
review saw that orocess extendec, witk the pu'tf-f“l 9
further concentrating or captunng the impact ¢ trree
kay trends =1stly. trose sectors Tkely to exoeneLe

t~e greatest rentat growth in a -ecovering ecoromus
anvirorment such as logistics, (ncustrnal, self sto-age
ard prime office development continue to be heavily
represerted in tre portfolio Secondly, security of iIncome
Is crucial 2rivate rented residenrtial property continues

10 enjoy virtually fuil oncupancy particularly i Gerrmany
and Sweden wheare rents remain heavily regulated (and
at sub-miarket levels). The f nal theme was inflation
sroterhon ard seeling to owvir 2xphaitly imdex-i~kea,
g cuabty Income across a broac range of sectsts TS
latter theme averlans with the residential fouls gre=n ths
~igly defensive nature of tre earnings

All of these themes were crivers 0 relative
cutperformanse a{mq ide the oositive impact ¢f
rUMErcLs merger and acauisition {MEAY situations
over the year (that a“,tmty il be detatled late in the
soort)y Aowever itisimportant to clanfy that the hsted
erman residential names Nave - vath one 2xcephion
performead relatively poorly tris vear The sector o e
la tolece of MES actiiaty witn e casa fak :

Deutsinz Wonren oy Voo anc tis was extan
regraan 1 n e Hal® Yaar 2eport Vie nase remairs
tooacent-al view that Be-li- reside-tial orooerty w4

hoertines o eutperiorm tne rest of German,
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corre mens

- 1ht locatans offeing stats of the art amenites

215 alraady a clear 2olasaton im fuwaur of CB2
dl pLSInass distrzts) over cecentralised o

s uurt a” markets Cantra \ Yans sy take us

vear or year adropir immedciate s.poly of 17

L Over

FO20 vtk vacarcy at 24 dreang rents upowhilar tre
VWiestern Crescert and La Defense saw renis Sl ac

mrentives inTreass Lotdon experienced a very similar
piIcture vt t~e Weast znd, Midiow» and the Uity seaing
Qo 2027 take up 0f 2 dm sqft a7 year guarterly ~igh
The totat take up for 2021 was 10m so . 657, ahead of
2020 Docklanzs a~c r*tmf suburoa~ markets did not
exoerience this level ¢f improvirg statisbcs nvestors
renan bullist Knight =rank £ KF ) reperted a fourfold
morzase a1 2022 onthe correspording quarter of
2027 with £5 8En of transactiors (varsus £1 2on;

Savills or2cuced g aetaled resaqa e nate 1~ Naon 20725,
pradict’ ng reducticrs r office apane jvrnd dacross all
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acruss both shopomg centres and high streets for botp
DHTIR ang seconaary assets This may well apoear
opttistic as itis nased or low volumes but the aLmoer
ot deals is increasing and we are confident of much
higher trarsaction volemes in 2022 thar 2027

Tne one area of real valuation recovesy has been retall
warehousing The last year has seen an extrac ciranly
comoelitive lardscape in this sub-sectar wat” yielos
compressing over 1% at tne onme end and ever mo-e
amongst secondary assets What is understardanle s
that where terant demand/affordability bas oeen proven
then investors are happy te own Asretaillirg evolves into a
searmless chicks and bricks” omnichannal experiercs, retail
parks are a key part of the value chain for the retaillers £
tre retailer can offer a fast and efficient ‘click and collact’
service which tne customer 15 happy to use, then the sales
margins f-om seling online improve materially itis te
Tast mile” aelivary which is 50 cost inefficient.

The cutlook for large, regioral shopping centres remainms
urcertain The vast majonty are too big for ther marketin
anomnicnannel world Jwners are see<ing tu demchsh
part or repurpase to nen-tradihonal ases, In many cases
trying Lo redefine themselves ag a community hub as
OppOsSea to just a covered refailing arena The strategy
feels correct but the costs of conversion anc the inability
of new users ta pay anytung li<e the previous rents

will lead to subdued returns However, there has ceen
some price discavery wth high profile exarmrples such

as Hammersor's sale of Silverburn i Glasgow and a
wide -ange of smaller transactions across Furope from

Eurcoommercial, Kleoerre gnd Unibanl providing avigence

tnat bayers oelieve that rents are statihzing

(121 was yet anotrer record year In terms of take up, sapital
m\ue growth and, allimoortantly, further snnn<age 1 e
amuount of vacancy The UK rmarket saw tace up exnesc 50
Tulhion sa ft and vacancy s now below 3% a0ross tre wnols
ange 0 big box unit sizes Li<e for ke =ntal grog:th for
Seqrovs portfolio was i excess 0f 5% and s bas 7 vean
yields nationwade down 75 100 DL}S leacimg to hugs capiral
growth Yet urbar logistis has Deen even horter, with
investars focused on the supoly inefasticity of infill rarkets.
Greater London pnme i~duatnal fransactional eaien
rovs regularly sees equivalent yields (e boased off rar<at
rents wrich ae highar thar passing rents) o less thaa 370
s price mflation has baer fuefled by evicdance of ancther
year of rental growth excesning 10% Segro rﬁpwrtw‘ i rental

growth aueraging 147 5 ints UK portfelio dur-
Saalls ecumate that in—er Londor rents ha 2 min

the last year alone

Um”d\ rmlrr:y sacton vol.mes d£157Erin
2021, 113% groveth on 2020 anc l" grovl o the fiye
wee st losety
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ﬁ
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wittr the fundarmentals, tner= rmay well be canital seeking
realoymert et out 2us conmdaeralion Howeasern 1o new
the dernand. suocly imbalance at tre occepier leveh s cnving
rental growwth 11e entire U< iroustral market recormed g
dropir asalable space to 13 Tmillior sq ft, a contraction of
et over the year No wender rents are nsirg

U the Contment we nave alse seen market rental growte
cdtatp ansualindexation [s s set to cortin.e even witn
the print~g of record high annualised mfiation of 5.1 %,
Sagre g traonly Flly pan--urooean lste olayer and they
reported 4 1% ke for like rental growth across Contirental
Eurcpe for 2021 Ve rerrain confident that in many xay
Tiar<ets this level of growth vall pe exneeded 1n 2022 Across
Cortirental Europe, online sales penct-atior nows averages
15-18% stll a long way benind the UK at ¢ 28% Shortenimy
sLpply chaing ana resronng nas criven demand in f‘“éth—'r
markets such as Polard Saqlls Luropean Logisties VEY
20271 snowed trat AG Y of all occupers canvassed exoect=d
o ncrease their warehouse sauirernants cver the next year

Avallanitity continues to sang, with vacanny dowr ffom
S51°tn3 f"‘;, with record low levels in D bI\" {11k}, the
Netrerlands (3 350 Czeoh Reguohc 11 7%} and ta<e up
levels well ahea(* of decade averages vnth Madrid {(+9 7.
Polaad (+13%) ana the Netherlands (+10%) For tre best
aspase, enrs are responding very .aoldly a~dwe exnect
awverage rental growtr (o exceaec 5% across tre Sortinent
awever 1 early May this year (post the yaar end)
Amazon arounced 8 dramatic passe inits exoansior
arogramime A ilst we beligve mar trase nammerts
were facusec oo thar domieshc US markel, 115 ds caudsen
revaperatiars across all [ngistisanommern.e real estats
mar<ets Major owrers ard developers such as Segro and
Triteix pomt to full oraerboc-<s ard strong tansactiona!
eviderce, furward looking e J\?) markets tao< fright
: of trese two rames are down 22% and 177,
slencar yesar bt aste

Fris 3e0tor emalin; ":['(_:'*[J store of v ale Inthe
Shoy T terrry apital /,]| 5’1:’;u!d b imosa
INterest raie exoectaticrs =or SRS Iprvate e H\ R
this Lroertanty talo~g vath tne broacear gec-pulitieal
backd-opr ras occoably ercouraged wolls o2 buyers (o
roTMaT rest e 1N theE nesr 120 Uoeuaaney tates rernar
at reLord |2 sels aoross but" opan-markst rertal markets
(1< Firla-dy and req slated rartal markets G2 mary ao
~ e latter goo Lo T e Talal|
sglabim rns Ao

sted By rising

Saden: fLOMpanies

Gl markat ronta io g formanihity

el I

ST RN R I B TP LS Lo L A A De [

Qﬁ”[ 15 et a il

rooan e Loed satticolarly b
It1o oetoyy market Wia are 0l ::rzzd\r,rlr‘g Greater vaca™y
St SV SN A sufdemand cupply izeg aton.m
are sl treroy oot vz are mirdfLiof tne potemhal fo

=ntal oottt

MBIAIAD

SIIBWLELS [BjuRUl] 23UBLIIA0N)

2IN50[0SIP QW 4IV pue A)essoln

WOV joaanoN

LOJIBILIO) Jep|oyaieys



Manager's report
continued

This rost of energy crisis will accelerate the recg to
imgprove the energy eff.ciency of all res dential stock This
15 particularly @~ ssue in Germany where so much o tre
roJsitg stoc< ownec oy the isted companies requires
Lpgrading, couplea with the nead to find alterna:
to Russiar gas {the major domestic enargy sourre!

The ost of these improvements will ultimately ne spht
between tre state, the landlord and the terant Tre
outsta~ding guestion s mwhat proportars There s
certainly no ‘ere sze fits all salution put if tne bulk of n's
energy efficiency expenditure is sut:sic'sad by the state
and the landlord can in agoition, gain a return on toair
share of the Imvestment via h|qh9r rents (anc rea.ced
erergy oills), this doesn't have to oe a bear iImvestmont
~ase for this sector

Although these potential heagwinds are well faf'ged‘
anderlying house (and apatment) prices corto e to Jue
drven by affordability Mortgage rates, whilsrasing, ae
stiff very Iovy by historical standards and wage inf'atior |
fzeding througr, whirh dnives affordability Majo- ities
zLch as Berlim and Stockrolm where there 15 ¢ -'ef'y Hitle
rew s.upply rontinue to ses val.aes nsing at £ 1% par
mcntt According 1o JoL there was an 17 6% vear on
wearincrease 11 3erln condomimum onices

Trgreco ooouDaney Increasas and rate groyvethir selt
St fed [r'rouq*': the pardeic will Lrdoubts
slovs However wee are confdent tnat growth will connimue,
felled 3y the structural drivers of commernal asag= last
Tile, sLsness o consumer sunply cham resilierer ane
rLoeasing awareress of the produet from resicdartal

mers The Self Starage Association UK reported “Lrtoes
pany growth across all itg rnmwbe*s; Triz emidins g

Qe renc

ol Z0% are op
S T o7 miere ston
his

g) Themar<elng

rators doe

s iste

e = That &= Tl tale s Rl faal

Poroose sul stugert assomrnodation IPBSAY bas farzo
oetter ag stuer 7\—'&-’\\* SN NS CaTNOLg ex0ere e
and Lalue farmorey Tre struotual funcamentals emgn
so.nd ur-dé.(p\r'msd b, tha nempmation of tne groving
n.mbers of students {post the recent cem Pgra”hlv'
dio) Louplet with the ¢ e guality
ATCOTYNGTANOT AT D708 Bl dcm gererahin,s
According to LeAS, 30% of first yaar studerts live
PE3SA ard th's has noreased from 2274 fve years ago
Anen oaainG growtn cate A"ot'we” A0% start ther-
carersity Ifein halls of residenze out that pereentzge
has remained static over the same periad, reflect g
t~erlaz< of capacity or casaolity ‘or uniersities to
add to thar own residential real estate oortfahos
Cuskman Wakefield have izertiflied 887 000 student
Blsly ”'HWVUJTIFF beds across tne UK vath a net inorease
cress 2070071 QY 2027 databas als

tiors
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Fas already come back to tne market snortly atter the
year end Healtbcare falls into this secure incemes camp
with the UK's Target Healthzare (£125m) and Assura
(£182m) seizirg the moment alo~gside Selguam hsted
Aedifica (£285m).

Whilst considerable pnmary 1ssuance adder (o the si1ze
of the listed real estate sector, th's capital inflow was
awarfed by the record brea<ng amount of ME&A actriity
which e tne majority of cases led to privatisatior and
sannkage n the sectors maket canitalsation

Turrover (purchases and sales dividad by two) totalled
£549m equating ta 36% of the average net assets over
the year Thisis, caincidentally the same as last year's
equl/alent figure (36%) which itself was slightly ahead
atthe year to March 2020 (329%) 1t has trerefore now
been three years of elevatea portfolio rotation dueg 1o
acombination of market volatilty, sector rotaticor and,
importantly, MEA activity

Last vear. trig sezticn of the report highlighteg several
moves by private equity ( PE) into the Isted spate with PR
firms sueh as Brookfiela buying inte Britsh Land and KKR
irtc Great Portland Estates (now called GPFE) Starwood
nac taken ROl (market cap £325m) private in =ebruary
2027and this turned oot to be & precursor to tne elevated
tevels of activity seen tnereatter

inJune Blackstonie was required to increase its initial oid
ter 5t Modveen P'm@"ﬂm paving a 21% premium tathe
rat aszer vafue of 187%p Groe agar, orvate equity was
aul; to look peyord the immediate develooment pipeline
nd value the g~ quahity land nank more aggressively
t 1 pLblie markets intae same month, ABG {alongside
Bla<store agai~y announced the acquisiion of GCP
Stuce~t nang frarket rap £960m) Blackstone una
ARG were also no-myestors in several UK anc Buropesn
srudert fundsa

B-ookfels, anothe qiant m ate ¢quity firr struck three
trnesan the veas =irstly lovermnoerin Gerrmury they
Asquirad 9715 of Alstra markp toap £300) tne unfy Dure
Cermar only othee investar. In Belgium i February thig
y=ar, they announced an agresd b'd for Befimmo, an
unloved owner of primarily Brussais offices. As f thal
WS rol enougn just before our yea and they anrounen
the agrean take orvate of Aimarma 2Lbhin's only isred
mHice doveloser, |7 each of thess daals Brookfeld pad
canstantial pramiams i =207 ~eurdisfuroed share
arice nut still anaguiraad at e Far eioys fet aoset
Calae Dffices remiam oot of favous vt stock mare:
Irestors and therefara thess
of prvate eruty ar
Tr= Zompany reld oota Alstia and sligerra e the case

ofthe [atter aorbolding was &L Gf tneasued capity
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transaction is bittersweet whilst we saw a signiticant
valuation gaim we have lost e well managed company
with strong tect ‘m(;al axpertise in developing prime office
spaca Noteasy toreplace

Corporate actraty between hsted comaanies was also
mdJen in evidence In November, _andserc agqu\'eo -
(nraviously ralled Develoornent Secorhies) for £170 at
an eyewate-ing 70% premium to the mdmmfbed share
prce This small urban regeneranion stock’s perfermane
had been lacklustre as investors veorned about its balance
sheet and inability t¢ furd its long dated aeveloprnent
pipelire For Landsec. this was @ precursor te announcirg
a strategic initiative 17 regional regeneraticn with the
acguisition of 75% of Mediality in Manchester (£426m}

CTR the newly Isted Eastern Eurapean logistics developer
agrend to ouy Deutsche irdustrie, a small Imrod German
oroperty Ccompany owning seco~dary industrial assets
and development lanc across Germany Wnilst the
acquisition currency was shares in CTR the price reflected
A 48% prermium to the uncisturbed price At the time we
felt this transaction was a positive read across to our
atner German holdings. Sinus and VIB Vermoegen A
codple of montas later, DIC, a hsted manage- of property
funds, surprisec the market with & oartial tender for 571%
of VIB Vermoegen at £51 oer share Trus well run Bavaran
logistics owner developeris Isted on a local excnargs
and not the main market D Cwere tnerefore able to
acquire over 107 nefore annowncing therr intentions anc
they quickly reachzc 25% of tre share capital (ahead of
the tender) At tis point cose ta sell cur nolding (3% of
the Company's net assets) at a block premium’ of €54 par
gname | was fearful that D10 controlb would res Ltin the
loss of the ig-ly -egarded na~ageniert tearm and this
has come to nass wath CEOQ and CRG departitg
we have Deem nandsomely revarded through the
coporate activty The share once at tne beginaing of t-e
financ al year was just under €30 per share This company
nds heer a <ey componert ot our [0QISts exposure ove”
more thar a decace a~d warr - ted more axamination,
Femce toe atta ned case stady

However

In Sweden SBE the mighly aoquisitrze social i frastrocture
COMmpAny anno.rned cortrotof a small resiaential
busiress, Amasten Wie had eoently complared our own
researcior tris o e had Degun 1o baid
nolzing Trebird once wasa 2 JrETIGIM 10 whe e

cere DUyIrg shares gmact” earlier

U3Imess an

ViR

T March wea saw tha tinal act in the MoKay
Secuntiz: $a3a - orgstand g shase-oloers vl Nave
becr s are of Gur aew that s well un cvenes of South
East <ffice a~c mdustral preperty wias o2 ng matenally
Lncesalied oy the eqaity mareet Easentially toe compary
VT LG k‘fnml anr' the aheires tooalliguis for tosay™s Stor
rmarkst This comipa™y s ansolutely mot alune in thes

Finall,,
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Manager's repart
continued

regard, there a2 many comparies whr are jLst too
srmall ard reed to jon farces vt fellow, mirnov.s
The key vtk this busimess was the ~ign cuality of the
portfolio We were oleased (¢ read that Rothscailr
Fac undertaken a competitve sales orocess which
culmiratec 1o an agreed iz from Workspace, a istes
cwner of flzxible office space in _angon. Owning 5%,
af e 1ss.ea capital wee were invited to prouide a-
rrevocasle ur erang isudgect to no higher offer;
wlch we providec The id was two trards cgsn
(239p} and one third shares and reflected a premiur
of 30% to the undisturbed prnce We will open
aholding m Workspace in May on completion

of the transaction

Te nhysizal prazerty portfolo produced a total
eturr for 1ne 12 mo~thg of 18 14 mane up ot a
caoital returr of 15 4% anc o~ ircome refurn
canng campared ko the etu am tae bis’
All = ruperw Incex woich produced a total reture of
239 made up of a capital return 0 1807 aro an
ncome retun of 5 0%

The core driver of -eturns was rental growth at

tn= teordustnial properties 0 Wardsworts ane
ter At Gloouester we let the largest ueit at

arey ~eachne rent oo the estate following 4 s~o-t

Tdr<eEtirg penoc to an chaline Pealt faod bysi~=swg

Tis il an' J5 TG move rents fc**. ‘

ITh = tmer

ED ,:orth e
zve lettirgs mr‘um’-q B Ienmg o t"e ur‘\mé I»’w

Fashesn orane Sweaty Setty They alanto Lsethe
ses ah a orotegraph s stucio far trer ooline
Wieare G~1|Jhtm tuad"tmrr EWR LA taPS Ll
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Theinireass > earnngs was attr nutable ta the nirst nalf,
At malm year stage we anruanoed 2ammings some 5.
an2ad ot the grior vear ITwas flaggad at e tive 1nas
end ~alt

tris Inor2ase wolln mor o repeaten it tre

patison o tre first half (April to Seotember
< oeing mada against Apsl to Septemoer
hicnbad suffered an extreme fall morcome Ag
a reanthion 1o tne COVD-16 pandemic ma™y compares

susoendad dradesds ancon some zases éen canlelling
cady bzen anncanced Distroations
dtiaus agamst s .oh anuscartam oaskd-on
ar T“; sacmiratian D*-’\g'a'hme Wi el
= st nalf
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Ag previously documeanted, prowiging the Soarc s
comfartable with longer term ncome prospects it s
orepared to supplement distiibutions from the reve
reserve to coser shorte” term flustuations,

Ml

Gearing and Debt

The Chairman has already commiéntes on qeanngs
levels and h ghlighted the benefits of cu- flexible
DOTCwWIng strunture

This flexibility nas been crucial in such a volatile

vear Jur gearng oscillated ma 10 -16% range as

we resporded to the dramatic changes in market
sentiment through the vear Jver the year we utihsed
soth our revalving {oan facihities and our CFD capability
in addition to our lorger-term debt Althougr the
shorter-term debt 15 inked to market rates and there‘ore
the cost will increase, the flexibitity this affords in
adjusting Qeanrg levels 1s more of an advantuge tran
the lower cost of fixed term gebt. We aim to achieve g
balance betweer pricing and flexibilty which is why cur
cebtis sourzea from a number of providers

Outlook
Asrecently as this January, central bankers across
the world were indicating tnat they believed that
inflaticnary pressures were transitory. The rize i
energy costs seenin J4, 2021 were then superanargad
b v events in Uk-aime1n Febraa~y ang Ma-en Sopply
hain disruption, patizularly asound Chinesge
shutdowns and post COVID 19 workforee shortaces,
mgve comoounden these gressures The mes LI has
neen a period of sustained inflation Eurolang CP
reachea 7 5% 0 Apnl s gixth consec tre new
micnthly high The UK's March figure was 7%. We now
axpect these elevatad figures to continue into 2023 and
for the central banks to oe fored to react guickly with
Mterast faterses The ananswered Question s vereine”
raising mortgage Lasts, weich wall cool consumer
cemanid dang house prce growth will do macs o
assistn reduning me suo Dlwom Cnpressores cuala
cestinfation g equally strong ana we exoect much
note~tial develooment to oe micthballeg as tre "2gur=d
refure on capital amployed e.anorates duw=ye,
this dron e potental supply will form an onderoe for
rental groweth weoners demandis stablo or grr\-w.smq
Durstratedy temars tear-trackes We wall corn e
to own lorg ana strorg mcame whis s cffers QFFT\,J\’!ﬁ
index ked i~ecma vealst s aneously mar e e
Y05 e 1o Tiarkets where wie see terant demseid
FEMMAINING renLit ever 1o fhe Fd 2Oban el
aloancan Hanseed 5o sn or bdlarr'r— SRl st gt
daht structures ard Aexioilin, will nelo Ls ensure that
wiE stees the Comoary caratally througn e tera o

Pl Faeess
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Writirg trs ontlook m the mirdle of May, pan-curaoeqn
real estdte enuties have alrzady collectively correctec
A% from the start of the new fingncial vear (st April).
Thiz fall s greater than tae FTSE 100, 250 or tre
EurcStoxx 600 Tne most leveraged ousinesses nave
predictanly, Deen it hardest aut orevioushy ighly rated
businesses with s1-ang growth prospects mave also
beern hit hard aaa we axpact to fine vilue armaongst those
e N2 mos Jre nalaree sheets Mure of aur worle
offers sohd eanings from real gssets; pallomgs which
are ofte~ rucial o o comaany's coeration ura Dases
nesessity fr ARSI USETS

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fung Manage-
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Manager’s report
continued

VI B Vermogen AG

We began investing in this Bavarian based property
company 1n 2011 when the share price was £8 50 per
share (market cap of €235m). The tounder and CEG
funtil 2018} inttially focused on a tight geograptucal
area around the company's hometown of Ingolstact
We were attracted to the deep local knowledye and
excellent inks to local banks enabling the company

to secure high quality secured lending Over the next
decade, the business expanded to a portfoho of €1 4bn
focused on logistics/light industnal (70%) alongside
some roadside retail (mostly garden centres) The
value delivery came primarity from the very astute
purchases of land and industrial assets requining
refurbishment in the heartland of the hooming
automaotive industries of Southerr Germanry. The
company always maintained a conservative balante
sheet and whitst dividends grew consistently the
pay-cut ratio never exceeded 50% enabling orga~ic
reinvestment into the development pipeline

Share Price 2011 to 2022

40 e e S . - I

W s . . S

1 S I

Our holding grew consistently over the next decade (we
orily sold shares maodestly on 8 separate occasions) and
by the end of 2021 it had reached over 1 5m shares with
avalue of £74m By this ime the market cap exceeded
€1 2bn and the longstanding management team
continued to deliver year or year

nFebruary 2022 O C Asset A, a listed property asset
manager announced that they had acquired 10% of tre
1ssued capital and mtended to make a partial tender
forup to 50 at €51 5 per sare We did not want to
find ourselves own ng equity in a business which was
controfled by a thira party At the same tme, D.C were
happy to buy aheac of the tender date and we extracted
an exit price of €54 per share Tris turned out to be the
nighest price at which the stock traded inits corporate
ristory Whilst we were disappointed to Jose such a well
managec and successful business, e returns generated
over along perod ¢ time warranted closer exammation

Over the 11 years of owersoin, the weturn from this

nwvestiment Pad seer an astonishing 9845 ora compourd
retur 0 26 5% ser antum lassanung dradends rermvested)



Portfolio

as at 31 March

2021 2027
£000 %
UK Securities’
quoted 518,417 33.2 395644 283
UK Investment Properties 95,255 6.1 - 83071 59
UK Total 614,672 39.3 478,715 3472
Contmental Europe Securities
cquoted 940744 602 921,801 658
Investrments hefd at far valye 1,555,416 99.5 1,400,516 1000
- CFD (creditor)/debtor? 7,657 0.5 (141)
Total Investment Positions 1,563,073 100.0 1,400,375 100.0
as at 31 March
2021 2021
B __Eooo %
UK Securities
-quoted 518,417 30.5 395,644 256
- CFD exposure? 57,324 3.4 45,441 29
UK Investment Properties ...96,255 5.7 83,071 55
UK Total 671,996 39.6 524,156 340
Continental Europe Securities
quoted 940,744 55.3 921,801 585
- CFD exposure? 87,318 5.1 108,560 65
Total investment exposure* 1,700,058 100.0 1,546,517 100.0
as at 31 March
B . . .2020 2019 2018
Total investments £1,555m £140Tm  £1,155m  £129Tm  £1,316m
Net assets £1,563m £1,326m £1,136m  £1328m £1256m
UK guoted property shares 33% 31% 33% 3%
Overseas quoted property shares 60% 61% 59% 62%
Direct property (externaliy valued) 6% 6% 8% 8% %
as at 31 March
2022 2021 2021
Benchmark Company Benchmark
GBPR 339 336 279 283
EUR 419 42 3 512 509
CHF 7.4 71 67 6.6
SEK 16.3 163 129 129
NOK 0.5 04 13 13

T UK securities includes one anlisted holdng [0 01%)

2 Netunrealised (loss)/gain on CF[ coniracts held as balance sheet (creaitor)/debtor.

? Gross value of CFD positions.

¢ Totahinuvestnents lustrat ng Market exposure INncluding the gross value of CF DG and TRS positions.

SrnogalHenort B o atg e

]

0.5%

- 7UK Securities
UK Property
~ Continental Europe
Securities

" CFD Debtors

Securities

UK Pfo'per'ty
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Investment portfolio by country

Market
value
%
Austria - o
CA Immaobilien 0.4
'_ ' 04
Belgium
Warehouses De Pau 28,661 18
VGP 28,569 18
Cofinimmo 18,609 12
Aedifica 11,976 08
Xior Student Housing 9,233 06
Care Property Invest 7,106 0.5
Montea 3,134 02
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 2,604 02
Finland
Kaojamo 14,783 09
T 7 Thazs oo
France
Argan 79,107 51
Gecina 23,214 15
Kleplerre 21,712 14
Covivia 13,193 0B
Carmila 7,097 05
Altarea 1,606 01
T T asseze 94
Germany
Vonowvia 149,893 36
LEG Immobilien 55,529 26
Aroundtown 32,740 21
TAG Immobihien 19,557 13
Adler Group 5,394 03
Deutsche Euroshop 4,934 03
Ireland
Insh Residential Properties 1,981 01
' 1,981 0
Netherlands
Eurocommercial Properties 43,104 28
Unibail Rodemco Westfield 14,349 09
NS 4783 03
Norway
Entra 6,898 04
o S 6,89§ ) 04
Spain
Merlin Properties 47,799 31
Arima Real Estate 23,081 5

70,880 4.5

Sweden

Fastighets Balder B
Casteilum

Cibus Nordic Real Fstate
Sambhallsbyggnadsbolaget
Fabege

Wihlborgs

Sagax

Catena

Platzer Fastgheter

Dios Fastigheter
Klarabo Sverige

Switzerland
Psp Swiss Property
Swiss Frime Site

United Kingdom

Segro

Safestore Holdings
Industrials REIT

Phoenix Spree Deutschiand
Derwent London

Picton Property Income
LandSec

Londonmetric Property
McKay Securities

Ediston Froperty

Secure Income REI

Unite Group

Sinus Real Estate
Supermarket Income REIT
CLS Haldings

Tritax Big Box RETT
LXIREIT

Target Health Care
Primary Health Properties
Atrato Cap

Helical

Cap & Reg:onal

Direct Property

CFD Positions (included
in current liabilities)

Total Investment Positions

Comipar esshoant ooLnr, of strg

42,934
25,690
23,553
23,424
20,824
14,533
11,870
9,279
3,723
2,818
1,713
1,004

77,334
54,228
49,892
43129
38,242
35,864
35,662
31,524
22,343
22,067
19,574
18,368
17,854
13,125
9,897
9,365
5,321
5310
3,850
2,341
1,928
1,169
518,417

96,255

7,657

1,563,073

181,455

Market
value
%

27
16
15
15
1.3
09
08
06
02
0.2
01
01
115

28
18
46

4.9
3.5
32
29
24
23
23
20
14
14
13
12
11
08
06
06
03
03
03
01
01
01
337

g2

1030



Twelve largest equity investments

VONOVIA

TTARGAN

- AT

SEGRO

31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Sharehoiding - Shareholding ) Shareholding B

value £149.9m £146.0m i value £79.5m  £54.0m value __E77.3m  £678m
% of nvestrment . % of investment % of mvestment

portfolio™ _ 88%  94% ' portfclo’ A% 35% partfolio® 45%  44%
%ofeqmty % of equity % of equity

owned 0.5% 0.5% owned 3.6% 35% owned 0.5% 06%
Share price €42.31 £€5570 Share price €115.6 €804 Share price 1346.0p 938 Op

Vonovia (Germany)

Vonaaa s a German histed residerhal
company and the arges! rea cstate
company in Continental Furope by rrarket
capiansation Attheondof 2071 e
sermpany owned a partfolio of €98bn plit
between Germany (90%), Swaden [B%)
andAustna (2%) th2 pedtfo.o incrzased
by ¢ 8% following the acquisition of poer
uveutsche Viohner, wo ch comolated 'n
Ortaber 2071 Vonosia has developed a
large in noase craftaman argamzation
wePiek allows tha company orun a

INg en modermizing s

The -ompany 15 invelved inthe
dennal sector

strategy tonus
nortio o
wenclovans g of

thovres

g ts rental business

£ TDA, its value -add oranch |’f~mr'-rr1y and
rrumfﬂer*wmla[ed seranes, %, s third
rary developrent business \")‘V:j and s

9% af grouy

D

raruUrmng Saes 2rogram [R%) voraas
rranagartent Fas beer pamcu\ar!y aro-

Sl rcqular ors a1d agsumingG 4 5o0 Id|
ol wmich should sllow nem 1o bene

st sehmal poluca goodsall mthe fulare

Gaenhe 3 0et recuy arory 2nyrenmerd

ol tee Gerran res denhy! S0 1
VU M anG 0 deerad 510ng resg'ts e

aosclate gnarclatve rorms Tha Tomnany
denveed - [Pk

S per share basie,

ANTA growthal +14% /oy
and ke for ke rent sl
arovan atwas reailienr at +3 2% Inef oo

s

yeartclatsharehalder retam to 2

Mg Do =AY

1 Notes:

Argan (France)
Arganis a b renck comnary
Clavde e a0

ob ecre

reatedin

200U by Jean-C
teen igted simnc 00/ The
of thecompary Fas peer o nuld a
port( s of oremeum log
Juarar tee 3 stab 2 and hiah aorupansy
ratr gt aroumd 1C0% The comioa™ s

vertialty integrated anc haz rll ~onrol
o itheorirsy by iamntiby ng
‘uturereeds of praspectrs

A TNy o

and-urrent

tenan:s and deve oping asssts on thor
bobait Tharslore Arganizabertacaple

the :
i nanzkan the leihng s

cloper margin while nasrglitie

port o rslue amauntog

axponec o b rares with 34% asonsna 10
the Dreztor Pans ragoany T2 ornpn ™

deluer=d sirong TOY T rasulle waie an
Fre=t ti
seth g rz3troary conen g
e el ahy o, 2 d2nag pay
bedovs B0% or distibutatle o

~pErstareun K%

ot all o

cask andren
shi'crennena
T eamang

ACAN Y TG FET3IN

=lapment pro

DUl can-

s Koty .
fra=2ehas ap e o eh

= abalqrerons Tee

sharebalder oy o

Segro (UK)

ol

loais

tre L) b a ool

SCOrG 435 Daromes T2 EArgest L
errap, andis the largast opetator ot
stesard industinal property izted n
particnsof £130n (20 0

KRET by

oo im0 A% n Tantingnt al FJTpe,

WAL % Urman
boxes 3nG 4% ather

DXO0

groupieranty
nd.s7aand o

nnes
Slrong as
dorandimba arce fuslled oy

e femams an 17

ranquIreriant 3 e dezl v

hegrounsiarg

1570

SV

retar s e | nepegs total

rA L nat Iean e o

> The percentage of investrment port“olio postions set cut above include exposures through CFD for bath the ndredual pos t:ons anc the portfoio

e Gy
cos Henta greesth
maretT fas bean nadremely
ulm sunoly
onants’
thibe gowshim
ST N L TODe, TETTNEn Y @l
Sl T arkehs

el g
rpbicalhy |

A% g

e

[
elalalay’

wrrareelt hye g

sl heae tharsksldo
shareholder

> The nvestment Portfolio by Country pos:tions set outon page 6 are the physical holdings only ncrudea inthe rivestments held at fair value in the Balance Sheet
The profit or loss positions on the CFD contracts {1.e. not the investment exposure) are also shown on page ' 6 and are ncluded in the Balance Sheet as debtors or

cred 1orsin the Current assets

SLns s

MIAIBAQ
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Twelve largest equity investments

continued
- 4 LEG
] .
KLEPERRE
31 March 2021 31 March 2021 317 March 2021
Shareﬁ-o‘lding o S‘hé?é'holding o gﬁéreholdmgj T
value £61.5m E513m  value  _ _£60.4m  £440m  value _E55.5m_ £639m
% of investment % of investment % of investrment
portfohaT 38% . portfolio? __36%  28% portfolio” L33% 0 4T%
% of equity % of equity % of equity
owned i - . _1.0% owned 2.1% - 26% owned - 0.9% 0 9%
Share price €24.18 €10.89 Share price 1340p 756p Share price €103.25 £1122

Klepierre (France)

Safestore (UK)

LEG (Germany)

el Re=ls telantls b la gleis 10

KIEDINITE 1S 3 curopear 3™ 0poing H2nir: Safestor
ooeralan, maraging arcund 140 cantras
hotoral porfohe salustion of FUR? The

PXPITUES are N ranee, Balgem

alayitan [Ta %)

andibena 0%

mpacinatsy the
SO LNGT 2 oMo e 43
Cunde g
LTSN 1y alate] oM
hoof + 3%
FPRANTA broaaly fla Yoy On

S oneTy

a3 clarior

1y nenetilG

1t Notes:
> Thepercentage ofimesimert pari’s GposTons seloutakc.e ne ude exposures through 5F 3 forbsth the nc v cus PGS TSNS anc Meport™s ¢

C rilhie ruesimienisne g al s r qa ge ntha 33 ance Sheer
age "Eandae noluces -~ ime Balamce Snaet 38 gentors or

= The meesiment Portic ©by Couniry 0OS [0MS sel 042 on page 14 are the plyysicar ho 2ngs ony Bie
The profit - loss poatiors or me CF 2 oo™ Fadts | @ rot e rvesimert exposuLTel are aisc 3 ow
crectorsinthe Carrent assels.




industrials

31 March 2021

Sharehoiding

\‘r PHOENIX
47 SPREE

31 March 2021

Shareholding

MERLIN
31 March 2021

Sha{éholamgi

value  £83.3m value - £51.9m  £328m  value _£47.8m_ £199m
% of investment % of investment % of nvestment

portfolio® _ 31% ) - portfoho’ 3% 2 1% portfolic” 28% 13%
% of equity % of equity % of equity

owned 9.2% owned 14.7% 10 4% owned 1.1% 0 6%
Share price 198p Share price 382p 330p Share price €10.59 €872

Industrials Reit (UK)

Incustrials REIT (formerhy known s
Stenprag) s a UK focused mult-let
rdustna bus ness The portfolio has
beer lransformed over g numoor o!
years o focus solely anthe Uk |
soctor and tne £50m portioho S nows

S GO% ML s a1 Seprember 2097), and
meving wwaards 100% ntha near term
The UK M 1 ass azs hasz seen strong
capital value growth, drven by both vizld
~empression and ongoing ERY growith
{roMaron 2522 Industras BEH Pas seen
ke for ke ERY growth of +4 3%) wiin

rerts coming frerm alovs hase (average
passing -entin tre portolio was f5 70
ariydarsk 20227 e add nor s strong

LACerying property furdamenta s the

carmpanys Hive operzting platformgres

tre oomrpgn ssodataon erguly

leve s and cemrand a< welas allowang lor
IMncrAlv apcratanal approaches such 38
I Lse ol digital short form g~ art leazas,
spocd mg the ctting process and recuTing
Ay nEEl e arag e oortfo e sacancy
“otat sharchaloer saturm since [PG in une

JlAras heon 19R%

t Notes:

Phoenix Spree {UK)

Phoerix Spree 152 UK st

SUMEEny
with assets 10 Germzny, spociically Berlin
residential azsers Thotolal valiancn
cfthe company's propery VoAl
C80°m 2t 1 ard the s arrg
continees W berett from the ongoing
sunply Aderrand rekaance nBerls
ros cental wh ok razied mabousing

1AM

shortage The Sielendeckel {Gorman

\

renLresire s rgoanon) was rened

2021 oo Ang the notinek ror

marke! -ental growihas

Yl noreasing

prices of concomimums, bo'ha” wih2h

S e S empary a0t
SN NTAgrows e dadende o

=0y the e i e

retyth -
2% cihiearan a
anneal vaiuaton ap oot e % noaddilioe

Iy shrarg property Sundamental s o
~OMmpany miated 3 shar Losbs e

[RIRY TR

2071 At an aeraged sooun

enad ity ot A% esnathe s
morcyc ol s 2ars ngsard oo
Sne per sy are basis The Pvesynus tatdl

shigmehn o = has Do

Merlin Properties (Spain)

Merliniz a spansn diversified REIT with
a€14cn portiaha the macnry ofthe
cempErys aaaots are offices (49%)

and the ~CmiDany [Orusses 11s SKpoaun-
s prmanby Madnd and
Barcelorz {naddition 1o tra Sffice
appnG

‘%1 logistios (0% net l2gne

Lartfoles 23 2 0rm ey my DS 3

%y win 10% ol acants in ofber

e 3T ongest contnurarioaiug on

Qrvsib increasing i value by c14% ke

fror ik 1IN & negair/e mor cn the

F 7% totaloortahn

sroppIrg cenlre
[ for e groyes th was +27% This relped
A tne toorpan s P PRAMN A +4% e
AN NS 1MREny W 8 S0 as et drve
[T rporzhare growth o arate ot ~J4% 1k
TOTTRAT TP ALTNS NG GreatT ooss rol

rec.ire saoeashen g eial vk ard L/ ror

treypgr w2 mantarod 0% e ke

TUrTEC TSI g Nt ) LranmaEnt T
Sompar. a

sttty 10

FI"I‘H.:?

> The percentage of nvestment partfolio positions set out above InG ude exposures through CFD “ar both the nawidual positions and the portfolic

> TheInvestment Portfolic by Country positions set oJl on page " 6 are the physical holdings ority Included in the investrments held a2 “a'r vaiue in the Balance Sheet
The profit or loss positions on the CFD contracts { .e. not the investment expoasure) are also shown or page * € and are included n the Balance Sheet as debtors or

crediters in the Curren: assets.
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Twelve largest equity investments
continued

fiandSecuritiei N

31 March 2021

éharehéidméﬁ

value £45.2m £328m
% of investment -
portfole™ — _ 27% _ 27%
% of equity

owned 0.8% 0.7%
Share prlce 786p 7690p
Land Securities (UK)

landsecisone of the UKs largest RE
g portioho aued 3ty ee The

Rainletelialy K —all
aiher

samho

tra 1 arcon
BRI =S I

TADANY S1TEN

ciisror-oo

areandreizl [arm,:: it

cear o additnr o the
de2nprrernT oo

smerdan

e

snals o ahnceer e ears e e ires
thoa L‘,(:;f’“ g

2t Tang e

Lsedenlepmants s

T Notes:

> Theperceniage o

> The nuesimen: Porifeho by Couniry pos ong setouton page "o are the phys'ca ho o ngsonty nouces nthe nvesiments he Cal
are also srowr on cage 1% ardare ~clues rtre3alance

Thezroftorlosspos tiorsontre CFD
crecitors nthe Current assets

corracis{ e no:

PISIP

Swnss Property

31 March 2021
gﬁéreholdmg - )
value _£44.6m  £420m
% of investment

portfalio” _ 26%  27%
% of equity

owned 1.0% 10%
Share prlce CHF121.5 CHF1152
PSP (Swnzerland)

DRy ss eropat

Toar eI

© nvestment portolio posit ons setout abcse Nt ugeexposdres through C

tre nyestiert exposure’

fsrecihithe ndv s poss

gecina

31 March 2021
Sharehb{dmg o
value £44.0m  £539m
% of Investment

portfolio” 2.6%  35%
% of equity

owned 0.6% 07%
Share grice £114.3 €117 4

Gecina (France)
e |ardkorg

ohan

Bl SRV Er e T

snsarcihecario o
“ar /a 1e nineBa@nce Shee:
Sreetas centosar




Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capital value (%)

Retail Industrial Residential and Other
ground rents
Wwest End of Londen 37 3% ) C126% 05%  504%
Inner London* 1 4% 37 1% - 38.5%
South West - M 1% - 11.1%
Total LB T% 482% L 126% . 0% 100.0%

*|Inner London defined as irside the North and South Circular

Lease lengths within the direct property portfolio

__Stoldyears
10t Tbyears

n
B  15to20years
]

20+ years

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road,
London, W2

Sector: Mixed use

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 64,000

Principal tenants: Waitrose L.td,
Graham & Green, Happy Lamb Hot Pot,
1Rebel, Specsavers

[heproperty comprises alarge

mmixed use block in Bayswater, construe ted
nthe mid 197035 Thesite extends o
approdmately 2 acres onthe north east
aormer of the unction of Bishops Bridge
Road ard Pors bestor Roarl close o
Bayswater tube station and ongomng
descelopment of The Whiteley the
commercial element was extended and
rofurbished in 2015 with a new 20 year
lease beng agreet with Waitrose

S enort AT G ntE S

Gross rental
income

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London, SW18

Sector: Industnal

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 36,000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betty, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, Lockdown Bakers

Site of ustoweran aore S meires from

wandsworth Tower =afvay stabon nan

area thats prodomimantly resicertia
Theestare comrprses 1o smiall noustrgl

crits generaly et 1o a mix of small

e nedium g1z preatocomniries

Planmieg pernirissor grantec
Devserrher 2013 fora mised Lo

empaloytrivnd led redes ciapmen:

Contracted rent

- £2.8m
£10.25m

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 63,000

Principal tenants: Infusion GB, Pulsin Ltd

The 1171 Centre conmprises six industrial
units cecnpied by two tenants and site
onad hacme ste Goucester Basiess
Prars s lorated to the eqnt of Junchion
1A ol thaM5 and one mie to the
castof Gouoester City Ceptrs The

Lroperty also has Casy arness 1o he
A4/ ey chng gond nkes o the M4 e
unsine 1h

£175m

MAIAIIAY
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The Company's investment objective is to maximise
sharehoiders’ tatal returns by investing in the shares
and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internaticnally and also in
nvestment property located in the UK

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling. The
index, caiculated by FTSE, 1s free-float based and as
at 31 March 2022 had 105 constituent companies.
The index limits exposure to any one company to 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata. The
benchmark website www.epra.com contains further
details about the index and performance

The Company's business model follows that of an
externally managed investment trust company
The Company has no employees. 115 whaolly non-
executive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for carporate strategy, corporate governance,

risk management and internal control, the overall
investment and dividend policies; setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring
investment performance.

The Board has appeinted BMO Investment Business
Limited as the Company’s Alternative Investment
Fund Manager (AIFM? with portfolio management
delegated to Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus
Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager te the Company
on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban
Lhonneur 1s Deputy Fund Manager. George Gay 1S

the Direct Property Manager and Joanne Ellictt the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of
equity and portfolio analysts

Further information in relation to the Board and the
arrangerments under the Investment Management
Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 13to 45,

I accordance with the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive (AIFMDN, BNP Paribas
has been appointed as Depositary to the Company
BNP Paribas also orovides custodial and
administrative services to the Company

Company Secretanal services are provided

by BMO Investment Business Limited,

A summary of the termns of the Investment
Management Agreemnent are set aut 6r pages
54 and 55




Strategy and investment policies

ihe nvestment selection process seeks toidentify
well managed companas of all sizes The Marager
generally regards future growth anc capital
appreciation potential more highly than rmmeaiate
yizld or discount to asset valug

Allnough the mvestment chjective alloves for
Irvestment on an interatioral bams the Comipany’s
penchmark 1s 4 pan-Europaan Index and the majoriny
of the investments will be located in that gecgraphical
area Direct property iInvoestments are locatec i tre
UK orly

As adedicated investor in the property sector
the Compzny cannot offer diversifization outside
that sector, however, within the portfolio there
are hmitations, as set out below, on the size of
ndradual investments held to ensure that trere
is diversification within the portfolio

Tre maximum nolding In tne stock of any one 1ssue”
0" ctasingle assetis imitea to 15% o tre portfolio
at the pomnt of acquisiion Inaddition, any holdings in
excess of 5% of the portfoho must not in aggregate:
exceed 407% of the portfolio

The Mandager currertly apohes the following
glidelines for asset allocation

UK fisted equities 25 - 50%
Continental Eurcpean
listed equities

Direct Property — UK _0-20%

Other listed equities ) B - . 0-5%

Listed bonds o ) ) 0 -5%

Unquoted investrments - 0~ 5%

R IR ol he I I (= N

45 - 75%

Tre Comoany may ermaloy levels of geanrg rom
uma 1o time wat 1oe mm of enhancitg ret sres,
subjectto ar owrall maamnam of 25% of the

ao-tolio walue

[~ certar markst conaitions tre Marager miay
NaTar 11 orucent rot o employ geanng at all
and rooreld oart 2t tae portfolioin cash

fre current aswet allocansa guidelne s 107
net zase to 257 net gaanrg (as | percertage
of portfolio value)

‘nvestment properties are valued every six months by
ar external incepe~deart vialusr Val.ations o* all the
Groap's properties as at 21 March 20772 ravge oeer
carried oot ora R DS Red Book’ Dasis ana tese
valuatiors rave been adoctec Ir the accounts

The Group charges 75°. of arnual nase managenent
fees and firance costs to capital, inlire witn the
Board's exp=cted long-tarm spht of returns in tre form
cf zaptal caims and income Al parformance fees are
Jnarged to capital

itrs the Gosed's <ureent imterticn to hold ~o mare
than 15 o tne pnrtfolio v | sted Closeg-erded

[ryestmean t zompanies

Somes LomoaniSs myesting 1t sommereial o
residennal property are stu. tured as hated exieally

~ago trs s ceta rooder s Lally facourec oy
SrYIENES are Mmace n hese
3 Darfic Lbar sesiom ot the

St lanage S0me n e

Sror b lras i orasr 1 A
Sr eI e may gemant f2am s rejanec

ar ’j

aeanic

M7

eoally strorg fiross Companes qroy;

art cfoLrie sestnant Lniye
“omc totoe rmarket oot farnat
MY WA TG TR S A DG L

IR IO I P et R

GELUTRY A larger

C e T AN
tre =ard Marags
Lo tnene LehiZies o rre DAanacear vl s

crrmany ol make an

et Mant 1o Qe 107t

R AT I A TR IS AT A W ke Q\v

MAIAIBAD
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company's
objective against the following Key Performance Indicators (KPIs'):

KPI

Toe Direste-s regard the out perfor nance Of the
Cumpany's nat asset value mtal return -alati e 1o
tre berchmark as bermg a~ overall measura of v al .z
delvered to the shareheloers over tmg lo-gestarm

Board monitoring
The Board reviews the performance in dataii at eacr meetirg
and disiusses the results and outloo< vith the Ma-age:

KPI

The annoipal opjectine of tn2 Campany 1 a okl
refurn Goech e o ser tre Fund Marager alss
Aams to dalyeer a relianloe dindend wath growtn oo
tre lorger temn

Board monitoring
Tre Boara reviews statemeanis oan inonme T o), =0 b

Tate ano e eame

KPI
sinilat sema tratiar

TTES T,

e

AR [ U I I e Tl A

i

Board monitoring

T

Outcome

NAV Total Return™ (Annualised)
Benchmark Total Return (Annualised)

214%
122%

10.5%

54%

*NAY "0al Return is ca culated by re-investing the divaends n the assetsang
the Company fram the re-evant ex-dividend date Dradends are deemed to be

re inves:ed on the ex-dividends date for the benchrmark,

Qutcome
Cempound Annual Dividend Growth* 2%
Compound Annual RP| 9 0%

6.7%

3%

* The final 2 videnc in the time senes divided by the Irit al dividend i the period

raisec 1o the power 0 7 anvided by the number of years nthe ser'es

Qutcome

Average discount=*

Total number of shares repurchased

* &verage daly o scount throughout the perod o™ share proe ts NAY w2

ncore. Sodrce 3 comberg

h

46%

NIL



KPI
The Board s 2ersuicus of expenses and aims to
defiver a balance between excellent service gnd costs

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges neludas any
direcl propely costs maddibion o the managene|
‘res and all olrer expenses ircurred In raneing a
pablicly hsted company As ro otherimvestrment trust
companes hold part of ther portfolio in direct property
(tney ether hold 100% of tharr portfolio as property
secunties or as arect property), m addimon to Ongomg
Charges as defined by the AIC, Lhis statistic is shown
without direct property costs in order 1o allow a clearer
comparison of averall administration costs with those
of other funds investing i securities

Ihe Board monitors the Ongoing Charges, in
comparnsor to ararge of ather investment trust
companias of similar size, both property sector
specialists and other sector specialists.

Board monitoring

Expernses are budgeted for each financal year anc
the Board reviews reguiar reparts o actudl and
forecast expenses throughout the year

KPI

The Company must continae to aperate 17 oreer o negt
the requirements of Sectio~ 1158 of the Corporatior Tax
At 2010

Board monitoring

The Board reviews financial informat’on ard forecasts at
=ach meeting whith set out the requiremerts outhnen in
Section 1155

Outcome

Ongdmg ch'é'rgés excluding
performance fees

{Cngaing charges excluding
perfarmance fees and Direct
property Costs 0.58%  0.60%

0.60%  0.63%

o argoing ~harges are compohtes snen comparcd (o
) group

Outcome
The Directors Balicee tnat the cordimiors and ongomg
Juir2mients Paes been netin resoen t of tne ysar ta 3

The K25 ave considered wo be Altermative Performance Measures as oofined later in the Annual Report
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Principal and emerging risks and uncertainties

In delivering long-term returns to sharehoiders, the Board must alsc identify and monitor
the risks that have been taken in order to achieve that return. The Board has included below
details of the principal and emerging risks and uncertainties facing the Company and the
appropriate measures taken in order to mitigate these risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing impact of COVID-19 on economies around the world has been recovering
throughout this financial year however the invasion of Ukraine by Russia in February had
a significant effect on global markets and market uncertainty remains. In addition rising
inflation and interest rates bring chzallenges not seen for many years.

Share price performs poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAV

T snares of ine Company ane stes s
E«clarg-undire ohare orire
Zeard The s
Uy b Gorrpanys wndertbing
premiue Ty flactuate over tme

Tre Boarre srrora e s o Sl oonnt ar orse L st

i Lodintes chargn ans Ualimd Coer b snorian e gereer

The byl o
Tiies for

LTI er 3R A0 T s ahae s ers
g 2aer masnT g ror :

a2l B agert ond meetings oo

13 MNAY an

Poor investment performance of the portfolio
relative to the benchmark

Tho L ropmney Lort e, T

"




Market risk

Bt share pric-s and axche
ard sosersely irmpact 1he v
Although the portfolic is diversified across a numbar of
uaoqramira\ regons, Peirvestmert mandat=iz *oused
oria single sector and the c portfoio il be sensepye
towards the property seclho s glotal ety mearksts
micre geners ly

the Corrpury 2 por:

Properly companies are subject t rmarny faclors ook wan
adversely affect thair rvestiment performance, haee neluoe
the general economic and financial environrent ineavhich treir
tenants cperate, interest rales, avalabnly of inventimert amd
geelopment finance ard regulations issued by gover-ments
and autrontes

althooegh we havwe row exiad e [uropear Hnns e
stracture sl our rzlatiorshp wite Continentai Eanop
o eyulve gnd e coid e anrnpael o

~ack sector

The CCVIDAT9 gobal panderric continued formacnof the
fmdnudl vear |t has changed the way we live and work,
uncertainly remairs regarding the mpact 0N 2Conorves
zand propertly marke! s around the world bothim the short anc
Inger term

forented

The invizon of Ukrane by Russia i February
further rmarket v Iut\lwyand Jrcerfarty vhich reman.,
Infiation and interast rates are rising globally (o levels ~ot seer
nooer 1 years

Any sirengthen ng or weakenrg of Siering vall have g drec
IMpart 45 8 progornt mn Sf our Bavange Sheat 15 held im ron-GBF
denominated currencies The currency exposura s ma niairad
i [ine waith the bencamark ara wil change aver tims As at
31 March 20072 Bnk ol the Company's expasure was
Lurrern cther than Sterling

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Le =arirgs inthe ancerlying portfolio putting pm JLLre
ar ine Comoary's aniity U grow the dhsdend Zoutd s2s st
g mber of factors

weer

sOawAr earergn A Ui s n s
LOMDAMTSS M s0me Droperty 5e0targ Tantmee 0 ke regal
I e ted oy YD 19 panderac although micstr:
rrparred o omyirg drscends, s0me 8 Al g ioser e 1t
presanusy ard o few are continuing towenbold droda-os

DA

srinnged vacancies in the girect property oortfo oanc 2
PR reregoliations
arhicipated followng L

SR T

Nt
e raceipls

Csterlng recucirg the S
M Eeeg terms The Dorrpany 302 e
rraterial iner=nss n e | sfearyngon s penms e b ap
o the COYID-15 pancemic A sigrificant “actor i this wastoe
caa<er ng of Staring fotowing the Brex' decieor Albongh
175 has ~ove passed, the value o Stariing may Lo irgs s
fuctuate in the near or medium 1erm as e [orger ferm
\rhwrd ans of Brexitand COAD-TS ard ez 1o e

K ard Burop=an APl D Arar Tre e ation
of Jkraire by Russia nasy o incredased ~Sarkel urmentar
The imegar terrr irmp!eations vl ciffer aer o= or “=an
2ronigrmies Thiv Lould eqd o oursncy Ty rrergihierng
of Blerhirg oo dlead toa fal in eanings

b

ol [ AT U HITRA { TR PRI P

Agher mere rgtes
LLITDEn &

medatres otoob led e g w anetne

CapritEe L lEpry Pawan ad e

Leonn e g !

SrnoE Ropart & una t o

T Board rec o e {onsiser Goegu ar repart from e
Maria ge o i ) cenb el | denitiors
LIy a3 MJ atioral=n relatior
1h~ e hing o ang

|d!’ﬂ~|

The r=pur! ~onaicers the mpdy
surrent teses ard sels ol the T far g
in posilionirg 1= par ol and theorgenig

vl ons far the proDerty rmar-st s aluatong

coera b and by et e Lar

a1 onsider s regular

e FX rares i

Pea nrnp s P SUDStar: o roane renet2s whe boans
Ao unon kb en res e

LSonne br bearipact Sf Bragl gne
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Principal and emerging risks and uncertainties
continued

Accounting and operational risks

3 and procasass
Dr‘?J\C‘—_‘(_ by tn-a g

S orovine 3auss

Ciaruptior or fgiure 5

und=rpinn g the
21d therss st
slarcard sernce

Ao grd tne
SES Al e admrinatr

SOl Term

rard

AaNlalsfelay
Otrer ey ey ders

Financial risks

The Lompanys T St il S5 eXpaES T T a LUyt
af “rancizalr el mludw counterparty “rAd tr sk
naadiny sk ang e aiuat o of

financ al ‘rstrumrents,

Loss of Investment Trust Status

T pn
Urrhe Boan
I S (PR NP

TFH'IJ“

h JI the I
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Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Farure 1o comply with Ire London Stock Deanarnge

L sting RBu es and Disclosure Guidance und “ramsparenay
Riles; faiare 1 meet tne requirem ents of the Adlerasee
I~vestment Furd Marag-=rs Regulatians, the growaeans
SFthe Comrpariey Act 2006 and o her DK, Cunepesnard
aeersens l2gisianon affecting UK compan:es

Forume tomeae the recuired 30 Sunimng slancaris o mg<e

appropriate disn osures 1 e Inlenr and

Arnua Reod

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearirg, either tinrough the use of bank deot or dern o
may be uttised from tire ta time Whilst tne uae of
gearing s ntended to enhance the NAY total ratarn, it wi-
have tne oppoaite effact when the return of the Compuny's
nvestrent portfalinas negative or where tne cost of aen:
12 ~igher *han the return from the portfolio

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Less of portfoan manager or ather key staff

IS AR LSS L I A N A

sought patvseen term, cost and ‘lexiohity

Oy UpdaTen o
sorelry, e daviaors a0
b Auditor The Boare considers ese reports and
reraenmendst Irsoard thes G0 hon s ardimgly

[hes Poard race e rogu A rmg.0a
e Manager Company

3t

T B Cevgen 2eoarnen raoarbard wodar= fnom

1me Cepg

Ireferm g b e klinls ornd Ty gy Pr e 2 dures ame 1 o de ol

D

e
B DA

The Baar: rece ves reguiar reoatts [ram ne Manager on
the levels of gearng r the gartloho Thesa are considerad
ajarat ine geanrglmes setie e Investment Guidelines
and alzie tha contexd of ~urrent rrarket ot ors and
senamen: The cast ol g260 s monilorsd and o balaroe

The Charman condos s rega gr m=slings w th the Fund
Pranagement ten

The fex Loprotecls the cons mirgsiraciare and deprn
and qualite of resnuces Tne fee simaclure Mosaliises
autperformance and s fundamerialin the gbrivy o relan
R
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Long-term viability

' ancordacce with provisior 31 of the UK Corourats

Governarce Coce, which requires the Company to
455555 the prosoects of Ioe Comoany crer the lony
term, tne Directors ~ave assessed the prospects

the Compan, over the coming five years This period

15 uS2a by tre Board durng the strateque plarrirg
process as it corsidess this peniod of trme to be
r

approsnate for a business ¢f the Jompany's nat. &
and s1ze

This assessment takes account of tne Company's
_Jrrent positios and the policies and pracesses for
managqirg the onncipal and emerging ris

n oparation and meet its habilimes as they fall due
swer tne period of assessment

in maki~g thes statement the Soard ~armesc nut a
‘Onust assessment oF the ormdoal ano emerging

n545 facing the Zompany, nclucimg those that might

tneaten its ausinegss madel. future performarce,
aolrency ard haudity

'nreaching ther corclusians toe Directors
nave resiewad five-year forecasts “or the
Comoany Wit s2nsitidty analysis to a numoer
Fassumptions investes comoany craderd
groontrortzeest rates foragn excharge rates

L3« rates and asset value grovtn

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

s a lhong
ests mardy 17 m2adily reasat s

IS i G (el

. L rould
sdnoans: T
* : i =
v e e
Nl :
A Ealiatatte sl ato) —
oy
o,

set gl on
pages 2¢ to 27 and the Company's abihty to continae

Catel

FNe 2 3miany tage ot s
clozed My afTuct Jre

anc aple to
hopand dirset ¢
of smalle” comap
autperforma oz

HFits portfalo n e
I se ani

1o lorgtem

e

Al e 3ai7 "a Sheet date tre T

aalliFeTalats Ree TAaI oA 1 S I Y

The structure nays alse enanlea tne Cemzany to
securs leng-terr hna~cing ZJR SC million loan
notes 15saed 1 2018 are dus to maturs at pdr in
20026 and GBP S millun loan notes issued o the
same adate are due to 'nature at parin 2431

Themoazte' CONID-15 antoe U< ane = ron2an
commenaal proagertymar<ets stearhly
Grnrsred frrnug

DI TOTSars BB b &

the currart year s on'f oantly
YEAT In 12 Aty o
~aturned to caprg Aadesds altrougs some at
[awe=r el thas Detors tne pasdemis Toe

strorger frar the

OMZanies ma e moy

27100

GO et rame 0 the vegn urcen
1 dederd metalle s

azlayed reoeint of M nioma2

2 ey alth o g Leas

Fortrar co o e Pre B Lo g

T roas 3r o eraime

et clanl ity e Lol

Surticie o T eyl




Tm1e Company ~as no employeas and consaduertly
coes not nave redundancy or other employment
related hatihties or responsibiities

The Company retairs title to 1ts assets held by t1e
Custodiar which are sabject to “urther safequands
imposed on the Depositary

Ineimpact of a range of fartars have heen
considerad 10 terms of the potential eftect on

Sterlimg 065 of the portfolo s 2cposed to
currencies other than Sterling

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

Real Estate will contirue to ne an investaile sector
of international stock markets and invastors will
continue 1o wish to have exposure to tnat sector

+ Closed-ended investment trust comparies
will continue to be in gemand by Investors and
reqgulatian or tax legislation will not change to
an extent to make the structure unattractive In
compansor to other investment products

+ The performarce of the Company will contirue
to be satisfactury Should tne Boarc deem
tnat performance 13 less than satisfantory 1t
has the appropriate powers to replace the
myestment Marager

The Company’s business model, capital structure
and strategy have enabled the Company to operate
over many decades, and the Board expects this

to continue into the future. The Directors confirm
therefare that they have a reasonable expectation
that the Company will continue in operation and
meet its liabilities in full over the coming five years
to 31 March 2027.
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Responsible investment

Approach

Ernsronmertal Socral and Governance { ESG ) factors

car present both opoortunities ard threats to tne
serformance we aim to deliver 1o our shareholce-s
The 3oard 15 there®ore committen 1o taking a
2sponsible aparoach on ESG matters Tois covers
fre Comoany's ow resoonsiblities on goverrante
anc reperting and the mast matenal way in
shichtbe Company can nave animoact througr
2sponsible owrership of the nvestmerts that e
made unats behalf oy its Manager

3 along-term investor, governance and
ustdmdbmtv consicaeratiors have always been
embedaed in ou” Manggers investment process
ESG nisk assessments and considerations ase
I~tegrated (into the detaled fundamentalinvestmeant
=aearch ane analysiz that takas alace or any
aatential inyestmert before itis consicered for
nelusicnir the portfolio and cortindes ar a-
-nqoi~g basis for all myestments ~eld

Thig agproach isin ine with tre def ~ition of an
Article & Fu~d under the EU's Sustarmante rinany
Disclosare Regulations Whilst this 15 :;urre”ﬂy
Eoropean not UK regulatian it s nonetheless g wideby
dtibsed definitior.

There ge tuu-c-‘ ~damzntal Corsiderations to

maraged b" w
Torperates Stm;t;& £
rg-sta~cimg anc

Zetir g 1 TIZan,

SRR Dan D

(LA O T S R 16 Y
st prattioe L
T TacaLeEmest tea T cacts

al igh s el

S R Pt L R L Lo SR
O = AT H Le e L
AT =gl S0 cTeTnaEn st naTaT et S 20 g
el e El ety T T

fOlL3 AN ASCHIS ™= CoelranmenTal m2asuras 47 Nowv
'a:ml';; emimg s e ot e et waner sl
RO TMENTE SN Jlazed Loom oo Inyesiee Tomoanies,

trataragenis aole o 5o tinise mare easty othner
measd es g.ch as clhmate crarce a~d sustamabihity
palizies ansoutuemes

Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

Trz Boarc also recognises tnemoutance of tre
LJG’HDS}I’?‘,‘"?‘ OV GOVRTIET e 3 s 3.res The
Comoary's compharos with the 410 Tode of Comoorate
Govermanne s detalzd i the Tornorate Governarae
Statement or nage A0 oF thig Anmaal Heoort

Unces Sechor A1 D of the Comoaries ALt 2008

there s the enLrenent 1o gatal o mation abo st
srmniay=2 and ruman agors msludimg inferrmation
annt ary din relanon to trese matters

i s T e Comoary
ot aoply

pe ot e U Mone e
Jard [h;

sthaed e ma<e
a slavery and Forran trafficking statemant, Tne Directans
are satishied that, 10 the best of tme’- «<nowledge, the

A3 1 e Ot

Shavery A

tames e trasnold and i thersfors

Compary™s onmoanal sa00he s vk ane lsted on page
TTe rmiDly it 172 /e s oF toe UREse

Slagzoy 7 e T":l‘,e are o oally profesasngl

i tha nanci

s miale Zrrei oy an

Srme by

cmraticr

T DageEs He
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Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise

of Voting Power

The Manager has a corporate governance voting pali oy
which inits oprion, accords wit™ curent best prastn e
whilst maintaining a primary focus on financial returns.
Tne exercise of voting nghts attached to tre port®clin
has been celegated to the Marager Wrare practicanle
all sharcholdings were voted at all company mestings
in the firancial vear in accarcance with BMO GAM 5
owreorporate governance policies Thig ens ares trat
a strong, consistent approach s taker 1o prosy voting
vsPIcn Dac<s up and reinforces engagement, takes a
robust ing or key governance 1ssues such as executive
pay and integrates environmental. scoial & diversity
ssues and sustamnability practices into the voting
process The Manager regularly engages with companies
on governance matters, supported by cur significant
stakes in large property comparies Ou” s1ze inths
specialist area of the equity market has heloed ensore
ouviews are heard, augmented by the strergth

of BMO's Responsible Investment team and their
broader ergagerment

BYO's Resporsible Investment Annual Reviews provides
mare information on its firm-level stewardstkip policies,
as well as how these comply with the expectations of
the UK Stewardship Code 2020 The Manage 15 a
signatory of the UK Stewardship Code Its statement

of comphante nan be fourd on te Manage-s v

at bmogam com

furing the firancial year, the Manager voled aganst 846
items, resultirgn at least ong vote against managerme it
proposals at 477% of shareholder meetings O theteme

yvoled agamast, the oroposals car be oroadly catzgosed
as follows

‘Remuneration
flection / Reelection of

Directors

[ Increase in ca'p|tal
"  Antitakeover
mechanism

B Director torms

Sl et R AT s

Fortne yaar tha Marage- engagac #1th 28 comoanies
cirectly o a range of ESG relatec matiers Thase
engaemeants were Sondulien at Both tre boara ana
seror exec e level as wall as direc tly with inyestor
relations Toais of engagemeant were spht a3 follows

1% 1%
o

Climate Change
Corperate Governance
Labour Standards
Environmental
Standards

Business Conduct
Human Rights

The Marage: tracks the milestone of the engagemert
strategy and nas seen progress this year on g numoe”
of matters Fxamples inciude the punhcation of nat-za7a
carbon tasgeis 12 puthicatior of sustamability renorts,
comaanes beccTIng a living wage ermployer and
imorcvements i corpo ate governance, mcorporating
changes to remuneration 30lies

Environmental

—nyrronmantal poligs in the 0roperty 51
forus largaly or sostamability ana chmata crange
Climate sha-ge is ore of the de’in'rg challenges
of maore s bmes

Tremaagement team hg, e souraed Cara ant resea oo

elelattlel 3]

from several oroscoers rchading the 3MO0

reestnent team MSC arc Glonal 2545 Sanchmark “or
Real Assels TORESS)

The nuaniity ann dept~ of data avalagl=2in our sector
vatlen greath e larde “ompeanis=s Doy Nays t=ams
derdinates to provacinsg cngiron nertal rmeact Sata anc
376 2l

ntly hawe 1me resoa- e 10 To 2 tabats

rennrheg Poy AT cf our companie=s

AnG GO ner o
data to oo groanisations oroudie g analy s e foe

I 2stor commurity 25 - shvong
AORT CLIMIDATY 1Ze Ndhu iy a0

TE LS e T

VLU U W

correlatons o RGN

LOTEE SImNn oUr N yestmant strateqy [2ac
fea Lsod T SIZED LCrnpantEs 1t pretaten e Ly ome
of the larger diversified ones, toe portfalics overafl ESS
seore o sht tend 12 o2 unfistten-g compared 10 the

PTe L olstaliiat s s Tole

WIS e et AL G s g U TR Brve g
Pt abl=oe e T e 1 At e AL T
LSS T oo cernents 3nd standardinatie:
data ooyasan 1moreasng oor akility (o engane wath
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Responsible investment
continued

GRESB

GRFSB s a mission diven ano imvestor led
organization oroding stancg-disec aro vahdates
FSG data tot~e capital markets Established ir
2000 GRESE now covers over USD 5 tnlhonr -eal
estate assets aublis™ing 1) a1 anrual real estate
ASsessTent seore G partCIpatng nompates,

anead a pabhe aisclosute scare for all Istad real
estate companies Trereal estate assessmert
scoe ranks sraronmert Social and Governanoe
metnes oasec orn data cantributed airectly frem
partcipating comparies, whilst the pualiz disclosu
scote evaluates the level of ESG misclosure oy iwter*
property compames and REITS

Further cetail on GRESR can he found at
WiV Gresh com

—ar P022 there s redured GRES2 Real Estate
dgsessment coverage of the Comoany s eauty
portfohio (509 from 2% We have provided
feednack to GR=S3 an a request to igentfy anc
priontise those companes i the portfolio w e gre

nat coverag uncer the Real Sstate Assassment

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity portfolic

2022

= listed German Residemhal Lomoani=Sy .

Anamaer ot
ard ror nattiapate o tre Beal ostate ASas
Ny (GRZSE recunrG datd (o 02 sulmittad at tne aseat o
oL far comoarisons of
etz agaregancn WV =Pt teat s s areasonable

aosihion Lo tace “or large apartme~t '*"‘-rt‘ﬂ\ur; a M g
darusscd Jrarges to s Zeal Larais Asuessmant watr
SRESH to patter reflect t71s aas2t -:I‘a':;s a~d enconage

narhlipatior

Sment Cug

ootlming ke sl ana

MSCI

ST ZS6 resennih nole wide rangs: of

e*-,wmrmeﬂa\ rmpact measLoes ncluding COZ2 anc

(resnrouse Gas eMISSIOTE, enargy 4nd v alar asage, 1n

additon te vader cornerate goversarae aocres Fo-ther
471 be fourd at wvew meo oo oar-solations”

sg-ratings

teohe from 337 1o 2a. S D
5 pazed on oublic data, a significart proportionr is
noluceg whereas where spec fodata has fobe
S.bnitten O, TomaT 15 rently

M.k tnirnern

Rated o 0% LR

Unrsted 50% 46%

Total oo 00% 100%

Theta L TR o eade oy bol data
ornds T s
97% 97% o B9% 99%
3% 3% 11% %
100% 00%  100% 7 100%

Source GRESE, ST B0 Goka AsselManagernent Data asat 37 03.2022. “urc exposdJre calcuiatet as the % weight of the nvestedequ™y porifc o

2021

Rated o 54%, 55% 96% 99% o 98%
Unrated o 46% 45% A% % 7% o 2%
Totat 100% 100%_ 100% WOO% oD% 100%

Sgarce GRESI, MSC 3V'C Goba AsselManagemen: Dataassi 37 032077 Fuindexposure e cuatesasthe % e ght of he mesezeguty porfolo



One area where we are sturting to see more data 15
N missiors renorting su we have tentatively begun
te map out some data below with the emphasis
being mors an diraction of travel than the aosulute
Teasures themselves Thisis also an area where we
gxpect to sge change which 1 also explained

Portfolio-weighted carbon intensity

Last year, for the first time, we disclosed, as best we
were anle to, the portfolo weighbted carbon intensity
of tne total portfolio

Carbon Risk measures exposure to carbor irtensive
companias. M3CIs defimition and calculation, with
data based or MSCI CarponMetrics, s the portfolic
welghted average of Issuer carbon intensity At the
1ssaer level Carbon intensity s the ratic of anrual
seope T ard 2 carbon emissions to annual reven.e
Carbon Risk 15 categunized as Very Low {0 1o <15],
Lows {15 ta<70), Moderate (70 to <250}, -igh 1250 to
<525) and VeryHigh (>-525)

Tre Carbon Risk of the ecuity portfolio, meas. e at
the financial vear end, was 63.3 T CO2E/SM Sales,
falling witrin the low risk MSCI category  The fund's
portfalio weighted carbon irtensity was oroadly in
ling with that of the benchrmack o 60 6

Companng against the results from last year shows
a headline ¢ 25% 1crease 1 carnon intensity for

gotn cut own eauity portfolio ard tteingex Thzre
are g rumber of reasons for this. Whilst t7e satiu 15 4
snaoshot taken at each finarcial year and reflacting
tne crarge In eguity noldings over the penod, the e s
also wides coverage of data at the 2022 financial year
ard {897 for the current year tund holdirgs worsus
829 “or the prior yeart The latest emissions data tor
each company i saptured by MSCon pubhcation of
therr cata; eact company s Aol releasirg their data
at the same poirt 56 nming aifferences will anse Tre
rano wiil also pe nmpacted by the changing val s of
5 Bales, nelucing trempanct of =X rates Howoy
within these irmitations, we can be reasonanly
confident that the Carbor Risk of the fund1zn ing
witn the wider nenchmark

I S v A B (T

T CO2E/$M Sales

70 O, . R

60 o o e

50

40

30

20

2022 2021

TR Property Investment Trust

FT3E EPRA Nareit Developed Europe Capped Index

siorder 1o attemint o grse a proture of tne diraction
af travel we nays looikea at the 1ndradual companies
tne fund holds o assess which mave mproving or
determrating carbon mtersiry metres cyver 3and 5
year Derons

Tr1s andlysis depends Lpo™ the imtegnity of te
wnaerying cata and breadts nf cata LuLerage, so
oula flag that this is a workoin prograss, but it

.
W

W
iNdicates a positize tresd 45 awaranass improves
anc: comaanies ase obliged o disulose data

3yr Syr
momentum momenturm
_ Impraving
Deteriorating
[ ] Neutral

e ST BErDd e

o cereereend ot oenon

Saource M3, BMO Clokal Asset Wanagerent. Datags a1 37.03.2022,
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Responsible investment
continued

Sorthe property sector the *oous 15 currently or t7e
anargy 2fficiercy of bu|idmgs once they are gecupiad
but we expect in time mare attertion wil be 210 1o
tecarbon emitted 10 getting them built and e
dismartled whick accounts for alarge proportic
palding's emissions over 1ts ifespan

Tre Comaany 15 committad 10 ESG as a 2oz prim uple

ang we expect toirerease the visiohity of e vano 1
SGontatives over time

We are of the view that the ESG rating mausiry and
its approach a~d praocesses s still immature with
significant imitations making it difficuls to draw true
compansons and make fully imformed decisions
The assessments from the vanous data providers
‘eann differert conclusions as they ac not all soorz
I A cOonsistent way Somea of tos atsessments are
aubjective anag crf far?m data provides have differat
d=fimtiors and criteria.

W expect this to evertually comwerge inta some

form of corsensus or standarchsation potit still nas
away 1090 Corcentually, ma<ng ESG oompans
petween comoanies and portfolios apoears simpla
but it actually -atner comolex and it s impotant
te ensore that vahd comgansons are beng mace
Asset Marace-s, Wealth Manage s arnc the irr Lst

Gateskespers areir.esting a great deal of resour -

inters area ana <orutinisirg tre data prosded moe

N0 0Lk AL 0F §TaTTTOMINGS ate ey U0 0 iAren
anctre dift
Plineln: el
agality and

nt approatres highlig-tad Thg e e
e 0 the Qala oroade s o rmar = s

clanity the £asis of tner a~alysis

O the aal

15 cadizating fesou 5
EelalcVE Iabl@ ard aiso ~az the bv.— 127

2 St ts gvears VInTIng Yesnor s

SO0

et Eietie

2 tually

Direct Property Portfolio
The tdarage st tgam ratagiss themportar
Castaratihey s bosiness aoc o tne dire
praoesty asse criwe nyest o hala atd manags
onbe-alt o oarin 07 Prooerty impacts Lpon
treerLronrent e heglte and suelloeing of
CMMLTES 10 L they G2
stuated. Spenf cissues relavant to the phys ¢
aroperty 11 sestmast aortfaho m‘-ur:e, for examole,
cesnansiple ann sustamanle reforbisnment orartines
effizient use +f resources throughaolt ther operation,
and deseyr ard s2races o sopport the realth and
wellpemng of coouoiers ana ocal commurities

D LplErs atdine

D

A= 1o qurﬂﬂ ESG it all elemients of

aTinloyee

= I Al CorTiden g
Y ting vokspase Matural

ligrt Diopnila, irmnes: fau\ =g and other mocLpier
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Tre groungwork bemg uncertasen (o furthe develop

the data management precessas and imorove data We are aware of the moa-tyaa our sapoly charr and
cuality will underpin the creation of asset sostamaoihity have turmed oar =5G stratagy way 1m which we engage
action pians N b.siress vath 3re party supphess o omolement

cur Net Cartbon Zeru goalz whilst also making pesitive
SO bGtor 1D soiely, TIMMIZING G7Y regahive Impadst

As part of cu” continuing asset managament strateqy 0N P r)plg ard tne enarcnment and to promate safe
weraview the EPUratings of all our assets to aen M\: ancd a1 war kmq conditors and the resoonsible
opporturities o imprave tne EPC rating or re lettng of man Jf,]t mert of seaial etbeal ard environme~tal

LNIts or engagement with occupiers 1o undertake viors SN0 Our Auodly char
T381 T pyposue to EPC nsk has been well managed

with every aoplicable UK property having a valid F=0

rating To future-proof the partfolio, the Maragers This year we hase completad the review of oar
Sustamatulity and Somal Responsibifity Committes has sustanability pronties anc material 1ssues Akey
establisned a target to achieve a minimurm EFC rating recommendation regarding one of Ihogse matanaliss_es
of D for all planned refurbishments and upgrace works Chmate Change Adaptaticr and Mitigation, was to Stdrt
tCthe portmho, We ackrowledges the shift towaras a e journey towards net zero carbon and assess its
rinimLm £PC grade of B by 2030 feasioility This s a key cnaltence facing the “eal estate

sectar with many comparies beginnimng to publsk ther
cwn et zero carpo” pat~ways Arelated 1Ssu2 15 Lo

GRESE and our use of data from GRESE has been develop our reportirg under the Task So-ce on Climate-
descrined on page 34 For 2022/23 the Company will oe related Firancial Jisclosares recommendaticns We haye
submitting fund data to GRESB for benarmar<ing against recognised that te develop our net zero carbon pathviay
its peers. 2022/23 will oa the first berchrmarking year fo- we vall ~eed to pattne with a thied party speciahst, and
the Trust's property portfolic ang we are targeti~g anrual are currenthy workirg througr the selection process We
improvements in the GRESB score on our direct porticlo intend to define our net zero ta-bon pathway and targets

Ir e with the Better Bulldirgs Partnership framework
(Social) Occupier Engagement during the course of this yaar

The Trust recognises that despite many sustarmabihity
related actrities bemng devolved to tenarts it still ~as 4
duty to influence their behaviour Through our Pands on By order of the Board
manaygement aoproact we seek 10 oro-act) r\y 2rgage David Watson
witn ooruplens and explore ways in whimn we

an suppocrt, e~courage and potentially ir sest i therr
ESG-related objectives

(Governance) Operational Performance

Wieare, in partneship with our bulaing aoyisers
establisni~g ar E3G fooused reforoiskrment cnecklist
Iz will provade a set of guidelines (o ansuqe our

=furbishment pocess and refu-tished baldirgs m-et
U“e anpropridte 2n wr)r‘mpn[a\ social and gouernnrs
standards bosed o~ the scope ard type Of refurmsmeant
wor<s beirg undartaken Tre Trust raz alreany
commitied toall majar refurbish ne~ L projects oeing
grounded in Performance by Design at ae/elnnsa by the
Better Bulcings Partrersip

OLroccdpers ascount foriee mapnnty G the Sn-rgy
orsUmDton of DT Soleings  nrenogrition that
to nattaes with our oooupiers, (
Green _euse toalkit for ali ~ew es Trisim olesterant
education irto the nenefit Lo working Togetne 10 ecuce

anorgy ard water consumption as well werste genematon

e
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' Directors

Board diversity David Watson Kate Bolsaver

Appointed: Appointed:
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Sarah-Jane Curtis

Appointed:
January ZU

Experience:

Seran-Jane s a termber of the Ruyal
natitution af Charterad Surveyors St
was orey ausly Businass Girectgrat
Boectarllage for Value Retal Prior
wthat, Serak-Jane was a director of
Coronl Garden for Capital and Counties
2L she has aisnveorked for Grosvenor
for#4yearg, including as Lorder Estate
Carortor (retanl, residental) and Fana

tAarager farh verpoalONE

Skills and contribution to the Board:
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Simon Marrison
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Managers

B

Marcus Phayre-Mudge Jo Elliott

Varzus Phayre-Mudge jomed tne maragemeant tedn for Jo ENiott has been Firance tdanage” since 1935 frg
the Company at tHenderson Global I~ restors in Jantary Hende sor Global Investors then, since January 2005,

Dapnal wihen

L ulTen enns

shajoimee as

1987 mitally maragimg the Company's airect oropeity
portfolin anc fatte-ly focusirg on ceal estate
Managing 4 rumoe” G° UL a~d nan Ewrmpean real estats
=Coty funds e aaction to actiales mthe Trast Wi

Quities,

TWOET Tz 2y

Ylanagar vt

Moved to Trames Rizer Caotal i October 20070 4
15 alse furc manager of Taames River Property 1ot e trat

tm=nt tr

cLome Fund omites Pniot togorring Hende son lar oy ar
wias anin sestment surceyor at <might Franko 1990
©.a35 made an Asscciats Partner e tng fune manags
aivision ( 1995). Me qualified as a Chartered 5u- . eyor i pfh Ere ot & Faung o 19
1992 and has a 850 14arsiin _a~a Marageme-t from

Headitg Uriiersity

.l ‘

George Gay Alban Lhonneur
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial staterents
of tme Graup and the Company and thedr Strategie Report
anc Report of Jirectars for the year endead 31 Marcn
2022 TreGroun comprises TR Proserty Invastment
Trust plc and its wholly owned subsidianes As permitted
by legizlatior, some matters normally msluded m
the Repart of the Directors Fave beenincluded in the
strategic Report bocause the Board consids
be: of atrategicimportarce Tharefore the regigw nf the
Lsmess of the Company, recent everts and outlosi o
pe found un pages * 1o 37,

Status

The Company is an investment company, as definedin
Section 8323 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
aninvestment trust in accordance with Seaction 1158 of
the Carporation Tax Act 2010

The Company nas a single snare class, Ordirary smares,
mtk anocminal value of 25p each whick are orermmiurr
Isted on the Londor Stock Exchange

The Company has recerved confirrration from HM
2averce & Customs that it has peen accepted as an
approved Investment trust for accounting peninds
commencing on or after 1 Apnl 2072 subject 1o tha
Company continuing to meet the ehgibihity conditions of
Section 1158 Corporaticn Tax Act 20710 a~d the ongoirg
requiremeants for approved companies 11 Chapter 3 of
Fart 7 Investmeant Trust {(Approved u'rruaf“ﬁj i Tad)
Requtations 2071 {Statutory mstrument 2011/ 2959)

The Directors are of tre opinion that the Company hias
sorducted anc vall contimue to corduct s affars so as
to martam investment trust status The Company ras
also co~ducted s affairs, ard will cortinue to condaut
s affars i suce away as to comply vato the Incvidual
Saw:r‘gs Accounts Regulations The Jromnary snares car

e held in Iraradual Savings Anngunts HiSAs )

R TVEL AN & PRI R

AT 31 Y arch 20727 the rel ass
amo.nted 1o £ 1,562 mithon
petshare batis 492 23p 2021 A17 G7p. per sha'e

ets of th2 Domosiy
027 £3 326 rmulhinar; a4

Seyen e egroings per srare for (me year amountso b
13459012021 12 25p) and the Directors recomme1
tre pavment of a final dividerd of 9.20p (2077 9.00p;
per snate oreging te total drardend frr tre yegs to
14003120121 14 ZJ_JJ narrrd-g at ther diasara
oropnsal, the Beard also reviees the mcoma

o tee yanr to Marns

BT RIS

AL g e nneat s e magnys T

Performarces defals are sstoutin the Fimancial Highhghts
o auaga 7 and treautceme ¢f what the Directors consider
o o the Key Performarez Indicators onnages 24 ana 25
The Sbarrman's Statemert ard the Managers Repott grvs
full detanis and aralyses o tre resalts for tne year

ot ISR L L E R
AT A e Compary had 3717 350,980 12021
20/ Yoshares in s

At the A(“.M N 22T e Directors veere giier povee” o Doy
back un to 4 fw]’ Pl ’?rcwrurv shares Sirce that AGM the
Directors Pave not bougnt bac< any Crdinary shares under
that authonty, which will expire at the 2022 AGM The Board
will seex to renaw the aut~anty 1o maxe market purchases
of the Company's Ordinary shares at tris vears AGM

Since 1 Apnt 2027 Lo tre date of this report, the Zompany
has mane no market porchases tor canacllanon The
Board has not set a specific discourt at which shares wilt
be repurhasad

= rangements and fees

Detals of the managemert arrangemenrts a~d fees are
set out in the Report of the Management Zngagemant
Committee beqmning on page 52 Total fees naid (o the
M']r‘;lqer N ANy One year <’Ma'1agemer1[ and Performarce
51 may not exceed 4 50° of Groua Eguity Shareholders'
nas Total fees pavable fortre vear to 31 March 2077
amownt 1o 2 07,2027 1 751 of Group Zauty Shareralees
Fards oncludedin this weere performance fees earmea

o' t*‘nyrgar ended 31 Narnn 2027 of £24, 030000 (2021

£45 /50 000;

PManay=n
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The Group and Company financial staterments fo the
Z027 wave beer proepar=ad or g

yEa” endeg 31 Mygen
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nteaticnal aoeounting stars drdP ardincorforrity vtk
e racuiremeant (*fthe pOl"!’WDdﬂlf—?S cL 2006, The Fnancizl
staterments Payve U0 neen prenared 1N rnore: s Wit
the Statomeant of Qecorrirmend “ractioe Firanoia
Statements of nyestment Trost Comoanies ard Yentore
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Report of the Directors
continued

Wt L han
“entos

ablimts connkeral ¢
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Frnancial instruments Company toesta
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T Tre anare T

Tre Coenpary's Firancial Instroments 2ormipaiss s mofean the

investment pertfolo, cash oalarces, DoOr Gwing

It
repetis reeled fromits po e
N

cebtors and creditors trat anse diractly fromits cneranon: satin®y 11oe tre sgete
uck as sales and purchases awaliting setlerment proft
o7 loss palances on noryative inst-uments and acor.ad T Board nas 23tashs-ed a o
income and exoensaz The fnancial fisk maragemenr? woaloating atd manadiog any ik
oz ectes and palicies ans'ng from s inarc aI SIS NICRR ! JannuAal re e, IR

Imstrurnents and exposute of the Campany to sk arz Batem of Rk managament g nterral conteal 7 fire
dis ed innote 17 to the finarcial statements. wath the Tureosll guizarte Business nsks ha e also peen
acalysec oy 112 Boa and ~ecorcen in ansk map toal
Rizk management and internal control 5 e tevec reqularly Lach quatter the Board racelees 3
The Boara has overall responsibility for toe Group's svystem formal reaostfrem 2ach of the & B Sortfolio Manager
of risk managemenrt and iInternal cortol and for revievng the Adrmi=ist-ator anas the Company Seoretary detaling

ilares crarrars.

its effzctiveness Tne Portfolin Marage” 1s resoorsible any identifizc imterral cortrol
for the day te dav imvestmeant management decisio=s

peralt o the Group Accounting anc Compary Se
Serenos P e DOt geen sutsourted tra e terac hion Bty 28 :
fruls e rlq el

The Boarc aiso con:

a1

The system of ns< marage nent and 1ntermal ~ontrs COrmnlatemess ot the me oo LT 1
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safeguardec propser qecodnting records are maintanes, weiting Gutihe <8y
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n.e 4 AT R
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Listing Rule 9 3 4R

The Company confrms that thare are hoitems woien
renquire disslesure ander Listirg Fule 9 8 AR respect
of the year erded 31 March 2022

Voting interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applcanle statutes and otner snareholders nghts,
shares may be saed witn sucr nghts a~d restrictiors as
the Comnany may by ordimary resolution deciae, or {if thee
is no such resclution or so far as it dees not make specific
provision) a5 the Board may deciae Sunject to the Articles
of Associatior (the Articles) the Companies Act 2006

and otner snareholders’ ngets, unissued shares are at the
disposal of the Board

Voting

At a gereral meeting of tne Compary, wne voting
15 undertaken by way 0f a poll, each shae affords
Its owner one vote

Restrictions on Voting
~o member shall be entitled 1o vote f he has been served
with a restnction notice (as aefined in the Articles) after

fallure to provide the Company with information concerning
Interestsin those shares required 10 De provided wnder the
Comnoparies Act 2006

Deadlines for Voting Rights

Votes are exercisable at a general meeting of the ompany
irrespect of which tne business beng voted upon 1s 02ing
neard Votes may De exercisec N persan, by 07oxy, o i
relation to corporate members, by corporate represestafives

3

The Articles provige a deadline for sunmission of 27oxy forms
of notless than 42 hours (o such shorter trme a3 the Board
may determine) before the meeting (nct exctuaing nor-
WOrking cays)

Transfer of Shares

Any shares i1 the Company may ne neld in uncertif cated
form ard, sabject 1o the Articles, ttle to uncertificated s7ar=s
may oc transterred by means of a elevart system Suljsor
totne Articles, any mermbes miady transter all or any oF Fig
certif cated shares by an instrurent of trans’er nary sual
torrnnmin any other formm which the Roare may anprose

Annat e Ao v

Significant Voting Rights

AL March 2022, re sharsbelders beld over 37, of votirg
Igts or a diseretiorany basiz However e fellovang
sharenolders neld over 370 o the votimg nghts e a nan
discretionary asis

g% of voting rights*

Shareholder

Brewin Dolphm Ltd 10.5%
Retail Investors - UK 9.3%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services B8.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 5.8%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 55%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management | td 3.7%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.6%
Charles Stantey Group plc 32%
Smith & Williamson Investment Managers 3.0%

* See above for further information on the vating rights of Ordinary shares.

Siee 31 March 2022 o tne date of this ~eport, the Carmpary
has not peen infoermed ot any notifiable changes with respect
to the Ordinary snares

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Assomation may anly be
amendad by a special resolution at a General Meetirg of
the sharerolders They werz amended at the 2021 AGM
and are ayallatle 1o view or our website

Corporate Governance

=l detais are given in tre Jurporate Govenarne Reoot
or pages 16t 51 Tre Copurate Gosernarce eport
forms nart of to1s Dirsctors Repord
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Corporate Governance report

T2 Board of Directors 1s aocountable to sharenclders

for e goverrance of the Companya @ fars Tan
statenert descnbes how the prirciples of the 2015
UK Corporate Sovernarce Coce (the Code ) |3mrd
by the Finaraial Reporting Council (the 'FRCY in 2074
Fave been apohec 1o 112 afairs of tre Compary The
Code can be viewao at wyww £00rg L

Application of the AIC Cade’s Principles

In applying the prinziple o the Code, the Directors have

also ta<en account of the 2019 Code of Corporate
Governance publisnac oy the AIC (the AIC Code)
of which the Company 1z a member The AID Code
establishes the framework of best practice specifically
for the 3oards of investrment trust companies
=urthermore the AIC Cede has full endorsement
of the SR whinn mears that AL members wno
repart againat the A
chhigatinns under the Code and tne relatec ciscles
recLrements contared 17 the Listirg Rules The AL
Code can oe y1iewet at iy thears oo Lk

Is

CiZode on the wnole, mest Trgs
e

Tre Diresturs belivve that cuning tha year under reo
the Company has ~cmplied witn tne main principles
and relevart provisions of the Code insota- as tr
apaly o tne Company's business, and witn the
prasions of the A8 Coce

Compliance Statement

Tre Directs s note that tre Gomoany did =0
st the follovang p'o A5167s of tre Lode in tre
e 31 are

-~ 2

:3 etethe narure and straotr

AT

R

ELNBIR NI
all ot

Composition and Independence of the Board

The Boarg currenily ors 515 of fue Trectors, all of
w1 IOEFal rdence,
N e SN T D0t Tonsideras
aeil 375 ars asemed o be ndegsrdente
Sraracten and taLe ne relatienstuns o srcamstanmes
srcrars ey 1o a "E:“I thewrpd-;emeﬂ

*"gfﬁewmg Drrentoms gncdld not
bie preserted from ‘orming ,Jdrl ofan~cepsrc em
majeity Itcoes not consice t2af the lergth ,
4 Jirentor's tenure, 10 \solam-ﬂ reduoes hisor hef

abihty to actirgeoencently Toe Board's oohey
on ternure s that 2ontiruty arg expenerce adn
sigrificantly ta tre strangth of the Board although
e Boata bele,es o the mants ot ar ongoirg ana
SRalshT IS

-

oregne resbment ot it
Diversity

The Board "ecognesas the beref- of
A% attredate ¢t sla}oie WAl atek
anc B0 WOTIET DSty 1S 1aken oI ol oLt as
rart Af the ra s uit e 2000 P T AN Su T2 35000
olanrimg o tesy ana s 2ean

stirenove

T noAT, T e gt
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Directors Board comimiiiees

There weare 1o changes o the Board of Direclors in = Board bas astablsheg an Audit Commuittes,
the year urde eview The Directors’ biographies are A Normimation Commitieas and a Maragement

set out on pages 40 and 41 In accordance with the sngagement Jummitiea wrich alse carnes out
Code, all Directors are sabject to annual re-election the functons of a Remuneratior Committes All
Therefore all Directors wall retire at tne forthooming 1~ Jirectors of tne Camgcany are non-executive
AGM In aceordance vath tne Code and. being anrd ze~2 onearn Committe: of the 3card [t has
eligible, with the exceptior of Mr Marniaon, will offe- aoeen the Company's poliny tomclude all Directors
tnemsaeives forre election M- Marrsen will stand v all Committees Trs ercourages umity, clear
duwi~ from the Board at tne corclusior of tre AGYW commuricanon and avorts dophcatior af discussion
and the Board has arnounned tat Andrew Vaochin betveen the 3oara asd tho Dommitiees

will be appomntea wath effect from 1 August 2022 to

succead him The roles ard ~esponcibilities of each Committee

are st out in the mdivideal Cormmitlee reports
whien follow BEach Committee has written tarms
of reference which clearly define its responsibilities
and dubies Theze can 2e foond on tne Company's
website, are avatlable on eguest and will alse e
avallavle for msosstion at tne AGHK

Board mestings

Thne aumber of meetings of the Board and Committzes held dunng the year under review, and the attendance of
ncracual Directors, are shown pelow

Board - Audit MEC Nomination

Attended Eligible Attendéd Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible

David Watson 6
Tim Gitlbanks 6
Simon Marrison 6
Kate Bolsover 6
Sarah-Jane Curlis 8

feri o s BN o 0 o]
NN NN
R R NN
O O
o d

Inadcition to formal Board and Committee meefings, the Directors alao attand a ~umoe- of informal meenngs 1o
raoresent the irterests of tre Company anc to discLss oneational ma=ets anm sucossans olansing

T B ard assat allocane s arg i astnant and geanng imits
Tne 3card 1s responsiole for the efective stewardship of the witrin which (e Fortiolio Ylanages has diserenion
Company's atfairs Certare strategic 1ssues are momtonzd [0 4L and I7US SLROrInes Ir2 Matagement of

by tme Board at meetings agarst a frameawork «ich ras s ryestmgnt oot foho wher s contractaally
beer agreed with tre Manages Additional mesings miy
b= ararged as raquired The Board ras a “ormal achedule

aoated 1 the Port-oho arager

of matters saoacifically reserved for its dec’sion whicr are (e 3oard »a s respersibiliy for tee aporoyal o
nategoises under vanous Teadr Gy, including strategy, IrEstments 17 grauotad 17 estiments and any
e e g o Meestments T Punns mManagss or adssec by the
controls, geanrg, assat allonaton, share price gigcount Foitfolio Manages Thas ales adeated a prosedue
contracts, imvestrrent policy, Fnance, sk, investrrant for Lrsotors 1in tre fotha ot trer duties 10 take

. z

eatnctiors, performanre, corporate governante anc 30ar Iizependent profen uoral g,
nembershin and appontments e oy ey

AU TTe oADRT S O

sor i,
el

I~ order to eratsde tharm Lo discharre ther rast
all Diretors nas 2 full ano urmely access 1o rs
irformatic™ Al eath meehng, the Board review:, th-
Companv's myvestment perfermaneg ana 207 SIgers
financial analvees and ntrer reports of zn cperatioral
natere The doad monitos comphance wath tre
Tompary 2 obijectives anc s respansible for sothog
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Corporate Governance report
continued

Conflicts of interest

hine with the L.Grnp&“\@“ Act 2006, the Boars

Fas the power to agthanse any potential conficts
of IMterest that May anse and mpose sach Imits
ar conditions &as 1t thins fit. A register of ootertial
confilcts is maintained and is reviewed at every
scard mMe2ting to ensure alf aetails are keot up to
cate Appropriate adthorsation will be sougnt onor
1o the appointment of any naw Director orif any
rev conflicis anse.

Relations with shareholders

Shareholder relations a e given high prionty oy

the Board, tne Al=M and tne Portfolic Manager

Tnz prirme medium by which the Company
amimuricates with sharenclaers is through

the —alf Year and Annaal Reports whick aim

to provide shareholdes with a clear understarding

Of tie Camaany's activites and ther resuft"}

Thes imformation 15 supplemented by by

calsulation of te et Asset Val e of thc Tum“] I

Ordirany shares swien s publishec on the Laoraen

Sterk Exchange

Thisitormation s also avalable on the Company '
el ae, wyn TTproperty com tougeiner with a
montnly factstest and Manager commentay

s e mtentior of the Boarg tat the Anmua Ry

and Anaouris and Notice of the AGM oe 15520 1;
srarehaldors 2o a5 1o orovide at e
antice of tre AGM Sha=rolcers wise
Taestiors 1 adarne of tha AN O
100 Al any other TJJ’WQ ATC Nt
st b the C
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Stakeholder Group and why Board engagement

they are important

Shareholders

Snarsnolder supnort s The Compary Pas over 3000 Sharraiders, s odeg nobiuteons and reta™ investors The

NG 1O The existenee Board is oorr o iles 1o i 05N g cpen charnes o cormens nicanior and o eng Nl
af the Company and Shareholders noarranmer Ihﬂy fird m:; maeanng uf irorder "o gair an unders tandlrg of
dervery of long terr therr views Trens relude e chn neis selos

straleqgy of the busiress . .
oy + Annual General Meeting - Thel TP DT Jer surages attendance ard

sartzipalion rom searshnlders . Oeedeare b the FORRO Ty T e thie
Derer lors ano Mangg=r and drene Juzanbiom s Lo e drectiy Tne Munager atlerds e
AGM gra provi apressn S ot O foyrrr e and the | alure oot oos

Tr o Corrpany viloas any faadra kand questicrs i may recaies from Shareholders ahoad

of and during the AGK &g nikes Gobion or mases chuynges when ard as apprepriale:

 Publications - T2 anrua and raif year regaris are made 2 ab 2 or the website an
sent Lo shareholdars These publizations arowce rlormeatior g0 the Company ard ils
portfolio of imvestrments and a better arderstanding of the Trust's financial pesiton. Thig
15 supplerme~ed by daty publica nr of the NAY nnthe 51 Exchange and rrorinly
factehesls on tha Company's »oeRite Dne Corrpany 1o nper o feedogchk frorm searakolders
O mproe s puoheationrs

270 Miests T Snarenoiiers cenodiog y ana e and

Shareholder meetings - "= %
feegback io shared wilnine Boord

Working with the Brokers - Tt ﬁ'—Jqu ard Br, =ra vk agener 1o ma riasn Jaalogus
with shamshaliders and prospeciiez inyestors ot sooedu e meeifigs Tne Board Jeid
wath reguiar wodaies al m=elings anc outsice meaungs § reguired

i

Shareholder concerns — In [ v 1nat sharehaiders weish 10 rase Rauss or CorTerm.s
wolh the Goard, they ate we come to 105 30 &t any bme by wri ~y U the Cha'rman gt the
reqisterad office The ‘:em.- rindspandant - Sirestor is also asalable to E‘r‘a'eﬁoldﬂrs if trigy
have concerns that conta 1 IPrough the rorma’ hanrel o o= Charman has falzd w
resolve or for wir b such 2ontad D inaporopnats

The Manager
Jem s ra e Aas ke
Long-terrm ety inane
S0 tae sollazoralion s

moee arad ety

Halding the Company's Ma ntainng a close and o rmru-’lw S Jr«\r‘q P ur s
shares offe=sir ‘ Board ano te i : AnELE L 4T
louid myesirmert vehis with the Comozny s inveshmear L ob =ot e MTU,: 1
through which they car the Manager, repreczalatios sl ibe Camn .
ohtain exposure to the
uampﬂnysdw :rgified

T

Caoeye gl oy times

A

*Encouragirg ooern, orest g
space fomongiratard mngeaive ek ng

worifolo Tre ineestmeant
Manages peformunce & < Cnsunng thar the mpget or e Kana: STy Tordere g Lrdersrome nefure gy
el for ks Comos hasiness gems’'on 8 rad-

ceosly de _ )

mon: shratany and - Ensuning that any ootential aorflicts of interes ave ave ded 21 rmanaged effectivaly
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External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and
the Broker

Arange ol advisers The Bragrd regirtae 5 =0 ar o
=nables the o p 1y e redarting ro beern througn che B
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Corporate Governance report
continued

Stakeholder Group and why Board engagement

they are important

Lenders

Avallabii

yof funding ard

o lake
vestriant

Regulators

slatutnny abil galiors and
rNanTe Jecisons
i gr-term

L a L regul
TR le il

The Company can orly Tne Bogrd regu arly a7 12 s
ape st ibe agproval folwwes volyrtary and © :
of 1tg regaaalons who ng e makes can have 20 mpe. ton LS akebarmars
timate nterest n how

the Company oparaies

rothe marka! ana treals

sharenolders

=

D51 N ETE SRR and i Thi

Investee Companies

Porifoly

S LaNles e

£ ol ard il nale
sara 1o tre cther equirements o sectior 1

of 3na-ds deqision-na<arg process 1ne
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IO Br One
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sacression plar. Simon Marason waill stand dowr Trorm the
Baard at the conclusior of the 20122 AGM anc will be =placea
by Andrew Vacgbar with effect from 1 ALgust 2022

Culture and business conduct

The Boardisin agreernent that having a goud corporat=
culture, particularly ir s engagement with the Manager,
snareralders and other key stakehotders will i celivery

of itsiong term strategy The Board promaoctes a cufture

of cpenress, Inlire with this purpose trcegh ongong
engagement witn 1ts service providers and the Manager 1ne
Directors agree that establishing and mairtainicg a healthy
corporate c.ifure within the 8oard and In ils interactior

with the Manager, shareholders and other stakehulde s vill
suppart tre defivery of its purpose, values ard strategy The
Board seeks to promote a culture of openness, debate and
integrity threugh ongoing dialogue and engagement with

Its service providers, principally the Marager The Boars
strives to ersure tnat 1ts culture is mine witn the Comoay's
purpose, values and strafegy

The Company has a number of palicies and prosedures In
place to assistwith maintaining a culture of gooe governance
Including those relating to diversity, Directors’ conflicts of
interest ana Directors’ dealings in the Company's shares The
Board assesses and monitors compliance with these polinies
as well as the general culture of the Soard regularty trrough
3card meebings and 1 particalar gurng tne ann.al evaluatics
process wnich 15 undertaken by each Drector (for more
irformation see the Boa-d evaluation section on Dags 52)

The Board seeks to appoirt the best possinle servre
providers and evaluates thel- service or a -egular pasis as
descnibed on sage hd The Board considers the Culturs of tre
Manager and other service providers, Including trelr poiles
oractices and oebaviour, through regular reporti-g fFfom
these stakeholcers and in particular cunng the an-ual

revieys of tne performarce and contiruing appomirnert

of all service providers

Tl e e L TRIG T T s e .
The Boara rzcogrises the recuirement ander the Compamie s
A1 2006 to cetail information about human rights,
employees ard communty 1ssues meluding infe s matoe
about any policies it ~as in elation 1o 1rose matters an

the effectiveress of those polinies  These reg arems~ts
practically, arerot apphoable to the Sompary a5 1t va
enployees all tre Directors ae non exec tive 2
OUtSOLT e T
provicers | rerefare the Company has N0t repoten furine»
respent of these proy

SNt

PR P R

- T . : *

srutg and Off cerg’ hab ity nsurance coveris ©
olace 1 respest oF the Directors The Sompany's Artzles
of Azsociation provide, subject to ine provsio s of L
legislation, aviraemnity for Direntars e respes tot st

Arrnal Fepos S ennta PR

wrich teay mayirear relaling o trodefence of any
procesdings Broudnt aganet thoermn ansing out of ther
oSt o3 DIrators, 1N ieh ey are acaudiac or
Fuour by the court

Judgement 1z gree o ther

Tothe extent parmitted By law a7d by the Company™s

Arte les ol Assorianon, the Tompany has enterad irto ceeos
of ingemnity for tre benzfit ot each Director of the Cornpany
I~ resoelt of labilites whicr may attach to thermn trer
Sapauity s Directors of the Company These provisionrs
which are cual®ying third 2ty midermnnty Drowisions a3
defired by saction 234 of the Companies Act 2006, were
introduced i January 2007 and cur-ently rernain in foree

Dwactors statamiant as to disclosure of
informanion to the Audaor

The Directors who were memaars of the Board at the tirme
of approwvng the Dirertors’ Repart are istec o pages 40
and <17 Having rmade engatas of fellow Dimctcrs anc of the
corpany’s Aucicor eacn ' the Directors confirms that:

- 50 faras they are aware, thereis ~onfornation of which:
t=a Company's Aacitor s uraware: and

- gaun Jirector nas taker all tne steps trat they cught to
hive laken as a Director to make themsalves aware OF
any relevant acdit information and to estabhsn that e
Crrnpany's Auditon s aware ot tnat information

[=is nfrormation 15 gieer anc s~ ould beinterpreted in
accordaroe vatt the provisions of Section 418 of the

Comparies A0t 2 9‘, ‘ i ,

By order of the Board
BMO Investment Business Limited
Company Secretary
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Report of the Nomination Committee

an gartielarly or the Boarc's

t C reappoiniment
[f'r»v\ 2pbian of Simoe Mansa il
Lt ra-election at the farthearning AGK
ff@d I’Wdrwaw nef rem nent re election by

MNomnation Committes

Chairman: David Watson len.

woy rezponstbiiities .
+ Review tne Board and its Commitlees and make 15 20m3l
recommeangations in relation to structa2, s1ze anc shacemolzers Fustranirforpation or each Dime 2ton s

Lompositice the balance of <nowlenge expericnae sty waoetencs ard thar contnLhion to tre Sodanrd are

ar sxill -arges auth™=C7 tre BIagras™ies 50 pages 1
+ Carsider succession plane mg andtenure coliny anc i W the proainns of the Code 1t s the
oyarsee the dﬂ,mlop'nwm of a crierse pipehne |“1"”I|L‘" af e Board 1o engage an extenal facilitator to

stttk the perfarnance e saluation every threa vears
aluation will be carnsd out for

3 The Boars wilt contirye
cation arnaally 1~ the

- Consider the re-alection of Directors; anc anc the next exier~gl 2
e y2ar enql 'wq 31 Pfia"h ZL 2!

- Revievethe outoeme of the boare evaluation orocess

Fne Nomiration Committes micets at legst aoroally
and more Frﬂﬂueﬂtlv as ard when raguitec 47d last

.

metin March 2022 S rate UoLer-ase it

e o = e selation o) Imert
ref ecting novs the, di*er so chairs ot coeratng
ahief exacut e

SOOTEaTy dgTing the goar

T
g

£ e Boars doe L ot ng

aa Comimitter disousses sy croolancing ¢ftre Mss :
card its tenure and arerSity pohrss Troe Comrmutt Tre Boars took inte Lonsideratisr tro anprzart g

re s arrually the size and <tructure of tne Boao sedits Poly Doverning Board “Jlzambers Tesors arnd
sl continue to regsys sun ut‘\"é‘% the- BLaa's ann oach
e raitment, taking into a Lt SirzoTors f
of Board evaluatiors Tthreugh Lostinuty

e,

9~—1r potent T oolie:

MAS T Sl

LD (RialY
e el tal It 23l e An0 onnata 1o set
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Directors traming

VWhen a new Directer s appointed, he-she s offerad
tranming to st therr needs Directors are also proviaed
with key information on the Compary's actrati=s or
aregular basis, including regulatory and statutary
requiremeant s and inte-nal controls, Changes affecting
Drrectors’ responsibiities are advised to tnhe Boara a3
they anse Mirectors ensura that they are updated on
egulatory, statutory and industy matters

Letters ot appoimtment

o Director nas a contract of employment with

the Company Directors’ terms and conditions for
apoomtment are set out in letters of appoint nent whice
are available for inspectior at the registered office of the
Company ana at the AGM

David Watson

Soal Hepar Ao pea g e
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

‘M”ag pent engagemant erding 371 Mo
mimittee ithe MEC ahdreh sldars A comrrary of the signficant tesrms

P ooeing in the oestintzrents of o

Chairman: David Watson frane ment ard tne thre
2871y 3 i ¢ are
way responstbiiities cet ot

Y “mto" and review tre pe-forrmanze of 102

WER ann 2arttohia Manacer, year tne MEC also ey

of all trer trard party serv 12 provide s

- Reanaw theterms of the Investnent il qu 52 2anbas, Curm pule ﬂam“:, ArD actiryg
Manage- Agreement: Cormpan, Seeratary soth firms of corporate arckers

andd Pooas tacadvisors) Tha ~ertfolio Manager

Arnually reviev the contract of terms anc provides regular apdates on toe oerfarmarce of all
agreements of each external third party trird party orovaders Cuning the yeas and attended this

service provide” and part of the I/EC Meeting, "he MEC confirmed that it
was sanshieg with the level of sarvices delivered by
+ Review on an anrual basis, the remoreratior sank thirc party prode”
ot the Directo s

L C e e e e e P P
PR T - 3 3 S A e

I acoites o nvestnent maragenent, the Boasd ~as In 11 Juby 2074 the 2oa7d apsomied BMVD Investm-nt
celegated to external third parties tre depositary arc Buziness rited e tre Comnany's Alternatl. e
zastodial seraces fwhien ude the sa‘egaading crdacoe sttt
assets) tne day to day ascoanting, company r.Irvmn
retanal sensces adnimistration and sha
reqistration servnes Ealh of trese ncontrants was Av2SHMart kA

ed tot-s
/e Lapital L_P

manacemeant cele
~ag=r, Thamea

S0 IRl SeleTely

acterac ~to after “ult and croper congideransn of re
auality of tna services ofeen inclung 17e cont 2t Thesigniicart termis of e Incestmert Managemer!

systensn ope’atlor“ 1saar as they relate to e Agregnent itk tre Plargger are an olloes
a‘faw’c of tne Compary The PMEC detarmires 373
/et D stors fo TR AL TN oA Ll OO e A

Directors (N the 1mc sty

= 3 wutr
gererally, the role trat individeal Direstors fulfilin
respent of Board ard Comim \T‘rre 'rbp' alites s par ooz atine

255 tman "D marr aiter

atbzastane gl touaras tng sy

il
)

t-e firarcial ,=ar a1c last m=t in Ma-ch 2

| B
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A performance fee s payadlo f the toral return of
adjusted net assets (ater ceduction of all Base
Management eas and other expenses), 4s dafined
Inthe IMA at 31 March each year cutoe-forms tne
total return of the Comoany's benchmark plus 17
ithe hordle rate’); this outperformance iexpressen
as d percentage’ 1s known as the percertage
outperformnance’ Any fee payable will be tre
amourt eculvalent 1o the adjusted net assets at

31 Maree each year multiplied oy the percentane
outperformarce, thon multiphed by 157, The
maximum Derforfnan ce fes pavable for a perioc 1s
capped at 1 5% of the adjusted net assets Howeyer,
it tne adjusted net assets at the end of any penod
aredess than at the beginring of the penod. the
maximum pesformance tee payable will be lImited
to 1% of the adj.sted net assets

Ifthe total returr of snareholders’ furds for any

performance penod s less than the benormar«

for the relevant performance penod, such
nderperformance fexprassed as a percentags; will

be carted forward to future performarse parinds

f any fee exceeqs the cap, such excess performane
{exprassea as a percentage; viill be carmed
forward and apohed to offset any percentage
Jnderoerformance in future performance perioss
[ the event that the benchmark 1 exceeded 5.7
the hurdle 1s not, that ouipe-farmance of the
berchmark ca~ pe usea to offsat past o futue
underperformance Thess amounts car be Ler “or
2ffget ourooses only and therefore cannot haws tre
effert of creatirg a fee 1n a yea- where a fee ywold
rot otnzrwise be pavable or 1ncreasing the f2e rh.;n
year At 31 Marcn 2022 there s a cary forw
outpe-farmance of 1 9% (2027 1473

el

P e s AR R T T
Ona \In ember 2071 BMOD's asset management

Cusiress 1 Eumope the Midale Fast and A5

became part of Columtia Trreadresale itvestmont s,

the global asset maragement Dusiness of
Amernise Firancial, ing The omcess of ittegnng
tre two firmns s progress ng and both companies
rave confirmedg the importance of mannTairmq te
stabiity ang contiruity of the leans ok roppet
e UI’TW,_) ANy

O R
AN Parma; WA anpointen as Jepoaitary o”
14 July 20714 in zencrdanca v th the AIFM 0.
Tae Depositary™ wsporsiohties (mo iz a0
monitonng segregation and safe kecoing of th=
Cor"pa“wy‘*—? finarcial mistruscents; and mos’larieg
th= Comoany's 2ermohianse wits investimeant g0+

|'i‘a'? Az enalrermner iy The Jenagitary reoelse”

for its services a fee of 2 0 basis pomts oer an-um
on the first £150 milhon of the Company's assels,

| pasis points per an.m o ansets abose £150
ilior and gelow £500 o~ and 75 nasis oomts
s abowve £500 muthon

CLstody ara Agommistratien Setvices are prosired
oy BNP Panbas a-d Jompany Secrelaridl Services
oy DM Investment Duaress Dimited  Toe fees for
thasa servizes are charged directly to the Company
and are cortared within ofaes adrministrative
axpensas disclosaed in notes to the auoounts

David Watson
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

fntroduntion
Tre Board has preparcd this report ana tne Dirertars
Zemuneraton Policy 1 accordance witn the

requirements of Schec_l2 3 of tre Large ard Medium
Sized Compames and Groups (Actourts and Reports,
Reqgulatiors 20013 A- ordinary resolutior for tne
approzal o’ this report will Be put to tha membes at =
foartheomimg Anaual Gereral Meeting

[Fe lows requires the Company's Audnor, KPMG L LP
to audit certain of the cisclasures provided Woers
crsclosures have beenaucited, they a“e ndinated
as such The Auditor's opimior s ircluded in the
Irdependent Auditcr's Report

Arnual statement from the chairman
LsEthe Comimities

Tre MED metin Moz 2000 ard Consigen
results and fseanack fromithe Boarc evalLatior

twas agreed tmat the Directors’ fees viollo on
ircreased, witneffect fom 1T ApnE 2022 to e follovang
layals Charman £72 000 Awcit Sommittos Charmiae
27 000 Senior rdepe~dent Diractes £42 000 ard orme-
Theecturs 36 000

e e

TeIt s reEmaneTal an b

Tre Comoany's paliny 18 trat the faes payanie to o=
T -anigrs shouls reflect the e soent by tre Zcz-a on

te Company's atfars arctne resporsizilities oo
e [rantors ang shoulz be suffiziert to enable
shddates of nign talibre wbe recuitee Trepoll .,
ot Charman ¢t ine Board tr2 cosimmian f s
Lo nrmites gra the
thas tms ctnes [

N

b1y

S2ior independert Dire 107 1 50

Do gt £otorsIr e ogr o

s oo 2y

D20 AGM a0t

[ Rat=Tiana AT
Dy I e e s At t s
[EaREtet [TWEGTION Cab=1 I RalieAY

o
s

N

a0 eotor Thars 47a -

Trz Zogen uraasts onmesl, of -
T r oSt T S A T R R e
B e RS Code R ars IR 1
-1

made te joss of office. The te > s of thelr appomimeant
Imtmeant lefter v he ey joimn tee
Rt

ate detal=or an a0;
Poan As e Dire :
the Comoary coees nal Fasg a pelicy o0 trmirmatinn
payn=nts Tre Company’s Articles of Assodation
Surtently It total agg2gate *2e3 aavable to e

Foadto Eandondperas-am

rsannatng

IS oremaTeralion
3 AGM and a7z laken
Ofg e L neration

T

Snarcholaers e
- Smimanicated at tne Somipa
nto aceo.ntie formiutating the D
policy Attrne 2021 AGY. over 99 o7, of shareholrers’
yutes rast were 10 favour of tre resolutior goproving 11
Directors 2emuneration [eport {035 aganst), smowing
sigrif cant sharehalder supoort.

47

somzorents of tre remaneration Gaii<ag=

Lilea Directors minn e comprsedd

The

37 NG

S rEmiangratin” ooy
ot ceioe it a Tase

Foto d2termiration

I the e
LOTRATY a7

30 Apn




Remuneration Type

Additional Fees

Adoitional l2es may be pam
1o any Director who fulfils the
ole af tra Chatrmgr e
cha s any commitlee of e
Boarazar who s appan e

Fixed Fees

Trie agaregate imit

for ine Feer for the

Buard as awhkale 1
£300,000 per anram, in
aucordance tathe Artic es
of As 300N, Wee an the Senor b Jependeci
s divioed batseer the [rimartoyr

Direchers as tney may -
Ceam appropr ate

s faen it e ot

St corrnetilnes sl bl
reflect expenarcs and time
SOMMItMmentt

Ann gl fees gre el 1)
refiact the experience
ol each board member
and tirre comrmitment
required Dy Board
MSIMoers o Carry

aat therduties and is
gelarm ned wilh refsrence
1o the appoirtment

of Dnrectors of sirmiar
myastrreent comparnies

Arnual remuneration report

and at other D rectors £35,000 (2027 £35.0

An adciioral £5 000

Expenses

The D r=ctors are entithen
lnepac =asonable

e eleiakcl DpErl U=
by them alterd rg meetings
It Lrareholders oroioner
[Crirer are ar J1ery s m
oA R TR I T R R T TR
ot s e Lo toe s,

2]

QH

i lhe arnual prtes S Cnairman 270 000
wpadperaneam foreach o hero

Other

Bovard mamb=
=N7ic e forpondses, pension
benefits, share cplicns, lorg-
lerrr ineentive soherred or
sthar nor-cash gengfts or
Txable expense s

Committee Charman and Senior Independent Directar. The actual amounts paid to the Directors duting the financial year

under review are 25 shown below

o~

Amount of each Directars smmoluments Taudited:

David Watson®
Simen Marrison®®
Tim Gillbanks
Kate Bolscover
Sarah-Jane Curtis
Hugh-Seaborn®

70,000

.31 March 2022 31 March 2021

E £

40,000 38,410
40,000 40,000
35,000 35,000

35,000

35,000
23,333

Total

232,204

60461

All fees are at a fived rate and there 1z no yarable ramun:
fnancial year There wvere no oay ts 1o thire
e as e Company Bas nuerrple

aes toiac
Ut gppointed as Charman onr 28 July 2020

2 appointed as Senior Independerit Director on 28 July 2020
B retired a3 Chairman an 28 July 2020
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Directors’ Remuneration report
continued

Tooeipany nerformanace

T~a grash celew comaares, for the ten years 2rden

371 March 2027 the nercentage change Osver eass Jerldi:
N the share onca total raturn to snasebolders comoarec
to the gnare price total return of benzhmark, et the
Roa-d conside s to oe e most agporopriate benchmak
formvestmeant performarce measurement Duposes A0
2xplanation of the perfermance of tre Company 15 glven
i tne Coairmar's Statement anc Manager's Report

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4500 -~

4000 =+ - -

3500 -

3000 —

2500

2000 —

P
P/ﬂ’/. ~r”"_f\/ 4

1500
‘f/z,:’/_}./—'\/
1000 e

500 -

Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-15 Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19  Mar20 Mar-21 Mar-22

B 7R Property Share Price Total Return Il Benchmark Toral Return

Share Price Total Return assuming investrment of £1,000 on 31 March 2012
andremvestrnent of all dividends (excluding deating expenses) {Source
Tharmes River Capital)

Benchmark Tatal Return assuming notichal nvesiment into the index of
£1.0000n 371 March 2012 (Source Thames River Capital)

RSN e AR o - FESG IR

Tosarteregte nftrg Tractsan 1ne 5o g7es o e

RCiTP B AT

At b ats

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

" 31 March 2022 SR RVEYS Iy
David Watson 36,407 36,083
Simon Marrison 43993 432,367
Tim Gillbanks -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 Z2.360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 5237 L
Il R i e e A

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

Dividends paid

2022
£000

45,381
220

2021
£000

44129
232

Change

+2 8%
5.2%

Directors’ fees

Five year change comparison

rectons D8y Tas IreTe3sso a3 set

Uearthe las: e yaarg, o
sl thetgle os oo

2022
£000
Chairman 70,000
Audit Commitiee
Chairman 40,000
Senor
Independent
Director 45,000
Director 35,000

2017
£000

70,000

37,000

37,020

32,000

Change
over
Syears

0%
8 1%

81%
9 4%

Annualised
Change

0%

16%

16%
18%

For and on behalf of the Board

David Watson




Report of the Audit Committee

MRIRAD

Auditcomnuttee 115 Pas ncluded consiceranon of the angoing COVID-15
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks parcem and towards the end of tre year thzinvasion
of Ukraine, inflatorary and interest rate increases and

Kay resoonsibilities mpanct anrass 3 range of sk categones
+ Review the internal financial and non-financial controls,

+ The Grouos I7teal Controls ard consideration of tie

uodaiabalensg

+ eview menurts from key third party service provide Repars troreon

+ Congider and "ecommend to the Boarc “or aporeval troe < The lsARSANAE operts o teir ecuraalent from Bra0

cortents of the dra*t Intenm and Arnual Report:s; ard BN= Panoas:
+ Review accounting policies and significant financial - Whether the Sompary should rawve its own internal
"en0 tng judgements: a4t function §
+ Maonitor, together with the Manager, the Comnpany's + The Fxternal Auditors 2lanning Memuorandum setting ]
compliance with financial reporting and regulamry out the scope of the anrual auait and provesed key §
requiremeants; arzas of foous;
+ Thereview and subsequent propesal to the soarc of « Thereports from ine Aucitor corcerning therm audit
the irterim and final desidends; and of tne “imanocial Statermerts of the Company and
Consideration of Significant issues in relat’on ta the
+ Considerng tnesmpact of providing non-a.cit servines Firancial Statermnents; n
on the external Auditor's irdeperdence anc onjectivity B
- Treappropriateress of ard any £ranges o the &
Repraesertatises of the Manager's internal audit and aceouanting policies of the Company, including Fi
comphance departments may attend cormmittes the reasonableress of ary judgements required %
meetings at tne Caommittee Chairman's reques oy sunr poheies: 2
Representatives of the Company's Auditor attend the « The Long-TermViahiuhty Statement a~d consiceratior
Committee meetings gt whick the araft Hal® Year and of 12 oreparation of the =inancial Stataments a=
Anrual Report and Accounts are reviewed and are grven the a Gomng Concern Basis taking arnourt of frvwa'd o
vppLriurty 1 Speax 1o me Commites members withot lcokirg eome foresasts the haundity of the 2
the presence of the reprasentatives of the Manager inestrrent porfolic anc debt orofile, é
2
The Board recognises the requiremeant “or t~e Aarit - Tre finarcial and cthe- disclosuras in the Financial E
Comimittes as a wnole to have competente elevant Staternerts g
fothe sector aro at least one member with recent and g
relevant financ.al experience. Tne Chairman and Mr + Toemfornghon sresertos in the Half Year and Anaood )
Watsor are Crartered Accountants with extonsrye ann Reoarts 1o ansess whatrer fake oo g whoke, tee 3
recent experiene in the Financial Services Inaustry The Heoorts arz far balances ana ancerstardatle and (e
ctrer memoers of the Committee ~ave a combimatnn of nrarmation presentac will enable e s atebohers E
vroperty, financial investreart ang business axpariaice g55ers the Dompany'e posihe, performsa - bl §
trrough serior pusitions held throughoot ther 2areers model 37d strategy: g
Z
Tra e BT g e yoar < TP p-—:"-:vrrn;r‘r_:u ol the edernal Audnor 1o anpro.e
suring the year t=e Committee meat taice vatt all tr=r gt fec G ooonsie=r ine a35e33ent of
mernbers at eusn meeting and consicered the folo. ang Imdependery s
+ Lorswderglion oftoe Risk Map, any charges totoe . = arasunsen st orapnsal to tre Suard of
hkehPood orimpact of nsks and conseguential the inteern and faal dl,"J"—‘FH“; and %
na°gaes req Ifea to Board Yionitoreg anc mnigatinn %
Brocerures Loanside ation 0F any ey or erms i < Iee s szvagl of e Lommittee's terms of refare e o
rmks and inn ‘l rasne the 2isk Man e apprapnial= oy TR ARG TIate ane mamDiaet e %
GrpoTate Goosrratoe Coide 3
2
5
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Report of the Audit Committee

continued
JEISTEAE:

ir d\mrswnj whet~er it continues 1o be appropate
s prepare th2 Accouwnts or a Going Conce ™ kasig,

tne Comnmittee mas made a detalled assessment o 1=

aility af the Company and Group to meet its habitities
as ey fall due including stress and lquidity tests whon
~ongiderad the eftects of substantial falls iniryvestment
saluations, s.bstanhal 2auctions (7 revanue relclven
arc recactions in market iguidity

Inlignt o' tesung carned out, the overall levels of the
invastment hcuidity held by the Company ard the
significant net assel position, the Parent Company and
Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Company and
the Group have acequate fnancial resources tc contirue
in cperation ‘or at least the next 12 morths follovang
the signi~g of 12 financial statements and therefore

It s aparopriate to adopt t~e Going Concerr basis of

a eounting

Tn2 long rerm viability of t~2 Company was also
assassed as set out 07 pages 30 ana 21

SO« MAnagenenT and intsrm g
T~a Boarc ras overall resporsibility fortne Grouos
em of Risk Management ano imternal Contrel acd for
ra ey ing therr 2ffectizeness <ey ris<s idertifiec by the
Aaditor are Zonsidered py toe Aacit Committee 1o 2raurs
tat “sonst e twrr i ortrols ang monitonrg protecatEs
20t “place onanorg
coarrner c2al wan b.:, u,-l.md orooage b

:f)r;'ﬂfmmﬂ recelsad ano ConsIds
= fromthe kay sarce proy

Tre lompany's | IR,
aryemerging nsks and gnstnes any adjustments ers
NEKS ardtne ootrols arc mingat o

T

PR AN resna

resLnge of flr a~cal ~arkels

caTl AL

The Cormmittes fas considared this repor and “inansial
temerts and the _org-tern Viazhty Statemesnt

N pages 20 ard 31 The Committes zror‘:‘slfjered

U 2 Aaditars assesament of nisk of matanal

sta

et curtols
ad ang ths

mizstate Nent 37d reseses e inte
ir place in sact of tha key areas ident’f
process Dy wrien e 2o nonitars
proecuTes o qrae e Lommuttee comfort un Ha:‘.?z
fsks or an orgoimg basis These 11sks are also

~iahlighted in the Compary’s 2rsic Map

< Carying amcunt of listed ingestments (Groln ana
Sarent Comany} - Tne Group's |'1‘.-'~:st."ne.m-") ars
prizen fortne daily NAY by BND Panibas

s AdTimisratn s
[rErgart axter™ o
Surolndirg thizae
riarral Cortrols

I e r]u*Tm dnsets e ool 0
“eng Hartorr ik uses
COING Seune
sef oL timthe 95
flmg

nnIe 1000 @l couriart fortre

noer 207wkt did not
‘ere Tha coar=rly conrel

SNE P, ."1"“JI|"~

per o Up tu 37 Mar“ ~ 2022 naane °'gﬂ frantizsues
lerennrt randhice tne
g an alter-atiee o
rdzperdent rhetk

Tarager =stinales e WAy

TG ST e 20 g Al Dasn as an




nuncertaking their valuation of eack property,
Knight mrank make their assessment on the basis of
a cellater a~d analysis of appropriate ~omnpa-able
investments, rertal anc sale transactions, togethear
Wwith evidence of demand within the wicirity of eacr
property This information is then applec to the
propertias faking into accoant size, location, termes,
~overant ana other matenal factors

Ihe Boara nas ewiswed reparts from tne Manager
and tne external valuer and determined the val.atior
1o be reascnable

The Auditar has set out trerr detailed testing and
procedures in respect of the Direct property valuation
anc concluded that they found the Cempany's
valuation of investment prooerties to be acceptable

Trers has been nothing brought to tne Committee's
attention ir respect of the financial statements for
the year endea 31 March 2022 that was material
or aignificant or that the Committee felt should se
brought to sharehclders’ attenticn

Auditor assessment and independence

The Company's external auditor, KPMG LLP { KPMG)
was anpointed as the Company's auditor at toe 2076
AGM Trhe Committee urdertock a tence” process
during 2021 to ensure that shareholders we-e gattirg
the hest services and value for morey A numper ¢
firms were inviteg 1o AXpress interest and respond
onasmall number of <ey ooirts Thedezision

as made fo- the aucit to remam with KP MG T

Committee expects 10 repeat 4 1enda” process
no later than 2026 1 respect of the aucit for the
following 31 Marer vear end inline with the curront
audit egulations

A the half year meetirg of tre Committae, <PRAG
prese~ted their audit plar for the year end and the
Comrmittee consicered the auoit orocess ana f=2
oroponsdl Tre Committee also eviewed KPMGs
irdepencence policies ard oroned Lres melucing
nuality assurancea procedures It was consicersd that

trese polic-es ae Pt for purpose and e Lirectors
are satsfied that <P G iz independent.

Total teas payable tethe Avditerin respect of

the nuan for trovear to 31 March 2022 wers
FAZ 0002027 EBOOUO;, whirn wiere approyerd

ST B P TH T A oY A PR A NI

by the Audit Committoo

The Cormmities Fas aporowec and imolementead
apolicy ontre engagement of e ALdifor 1

supaly ~on aacit services takmg itto acicunt the
poommencations of the Accaunting Prachices Board
wit™ A vlews 1o ensoneg that the axternal Aucitor does
Nt provide non audit sesdres that have the potential
[ rmoan or anpear to mgair treindependence of
trer qudit role raddition te Committes revigwed
e Aanno™s put in plase 0y the Auditor to ensure thero
wao a clear soparabinn botwean audit and adyviscry
services The Committes does rot neheve tnere to
be any impediment to the Aaditor's objectivity anc
Incependence

The fees for nen-auait services for the year o 31
Marzn 2022 veere ril (2027 -l

Full aetails ¢ tne Auditar's “eas are prayided e note &
to the acoounts o page 21

M Merchant was appoinied audit partnas “or the
2022 year-end gumit succaeding Mr Lelly, wno was
recuwed to rotate off the Company s account, Faving
served as augit partner ‘or five years.

Following each audit, the Comimitlee reviaw s the
audit process and consigets its effectivensas ann
H%‘ quahty of tne services orovided to the Compary
Witk {”\[i process the Committee takes 1~1o
corasideration trar awn assesament, the selt

evalaatior of the aumitor and thiz Acdit Qality Re siew

Sepnrt prodlsed by the =20 0 erder to monitor the
prr)(,,'f; s of the Acdiors performance comparable
Aot ats pears ard 17 e 13rgots 301 oy the PR Tre
redise fellowrg the completior of the 2027 gua
carcluded tha the Zommittes was satisfed with the

Auditor's &ffectiveness ana perfo

Tre Comrmithes f2lt trat <PYG had ros an effechve
anc eff cient audt procass vith apprcomte
crallerge Aresoltior 15 ro-aopoint <=, LD
the Comoa-y s Ascditorvall b oot 1o z—fha':—)hcdlrjre:r'-s at
the forthoomirg AGN

Tim Gillbanks

MBIRAD
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

The Sirectors are "esponsible for prananng tae Aol
Hegort, the Stategrs Report. the Diretars <2part 4
the finarcial statements in accorda=ce w.ib aoplcanle
law and regulations

Comoany law s2quites the Directs s to prooare (Groud
arag Parent Company fra~oial state~erts for each
firancial year Directars are requi-ed (o prepare the Grall
financial statemeants in accordance w'th UK-adopred
international accounti~g stardaras a~d apphcable

lav, g~a nave elected to prepare the Parent Comoary
financial statemeants on the same tasis

Urde-company lave the Directors must not approye tie
firancial staternerts unless they are satisfiec that t=ey
give atrue and farr view of tre state of affars o the
Group and =arent Cempany and of ©e Group's praft or
lzss for that period e prepanng each of the Group o d
Parert Company fingncial statements the Diregtars are
redulred 1o

+ooelect suttante o oowrting policies a~o aotly
triemm nonaistently;

* make udcements ana estimates that are r
elesant and reliable;

< stat2whathar they =g /e Deen prenared In 40017130 e
Sotrarternaticnal o caLnttg stancards e sonferr
St ceo remaents of D<-aaopted imtarnatioe 4!

uatirag stancards

LD A T

[ ale

433 607G

=rs celated to going o

P Raie SPF L IC TRt

1

srdz gt ae s e ent i ey

otlaim tre Sarent T ominas, 4

Lmaer anplicadle lay ana reg Jlatioe

E
Streatan

alse

LosInl o e At teng e
and firanc’al
OMIgy

Dremie g the Orepaane s 4
dissemiratior Hf firgnoial statements may differ
Fromiteqizlaton i otter Lo inn:

Lagialatior g [

o

Tatemient of the Diregturs

al firanoal report
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust plc

07 Ouw opuvion s unimodified

Ve have audited the financial statements o° 7R
Property Investrnert Trust ole (the Company’) “or

the year enaed 31 March 2022 which comprnize tne
Group Statement of Comprehersive Income, Group
and Company Statements of Changes in Equity, Group
and Company Balarce Sheets Group and Caompany
Cash Flow Statements and the related notes, incl.ding
tne accauntirg policies 1IN note 1

In our opinion:

+ The financial statements Give a true and farr view
of the state of the Group's and of the Parent
Company's affars as at 31 March 2022 a1 of
tne Group's profit for the vear then ended,

Tre f'nancial statemenis have been properly
preparec in accordance with UK adopted
international accounting standa-ds

- The financial statements have been prapa-ad
N ancogance with the requiramerts of the
Comparias Act 2006

L, R IR et . - - -
T S ML T P T -

Basis for opinion

e cond.ored cum aacit 10 accordanc e wath Internatior 4l
Stardacds or Auditog (UK 1545 (UKD and apolheeble
law Our responsibihtes are descnbed below We belisve
that the audit evicence vwe rave obtained 's a sufficien:
and approprate asts for our apinmon Quir auait oomion
15 corsistent with our repott to tee audit committee

Wewere first appainted as auditor by the directers en

7 Novemnbear 2006 The perac of total uninterrupted
engagernent 1s for the six fnancial years ended 31 March
2022, We have fulfilled cu- 2trical -esponsoilitiss under,
and we rermam indapendant of the Group im ascordance

with U< ethical recuiraments including the FRE Ethical
Standard as apphad 1o hister publin irterest ertities.
Ng no~ addit services promitited by that standard

were providad

£16 8m (2021:£14 9m)
1% (2021 1%} of Total Assets

Materniality: group
financial statemenls

as a whole
it matters vs 2021 R - vs 2021
Recurring risks Valuation of direct property ap»
investments
Carrying amount of listed - >
nvestments

Key audit matless are those matters that inour profassional judgerrent, were of most sigrif cance = the aumt of 72
nancial starements and incluge the most signifinart assessed risks ¢f matenal misstatement (whethe or not due

to fraud) identified oy us, includieg those winisn had the Jreatess effect anthe oy
resourses e the aucit ard directing the 2*'orts of the an
(unchanged from 2027}, 0 decreas ng order of audis signifeance, marmsing at s avdid op mon 2o

gage=mznt tzarm We sLmimanss below the <ay

erall awd @ strategy the allocatior of
Audit matters
2 togetrer wih

Qur key atdit procequres 1o address trose ratters and oJr Fadings fom thesea proceduras in orde trat the Zompasy s
Memone s as a oody, may oetter snderstand tre orocass oy vbh e g gt coropimics These matters wers

acdressed anc our findirgs are based oo aror

eduras Lnderta<en o tre
it of the financial statemsnts as a whole and in farming cur epinon thar=or znd conszcuantly are incidental t

certext ol acdstlely for the purpoze of our

that ooirior, and we 2o Not proade @ separate opr1e” or ege miatters
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

Valuation of direct property
investments (Group and
Parent Company)

CE90 3 rrilon 2077

£Es 1 rahinng

LU
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ul= "0or page
to 28 {financial disc ok,u%w
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R regard to 1hv “ry Mgt ont
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s b aiter s Ul a2 5 3MMaNt 00 on b S ter o 3

Low risk, high value:
The Group's pertfoln of haled =y
stments makeasz Lp 2o 1/—

“/,\.[}{ P]l:’ Ij’f cupn

Carirying amount of
listed investments
(Group and Parent)
(£1,456 8 million: 207!
£7 16 0 mellon)

Refer topages 5910 A1
[AuAdil Coremittee Report),
nage 78 (arcoenting poeli
and nate 1 on pages 35 4
88 {financial disclosures)

M
al=rmens,

these myas iy
af malerizl mi-
subyect to a sign-
judgemaent bww AL
liguia, quote g
due o their marerality rtheoo

of the financial statements as a whaole,

they are consideraad &
aregs w
cur gwerg | aud tairat2gy and alls

of resadrees i plann g and Scompleiing

aur audn

2l e

=y T OMOr a2

STrnenls Howave”

pheone il
chbad the grearest effact on

her
rHIv [SlaRcin\Y u' the Sl

15 benduse s guare of the balance
ferent

[ ] ‘ ul',1 e et b et ain gyt
eoldenien orrmar yugh e detallen
[SAOTREID IR RS ot

P M B Dty

Oarpre:

<(JT Jhﬂl“r)r
or g n=

- Test of detail: & ) =eing = el a” Tk
of eyl 1 isted inyesirerts inthe portfshio L
exlernally g anlsn prnees: and

- Enquiry of custodians: Agrasing 100 af
aval T It iryastment holding< in the

he parifeho 1o mdependeatly recaived tbivd party
- ations from investment custedians

ni=xt

canfirem

an

Our ﬂndings
= und ro ifferenes from third parly
-.chmg.s nnfirmat’ans nor from the externally
quoted pnres T asise tn r@j dreresoring lo e
AudtComimittes 2000 nod ferences)

03 Our apphcation of materiality anda a5
overview of the scope of our audn

Materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole

was setat £16 8 (2027 £14 8my), aetermined wits

reference to a berchmark of total assets of whior it

reprasents 1 0% (2027 1 0%)

Materiality ! orthn parant company financial stater-ents
as awhole was set ar £16.0m (2027 £11 Tin} wrich

5 the m'npomprt materiahty for the Darent cormoany
daterminec by the growp audit engacement tzam This
15 lower than the matenality we woudld otherwize have
determined witn reference to parent Lo npj”w wLJF

asaets of woicn it represents 0 95°. 2021 0557
rire wite cor aadit methodology, our proced Jreg

crondiviaual acoount nalannes and cisolos Lres vise
aerforned to alower trresoolo, performance matzriabty
s6 g loreduce 1o ar accantable level the niskc that
irdiradually immatenal misstatermnents ey
Ancoant Dalances add uo 1o a matengl ams
tre finamcial statements as a »,h Pcrfmrmd e
matertahty was set at 79 f":) )
fur the financiai sta!emems as a whole, wrich eguaies
te €12 6m 2071 £11 Ty far the Groug and £17 07
{20027 F10 5 for tre Parent Company e aonlien
tris percentags in our detzrmimation of perfarman o=
matenality betause we dic not icentiy any st o
irdicating an elevatec level o aske noadding ' i
materabty of E2 02021 £20mya~idn

el

SIlanrana

frrgtenabty

jetali=ls

AT

A Fepor A

el

mgternalty of £1 3m 2027 £7 5m) to investment
ncomes other operating ircome , gross rental income,

seryise charge income ard rel retu s on contracts fo-
oifference for which we belaye miss Tdterr erts of lesser
amaounts than matenalty for the finz starernenis
as & whole coule reasonably be expected to irfluence
the Corpany's rmembers’ aszessment of the inatoial
peerforman.e of tne G oD

W agresd to eoort e ine ALdit Commitize ary
\,O"FQCT’:Q aruncorractad Wantified misstate~ents
ext2ading FU3 i 2027 P VS e addinor to other
identified misstatements that valranted -eporting on
Qualiat s treshelds

Group Materiality
Fie8mi20z) g1 am)

Total Assets

1 RS 2021 £1.05m;)

£16.8m
Whale financial staterments
materiality (2021 £14.9m)

£16.0m
Parent Company Mateniality
(2021 £14.1m)

£0.84m

Misstatements reported
to the audit commuttee
(2027 £0.75m)

® Total Assets
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

The aucit feam performed tme auadit of tre Group 33171
WwWas a $igle agaregated set of firanoial information "h's
appreachis wrchargad from the prior year The auat of
the Grecup and Faret Camaany was 0e7tormea.
Tiateniality levels set out acove anc was per
sirgle aLdit team

GBI e

1=

a

fully
substantive as we cid not rely upon tne Graup's interal
conirals over financial reporting

The scope of the audit work performen was

4 The rmpact of chimate risk on our
g LJle. report

& Phave o2-formec a nsx< assessment of noa tre mpa ot

felimate change may affact the finanaial statemants
and Oaraucit cevel T hsteg nyestnents ma<e L0
36 A7 of the Group's total assets, forwhbizh far
Iz determired as tne cuoted markat price There
we assessed thal tne inanc.al smn—”mm sstimate 'hjr
13 prirnanty exnosed to chimate 71s< 15 the N yestment
aroperty portfolio *orwhien the valuation aesamoatinns
arc e2slimates nay be nmpactad by p“vsmal anc 2ohly
ar legal climate risks such as floading ur anircre
I chimate related ~omohar e expenciture
CISLUSSIONSs N ot o st chmate L g
1o onallengs: ou” s« mert Wie
smilst mhmate 2nangs o SIMET (PR eVt
N estmest proparty v 1I ,,j! Hal-VIal I R e N

t”.\s risk was not sig mfcam woen consider ~o bom he
catLre and domicile of tra properties g o fra o LT
leases Trnerafore therewv.as no o e
fris o o ur ey audit matters

Lrexsired
maatt o

of thmats slares aran -
inthe frant nai’ uf the firarcat statame
o coosigtencsy aath the f oo

Ve e rens T s lns Lre

NS o2

AT G LT

LT

»
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Tiratte
b

“t ‘at ,J_I
LR TPttt
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o e o

TOLD'S and Lompany's
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» Trahguiity of treinvestrment portiohs and its abilty
tomeet the laniities af e Group as and when they
fall e ane
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Aowever, as we carnot predict all future events or

conditions ana as subsequent events may resualt 1o
autcomes tnat are mconsistent with judgemesrits that
wierg reasonatle at the time trey we e mace, the apoue
cenrclusions are not a guarantee that the Groud or
Company wall continue 1 operation

06 Fraud and breaches of law s and

reguiations abiity to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material

misstatement due to fraud

Todentify nsks of material misstatemeant aue to fraudd
(fraud nisks ) we assessed events or conditions that

“ould ngizate an incentive of p'@?ﬁu"@ te comm it fraud

o7 provide an apportunity to commit fraud Our nisk

assessment procedares included

+ Enguiring of Directors as to the Group's high level
policies ard orocedures to prevent and detect frawd
as well as whether tney nave knowledge of any 2 stual,
suspected or alleged fracd;

+ Assessing the segregation of duties 10 olace betwicen
the Directors, the Administrator and te Grous's
Investmenrt Manager; and

+ Reading Beard and Audit Committee minutes

Asrecureg oy auaditing stardards, we perform
arocedures to acdress the sk of manageme-t ouerine

of controls, ir particula” to tne ns< that maragement may

bie 1n g position to make Imappropriate accourting 2o trnes
We avaluated the design and impleme2ntation of 1 hn
sontrols gver journat entres and other acjustrnents a~d
maace Inquines of the Agmimistrator asout Imaporoprats
o7 unusual activity relating to the nrocessing ¢ ja.rnat
entres and other adjustments.

subsrantively tested all material post Clowi-g 2riney
awd‘ based on the reaults of our nsk ass
procedares and Lncerstanding of tne oroless el angG
e segregation of duties setvreen the Directors ama the
Adrramistrator, no further figh risk joural entries or atoe”
adiustments we-e dentified.

Q1 thes mucitwe have rehutted the fraod nsk laten
to revenLe recognilion necause the everue 17

ror judgemertat and straigntforward, witn Itz
opportooity for manipulanor We cid ot icenti™y
significant wrusogl transactions or addnor sl fraud roks

Ay

ArnLa Bagort Ao Lt T

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non compliance with laws and
regulations

e identified areas of taws and ~egulations that could
redsunably oe expected to Pave a matenal eftect on

the firanzial sraternents from our genesal commercial
anc sector experance ard througy discussion wath the
D|re tors, the nvestme~t Marager and the Admimiglrator
(as required by auditing sta~dards) ard © :
the Tirentars the nolizies and procedures regaraimg
comnpharce wath laws and reg Jlations As the Parent
Company s regulated our assessment of s<s 1mynlved
gairing an U“derslaﬂdmg af the

control 2nyirun-rant
eluding the entity's procedares for complyimg watk
requlatcry requirements

Tre potential ef* 2ot of trasa laws anc regulations or e
financ al statements vanes caonsideranly.

Firatly, the Compay 15 suomct [0 lws and regulalion:s
that directly affect the finarcial statements inciuding
financial reporting legislation {including relatec
comparies lagislation], distributable orofits legislation,
and ity gualbfcation as an Investrment Trust uader UK
taxabon legislaticn, any breach of wrich could lead to
e Group losing varous deductions and exemptions
from UK corporatinn tax, 412 we assessed tne extent O‘
comohiance wit™ rese laws anc regulations as at o

cur proceddres on the related Snancial staterment items

Wie assessen e lagahty of the distnbutions made 2y
the Company inthe peron sased on coempant~g the
Qdends oalc 1o the distnoutanle 2ser seg pror o 2ach

u_m;mhuncn

/_J

tto mary cther laws anc
rences of non comphanne

Aesonaly the Growo ne subjs
requlntior s wherg tre rons

“ould rave amatenal effect or amcuets o disslosuras
in tre financial staterments, for instance trrougn the
imposition of Fnes or Itigation, We dentified the
foolioe ing areas as thase maat hkely to bave cumsn an
orfoct money la ndenng data srotechion, rmkmrv ard
coreLptioe lkagslatior and certam asoects Af comipary
leqisiat.on recagnising the fnanmal nature of th @
Brolos attianies god it lecal forme &oditimg stamdares
It tre sequire aurdit Droedinras 1o \-jr_‘-ﬂt\fv ran
Somshas e wath trene v gnd tegulatior s e auiry
ot the Tirectors and the Admeinstrator ans nspestinn oF
any T*\H fore f

egbatory and [=gal corresproaenne
uraane of oozratiosal reguiatic s s not dis lose s v o
e gnant feorn e sant corresponoenoe A audin v it
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

L A Directors’ remuneration report
EAE RS W iiate I[N infc¥e W ts )

5 moneration
Fuited P8 Geen rosey precared in

= cth e rigmpanees Lot ,um.h,

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud
or breaches of law or regulation

Chaing to tre rPerant irmitatons of 4o aact tren Disclosyres of emerging and principal risks and longer

aravodable ask that we may not ~ave detentsd sorms term viability

rmatarial misstatements in the fnancial statemerts aver Ve acs raculcad v parforrm armceaures todentify

thougn we Fave properly planned anc performed our audit Vil ETOrE s | matedl irIensist2 1y peteee the

I accortance wit™ auditirg standards For examole, the dirzotors disclosuyes i sespect of emarging ans princinal
fortrer removed nor complance seitr laws and regalations ns«s and the org-Term Viabihty Statement a~d tre

1= from the events and transacions reflected in the firarc al frarcial stazeme-is and our acdit krnowledge
stataments, the legs hikely the inherently imited srocedures

required oy auditing stancaras woulz Wdentify it Based on those procedures, we "ave rothirg materal 1o

add wr drawy attenticn toon relatio~ o
Imeadoifion, as witn ary aadit there remaimad 4 ~1g72c 7 <
ot o detectior o fraan, as these may insole colluser
frrgery intontional arissions misres es annms e et o BT
orernde of inter-al cortols Quraudit gromecurss dntasns aftreernerge
cesigran to detert matenal misstatement Viz ars 2ot a i annCIpdl 548 faT g e GroLp, 1meiacitg fht’_;ljt—
"esporsinle for presenting non comphance ar frgud and et ec 13 threabem s ousines
carnct be expestan 15 detest non comphance o

an wthm the oong-lem
ST AS and 31 tmart

S sarred o

snodel Gatgre

it all L‘er-*rjrmd" osolienTy and hauney
laves and regulations
cotre S oAl Biees ara s rin s es dis g

CRSUADING INsSs TRk s And Do ornergie g i
idetiftec atd exclareng mov. they are being manage
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v ﬂ,d s .r Arw 1l «upor tf--"ﬂrf*er W T.he *\r‘anc.wa\
siatermenis. Lo oan on tne Sinancal statemerts
“ob couen the otrer inf o gt a. gl s=n
ol 2 e ceatasexphonly srat-o
~olLsin tranes
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arformanics o n

cor cur franc Al
TMgtigr e,

tatemarts ot g

materiall ) missiatas ar nansistent s rhe

tm= [aiaiae g I i Dt ST T i e I (A
ATt B : DIt LA Mol
Strateglc report and dlrectors report T ST LT T g L e DT e T s T T T




Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform orocedures to1dertity
wretner there 15 a matenal inconsistency betveeer the
UDirectors’ corporate governance disclosures a~d tnez
financial statements and ou- audit krowledge

Based on those procedures, we have concluded toat
=ach of the following 1s matz-ally consistent with tre
financial statemeants ard our aJdit knowledge

+ the Directors’ statement that they corside that tie
annuai report and financial statements taken ag
awhole 1s farr halanced ana understanaanle, and
provides the information recessary fo- shareholders
to assess the Group's position and performanace,
business model and strategy:

« the sectior of tne annual repart cescribimg tne work ¢f
the Audit Committee, including the sigrificant issuess
that the audit committee considered in relation (o
tre finarcial staterments, and now these 1ssuss were
addressed: and

+ the section of the annual report that deserines
the reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's nsk
management and internal control systems

We are required to review the pa-t of Corporate
Gover-ance Statemenrt ~elating to the Group's
comphance with the oroviaions of the LI< Corporate
f;o\«ﬂrnaﬂce Jone spechied oy the Listirg Rules for our
eviews We have rothirg to repost in this respeant

A Ve N NDTRINgG T reRuit

T Wl g e

=l
it
E Ll N R
r

|

IR

Under the Companies Act 2008 we ase aqu
toyou’ N Gur opirinn

»ardequate accounting records Nave not Deer Keot ar
“2lurns adeqoate tor our gudit mave not heen rocs oo
from pran-fes not asited by Js or

- tne parent Company financizl statements ana the
ftne Directors Remmoneratinr Repo-t to e aadit=d
arenot e agreement wath the acounting oronss 47
TeturTsar

selncnres of Direstors remunasghien
by lavs are not rrads, o

 oertain
specifien

sowE mad= ol reczlses all toe e farmation g
=aplamatione e regoire for o g 2Lt

o A e TG TG reportIr e respeTs

Srne g Foport e e

Pt eport

(0 Bagnarti,e Hes o= intpes
Directors' responsibilities

Asexplanec mora fully e therr statement set out g
DAGe BY e Direstors are responsible for the
preparatior of the nnancial staterments in. \uqu Being
satishiad that thav give a t-ue and fair view, such mtarmal
coctolban they determine s necessasy 1o enable the
prepargtion ¢ f nanc’al statzrments that are fr=e from
matenal misstatemenrt whethes gue to ‘raurd orerror;
dnseusig o2 Group ard parert Comoany’s ability to
continue as a qgorg conce s disclosimg, as apphoable,
natters related to gomg concern; and usmgyg the gorg
concern pasls of avcounting wnless they either irtend to
hguidate tne Group or the parent Company o7 L0 cedse
operatiors, o have no realistiz alternative oot to do so

Our objectives a= 10 obtain easo-able assuance
about whather the financial statemeants as 4 whaole a-e
frea from materal misstate et whether doa o fraus

or 2rron and toss e odr e in an auditor's -eport
N:{:asonab\e assuranc21s a wgh level of azsorance

but does 7ot guarantee tral ar a.ot conductecin
accordance witm SAs (UK will ahways netezt a materia
misstatement wenit exists Misstatemerts can arse
fram fraud o error ard are consicered matenal if,
mdradually orim aggreqgat h@yr culd reasonably
expacted (o influence thc economic decisions of\,ser.s
taker on the basis of the filnancal statermesnts

Jerdescrnpticr ot cor maponsibihiieg 15
arovided on e FROS wetsite al weny 72 org Lk

auditorsresoons alites

The Company 15 reguired to melude these f naroi=l
statermerts in ar annual finzncial “eport prepared aging
the single electroric reporl rg furmat specitied i t-e
TOESEN Pagutation Tus austnrs renort provides o
assorance over whetnar the anngal financial report has

oeer pregared i aces daroe e that tormat
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Independent auditor’s report

continued

10 The ourpoase m raudit wore andg T
Ao ye Doppe Dl Tes ,“na'bmes

Trus reportis made solely to the Company s members,

as a body, inaccordance with Chapter 3 of Dart 14 of the=
LIO“nDamr s Act 2005 and treterms of our e 2rrient
Dy trie Comoany Dur aadit work 2as beer unda
sn that we might state to the Comoaany™s mamuoes
tmose matters we are ecurres o state to thenar 37
a. Jutf\'s‘ epo tand tre furthar matters vie ame "eruin2u
10 state to themn arcordarce witn the terms ag eed
W the company for no other purpuse To H- ful\esr
axtart permitted by lavs we do not accept o” ~me
Mpom‘)mllty {0 aryone otner than the Company 1n.1 the
smpary's members, as a body, for our auditwar< for
this report or for the apimions we »ave farmec

Pu Mot A A

Philip Merchant (Senior Statutery Auditor) for and on
behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

KPMIG
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Group statement of comprehensive income

Income
Investment income

Other operating iIncome
Gross rental income

Service charge ncome

Gamns on Investments held

at fair value

Net movement on foreign
exchange; investments

and loan nates

Net movement on foreign
exchange; cash and cash
equivalents

Net returns on contracts for
difference

Net retyr[grg_)n_tota\ return swap
Total Income I
Expenses

Management and performance
fees

Direct property expenses, rent
payable and service charge costs

Otheradministrative expenses

Total operating expenses
Operating profit/{loss)
Finance costs

Profit/(loss) from operations
before tax

Taxation

Total comprehensive income

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary
share

Year ended 31 March 2022

Revenue
Retum

5,701

53752

(1,663)

(1,435)

(821
(479

49,033

o (629

48,404
(4,967)
43,437

13.69p

Capital
Return
£000

249,038

1,136

637

16,361

267172

(29,477)

~ {e08)
(30,085)

237,087
{1,886,

235,201

3045
238250

75.07p

44170
5
2,773
1,103

249,038

1,136

637

22,062

320924

(31,140)

(1,435)

(2229)
...{34.804)

286,120
(2515)

283,605
(1.918)
281,687

88.76p

Year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue
Return

36,557
67
3185
1,051

3,320

44,180

(1,556)

(1.327)
(1,237)
(4308)

40,072

_[418)

39,656

(767) .

38,889

12 25p

£'000

Capital
Return
£000

196,582
(3144)

(1.474)

17,978
(188}

200754

(14,328)

(14.332)
194,872
(1.969)

192,853

2,66/

195,520

61 81p

(604)

Total
£000
36,557
67
3185
1,051

196,582
(3.144)

(1474

21,298

(188)
253,934

{15.884)

(1.321)
(1,835)
(18,040)
234,894

(2.385)

232,509
1,900
234,409

73 B6p



Group and Company statement of changes in equity

Group
Share Capital
Premium Redemption Retained
Account Reserve Earnings
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £'000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive incocme - - - 281,687 281,687
Dividendspaid = Voo -t o (45381)  {45381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Campany
Share Capital
Premium Redemption Retained
Account Reserve Earnings
For the year ended 371 March 2022 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprebensive income - - - 281,687 281,687
Dvidendspaid M - (45381)  (45381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43971 969,582 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid I i N - (44420)  (44429)
At 31 March 2021 78,338 43,162 43,971 1,158,962 1,326,433
Company
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Totai
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes £'oo0 £3000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,871 969,987 1,136,453
Total comprehensive ncome : - 234,409 234,409
Dwvidendspad A7 : . (aaa29) (44429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,158,962 1,326,433
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Group and Company balance sheets

Group Company
2021 2021
Notes £000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investments held at fair value 10 1,506,436 1,506,436 1,400,576 1,400,516
investments in subsidiaries 10 - 36,297 43,312
Investments held for sale 10 48,980 48980 o o
1,555,416 1,591,713 1,400,516 1,443 828
Deferredtaxatonasset 12 98 903 68 686
1,556,319 1,592,616 1,401,202 1,444,514
Current assets
Debtors 12 97,673 97,208 60,990 60,520
Cash and cash equivalents w3279 = 32107 2814 L2z
129,782 129,315 90,104 89,632
Current liabilities 13 (66,109} {(101,939) (107.280; (150,120}
Net current assets/(habilities) 63,673 27,376 (17,176} (60,488)
Total assets plus net current
assets/(habilities) 1,619,992 1,619,992 1,384,026 1,384,026
Non current habilities 13 (57,253) (57,253) (57,593) (57,593)
Net assets ] 1,562,739 1,562,739 1326433 1,326,433
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 /9,338 79,338
Share prermum account 15 43,162 43,162 43162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43,971 438/ 43971
Eetameg earnings 16 1,396,268 1,396,268 ) 1.1 59196’2 e 151 59,962"
Equity sharehoiders’ funds 1,962,739 1,562,739 1,376,433 1,326,433
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 492.43p 492.43p 417 9/p 417 87p

T S . - -
v oo Fiem e Tt s
T zze firgrost TETTE N

Cwed b, ftragTtectire L Me Pronerty 1 TTRET

Aulnorseda 1or issué;onai 3 Jur
Dawed Wataon

D Watson
Director
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Group and Company cash flow statements

Company Group Company
2022 2021 2021
£'000 £000 £'000
Reconciliation of profit from operations o o
before tax to net cash outflow from
operating activities
Profit from operations before tax 283,605 283,605 232,509 231,844
Finance costs 2,515 2,515 2,385 2,385
Gains oninvestments and derivatives held
at fair value through profit or loss {265,399) (258,387} (214,372) (207,255)
Net movement cn foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents and loan notes 977) (977) (179) (179)
Scrip dividends included in investment
income and net returns on contracts for
difference (10,839) (10,839} (8,489) (8,489}
Sales of investments 544,370 544,370 353,16/ 353,167
Purchases of investments (430,830} (430,831} (370,496) (370,496)
Decrease / (increase) In prepayments and
accruad iIncome 8 8 (102) {107}
(Increase) / decrease in sales settlement
debtor (32,871) (32,871) 4753 4753
Increase / (decrease} in purchase
settlernent creditor 5170 5,170 {5.7817) {5,781)
Decrease / (increase) in other debtors 2,951 2,951 (11,436) (11,436)
Increase / (decrease) in other creditors 13,809 6798 .. 240 (4,001)
Net cash (flow/outflow) from operating
activities before interest and taxation 111,512 111,512 (15,590) (15,590)
Interest paid (2,515) (2,515) (2,607) (2,607)
Taxauon paid - Q258 (258 (1.915) (1.979)
Net cash (flow/outflow) from
operating activities 107,739 107,739 (20,112) (20,112)
Financing activities
Fauity dividends paid (45,381) (45.381) (44,429) (44,429)
(Repayment)/Drawdown of loans (60,000 (60,000) 95000 55,000
Net cashflow from financing activites ~ (105,381) (105,381) 10,571 10,577
Increase/(decrease) in cash 2,358 2,358 (9,541) (9,541)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 29,114 29,112 40,129 40127
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents 637 637 (1.4/4} (1,474)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 32,109 32,107 29,114 29,117
The nate, from ey e e rar of insse Firan g s glerer L
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies
Tne financial staternants tor tne year ended 27 L'Rah 2022 Pave been .JVDDdF 2
K-adopted Irtermatiaral accountimg standards and = confs i
stalerenis have s rdanse
strrent Tousl Compan=s Cranital Tr
count g Stardacds

|t}'

rare al 3tate
b g doptas T

: arc Nds 'T'adu ERMIETR
its abil ves as Z Ldr J 1l .l
valaas ons, o abstaanal erumu VS N RN e waeei e A
ongoing economic impact of thewa-in Ukraire Th.e Board s a:
hird pary sersce providers as working oracl e s hignags ko g e
nerfonmiaroe

Gl iy
-aticn:

Inhight o tne testing f*amed out, the ligLidity of the level 1 assats Reld Somrpar, and the s'gnifticant net asset caius
and the net currart asser position of the Group and Parent © Compan, the u rec [\_1’3 are 3atised that the Company ard

12 me-hs following the sigring of
313 of account

woup have adeguate © ndnC\dl resources Lo contings in operatios ‘or at l=ast t ;
the fnancial statements and therefare 11 is aporepriate to agoot the going orea bc:

The Group ara Compar*y financial statements are expressad In Ste rig. wbize s theis fur 2toral and TFC\E'WLJLW
cureerey sterling is the furclional curreroy 31 currene, of l' o o narme

LD o Falaes are rounded s nsgresn thegngrd pound

Tercsne Nk

peraies

Key estimates and Judgements

T-ie pregaration of the ﬂr.u statern

i Jring oo =fout o

THcne onl Mg 2T ENTS Ore eyl
Lob ey s Gt

con sl‘*»‘rud ] be h—e valuatior af ny=strens

Lo e any ey IJ\JQ“” =rits

Flutgamsnt, o

S0 NTe

Jal ;J

a) Basis of consolidation

she lampany and Cs gapsic anes o dl Llarin
firanoal 3matem

The Sroup financial statermer 15 consolidats the
2022 Alltne suos diaries of the Soamzany
FRETU e Corogry Nge besn Jas grous

accardat e Ln

PP R EoR BULI TS EN i ARSI I N a5 e Aty Eri | = O

sthat s nazne=s
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ACCOUnTINgG polcies

¢) Expenses

All exoenses and firance costa are accoun orun an & CAn aralyas of reta ~ed earnings broken down mto

reverus and capilian femais greninnote T arin DeXUer el Fane Been preserind Lo revenie @
nems exeepl as ollows z
=3
- Lxpenses which ars roicental o the aodost onoar disoosal of araryesirrent, 5
. . . : 3
s Experges are presenlal capitalvhers goosnmE bor i the oo 1eng =l ot ire vilae of tre =1
rwestrasly cun b demonstratas s roludes rrecovarable VAT o grrad or Ly e exlensn
mesirenlal leases as pramams re 2d for extane ng artarror ahir 3 oo et Goe 120 sarieed e e Capital s oant
- One quarier oF the base management fes 18 sharyed [0 rgsenug, with three cuartars allocated to capital returr o raflect
the Doasd's expectalicns of lon g e nuosimenT rolurn: Al pefarmares bees are o a0 W capal et
 The fund aarinistration, deponsitary, cusiody and cormpany secrstanal serveo2w ure charged dicectly 1 the Company uned
are incgded within Other admn stralive expenses noote o Toess Sx0enses d7 CharQas an the sam-= 93 as the base @
. - -
maragemert feg; one quarter to income and three quarters Lo ~apita g
o
d) Finance costs 2

Fhe finance cost in respect of capital instruments otner thar equ ty shares s caloalated so a8 10 give a constas rale
of return 01 the outstanding balance One guarter ot the faance cost iz cnarged o revenus ard thrae quarters 1o
capital returm

e) Taxation

Current tax assets and ligbililes are measu =0 a; the amaunl expe el 15 b2 recovensd fror
authorities based on lax rates and laws “hat are engoted wr 3t d"fl.r vanaeizd by Ibe by

neome tax 1s charged or cred-led directly G 2quity 177 rzlates woilers thal are sredited or “harged o eguity
Othervase imcome tax s recognised n the Group Staternens of Cormprehers ve noome

The tax effer: of different nems of expandil ars 15 allacalsd Setwees capitai and r=veniue usng the Group s effae
1ax for the year The charge for taxation is nased on the proft for the vear and takes into accouant taxation geter-ad hecause
of lerrpoarary diffarences beiween the treatment oF C2rtain items for tagation ana aceanntir J purpose

S|uaLLSIR)S [RITURLLS

In arcontance with the recammeandators o7 172 S0RP e allccation rme il 1Ex f—=|\~f LIRSt
prasented againsT Lapitel returrs in the supplementany inf O"“ﬂth( e Jf Lomprerengie Ieearmys
marg nal baz: tnder Iris busis f laxub e 1 Gpalle of berng ol fuel =murely oy Sxpenses preszated
revenda return colurn of the Stalement of Co SR noorT e, e uz res slarred o in= ok

JJU.—J

Deferred rox s the tay expected W De payals -« or rés o araDe 00 2 or =i Gt ;
liab'lives in the Balance Sheet ang Lhe c\:rras:pcr diry 1ax bases Lsec ir e cerputann” "TTdX&lM;‘ prﬂﬂl ardis A
for using the balance sreel habilny rmwthod Delerrad taxisbil Ve are res sgmized for gl e
and deferred tax assets are rec oqf‘lb{:’d o the axtent that 1113 prosable t-at tasable grang
decuctiole temporary differences can b ot red

B Lo R s A P TR A BT S - EYR Sl

oty

Soranen Tax Aol a0

PRSI o T

The: ormpany 1§ an inyestment trust urder 5 1154067 the
capralgams Capital gains ar sing in wubs drary - orrpas

f} Investment property

2ins0[98Ip QLY pue Auesso|g

[ryRsirert orogerty s me reladimg ranse Hor s

ed it ally o

p'mf' ) f s gl nt [EEILals U  an las PN gt z
AR Capane -‘fp~rur A The carry g armsan® » oo oaden e %
’1 the fime that costs mearred i (2w racognenn . ri2rg g izt 2
effected Hr the date urcordtioral ontracts are 2xhE~geo P

i i)
Subeeauent Wantigl recogeition amyestrant croperty Lo ataled an Fir o e a7 o Forge, = o =

fair yones gre ine uded in ke Graup staterr =t b Darrprehi=rs v Inoveme T ine oar e e

rreaniment proparty 15 derecagn sed ke it nan be-n dienosed oo ST e AN S e
aronomic beret s exnected from T3 4 sposa CgRiTs U lugtes 2fre or m\n,\,:-;,al uf irs estrment oroperty

are recogrised nthe Groun Stalement of Dororghen wens o

AN O I RN e = red an e e e oot oo et Vannaat ur e zed s

ani the o AR RN 7]
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Revaluation of investment properties g
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

SoroeurrtronT e

Valuations of investment properties

Gonba Stacdards The

Tr

soliraled gmonrt forehoh g progar'y s» oo o hs
rinanansms \EE’M:JU‘\ lransacteon aTter oroper g
and ot eorrpuly or

The valuat'on takes into accourt future cash Aoy
capital values of fixtures ard “tlings plant and
of theproperty) and diseo.nt mates appocablz 1o
=xizing at the balarce sheet salz

Toarnving at her est mates of fair vaiges
profe:
yaluat

Held for sale
Ir.estment groperty classifiag as held for sale 3 reasurac far valee

Triscord e 3 ocegarced ds miet o

Managemanl risst b comnmatied Log poan

A gl e Ten shouls B s ot
date of slasuificator
Rental income
T B s A ATt o B

rehs r2giaras

s Nislhial=l

D arare.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Sz gr ey fror exp A e LU
Seres e e Lnrg




Accounting poiiuies

Derivatives continued
Cantracts for Dfference TURDs ) arg syrthetr 2quimss and gre w5 wed by referense o e reestor l ard=riy™ag maraet v alues

‘2g not onal dividerds Frarong costs, interest raturns a0

The sources of the returrs under the cerivat va Zentrac ]
Via'aoooarts in gl gnmen” v Im the raiurs of the uraerlying oo
. Or Xoanse MsIrg
e

camtal changesy are o'located Lo the revern= ard cap

2 ineare and in aooordance vata the gaidar: pan o the & U s0RP Notona 2 dend

aripagar short postions are appurionec whol /M Ir=rzsenne g7 cuurt Notuona nieres 2N ong ponibars,
=turr s of the Comrmpany

Lr JLJl‘ 2 m\.; I q 1

T

i apportoned belbvean revenue and captatin acoordaroe w th the B‘ R s A L S
(murrently delermived to be 25% (o the revesy= g counl and | 1o roserven R
undwr\wnq orce movermnents of seourties woralbon L CRD o sl are 5 1ol

t’
“_
=
1,

Ny
il
If

h} Berrowings, loan notes and debentures

whers
FTIST sl

5 of Arraﬂgmg
b [

Hi-M

Allgans ard gebentures are nitialy reccgrised a0 ve far walug of the
appleanle After mitial recogn tien, sl irtersat beanng Lxans and b mu 5ar2 s ubeegL
rost Amortised costis calou'ated oy taking irto arcourt any WO PremiurT on g
anyirterest bearing loans are capitalised and arrortised ower ine iz m he AT onagn e

3¢

i) Foreign currency translation
Tranzacuons nvolving foreign currencies are corvverted at tre rat2 rul g at tva dars sf the ranwgeon

Fureign currancy monstary st and habat 2o are translated irio sterhog at the rgie ngrg 2n the b ans e zheet dale
Furgign excharges differences are recognised int== Group Slaterient of oamprarsra, e soume

j} Cash and cash equivalents

e bard and demana denosila

Cash and cach equivalents are measured gl armornt 2ad 2ast and “ompris
k) Dividends payable te shareholders

Interim drvidends are recagnised in the perica nwhich they are pa 4 and fral dividends am recognisea when apore /ea
by sharehotders

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting polices adopted are consisient with those of the previous consoldates fir anical statemants except a
noted balow

AS 30, IFRS 4.7, 9 and 16 Amendments - Intsrest Rate Berchmark Reform (Pease 2 feffect e 1 Januany 2027} IBOR reforr
m'eru 1 the qlogal reform of interest b bersohrarks wrich ne lades e ropear errent of s rerbans offared cates LBUN
with alternative benchrnark rates, To ensure users of Fnancel staiemants car 1nderstana the e¥ect of tha raform on g company »
fnancial Imstruments and risk management strateg,, agdiignal irformaon on the nature ang extznt o’ risks wevkich the compan.
15 exposad ansing from financial instrumanrts sutiect to [BOR reforis requirad. In sooit or, dets | of 1w company s progress ir
completing its Irumltlonw Callemglive benet moard ales s raguimee

werrrar L, ek ince o
ot conseguence of

IFRS 16 Amendmerts -Lavid-1 0 Relates Rant Goncassiuns (e
an optional practical expedient that simplifies haw a lezsee accoor t 3T

Covd-19, have been extended to lease payments o ginally due aror o

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued belfors the reporir g dars o n- o rea=rta s g uf’%r
a matenal effect on eguity or profit sutseg.ent per o The Grour
Fingne’a Reparting standa-d or miae abom wlaradasdo 4 i
tothe date of 1Issuance of the Group s fnarcal statzmer-s are ,!a.ud pelo s

gre s b ex e D Lo e
oted ang
. ;\_,w,r—,uj [ra

Srent

145 1 Amerd~ents - Classificat on of Lia bl\"."i‘ 3 Lurrent ¢
Tre arendreerts specify the recuirarmente © o Tl g ean

expected to ha.e a material 'mpacst on the Group s fimancial aratements

From-l g rent ] _.rt Bl date gorer ded to Jaruary lUZS
el .

earentity, 1
amearis contain
Tt b

A5 1 AmendTants - Disclosure 0 Ancountng Pehores
J sclose its malarial acnouning pgl oy inforreation in
gudance grd examiples andarufy g maler
a matenalimpact or tne Groups & ’

o

AS 2 Amendmer:s - Defnitior of Aceourtng
BItreales as monstar, amodrtsir f ’

e anfy e oo g b

to ~ave o matenal Irapart or 1

3

14212 Amencneents - Defered Tax relat
T smendra=nis e re Ar*“ |-
e SAn L arneLrts ot g

to Azsers ang Liabilic e Janadry 2003)

[7 P cwrm .

TN C‘ IT SET AN e e that e Pl re gttt r

4oy

Srral e & T enne s L

MBIAIIAQ)

uodai o)Bajens

SIDILIBINS [RINUBULY BIUBUIBADG

ansopsip QW4 pue Alesso|9

WOV Jo30II0N

UOELLIGU JAP|OYRIRYS




Notes to the financial statements

centinued
A2 Investmentincome
2022 2021
£000 £'000
andeﬁds from UK hsted m\xeslmenlém o 3,101 3753
Dividends from overseas listed iInvestments 21,349 18,656
Scrip dividends from listed investments 10,693 7,487
Property income distributions 9,027 o 5,666
3 44,170 36,557
02 Netrental income
2022 2021
£000 £000
Gross rental income 2,773 3.185
Service charge income 1,103 1,051
Direcl property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs (1,435) (1 321
Z2,441 72191 5

Operating leases

P R OTHcIN RV RE

R lan ERCTRNNNILS Halh Be

2021

£000

Within 1 year S 3,000

After 1 year but not more than 5 years 10,250 10,000
More than 5 years _ ] 17,500 19000
i 30,550 ) 32,000

A i E T ALY T e
dlte2r poesatiog J

N 2022 | 2021

] £000 £'000

Interest recevable - 1

interest on refund of overseas withholding tax 5 44
Underwriting commission ) - B 22

5 67
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05 Managemeant and performance fees

2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 éz
Management fee . 1,663 4,988 6,651 1556 4660 £7225 é‘
Performance fee o - 24489 24489 - 9859 9,659 »‘é"
1,663 29,477 31,140 1,556 14,328 15,884 -
A surmmary of the terms of the management agreement 1$ grven in the Report of the Directors on page 43
06 Other administrative expenses
2022 2021 @
£000 £'000 g
Directors’ fees (Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 56 to 58) 220 232 E
Auditor's remuneration
— for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial
statements 82 80
Legal fees 21 15
Taxation fees 77 69
Other administrative expenses 199 199 m
Other expenses 869 454 g_
Irrecoverable VAT 153 182 w
Expenses charged tc Revenue 1,621 1,23 §
Expenses charged tc Capital 608 604 %
2,229 1,835

Olrer garririgirative axpenses inclade depes tary <
charged onine 3arme basis ¢ ManGgenTant f2e
experses crarged e potnineome and L apita are £4

LUther expensas nelude oroker fees, markeli-gand PR
and hz1-qg fers, and annuat repos arg other Lt ralion o
solely to the ravenue accoun?

YAT or cosls modrred In ooneas ian with T mesaxtar g ol e s tes v e o g an Tas o Tnrddes gre charged Lo ns
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

a7

08

Finance costs

2022 2021
£000 £000
L can notes, bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1,162 1,241
Loan notes repayable between 2 - b years 814
Loan notes repayable after 5 years 539 1,384
HMRC interest- release of FII GLO provisian - ~ (240)
2,515 2,385
Amount allocated to Capital (1,886) o (1.869)
Amount allocated 1o Revenue 629 416
Taxation
a) Analysis of charge in the year
2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capitatl Total
£000 £000 £000
UK corporation tax at 19%
(2021:19%) 2,832 (2,832) - 1,986 (1,989)
Overseastaxation __..2135 - 2185 866 8 874
4,967 (2.832) 2,135 2,855 (1.981) 874
(Over)/under provisian In respect
of prior years = - - (1,980) )
4,967 (2,832) 2,135 875 (1,981) (1,106)
Deferred taxation i ) @7 {108) (686) L794)
Current tax charge for theyear 4,967 {3,049) 1,918 767 (2.667) (1,900



MBINIBAD

U3 Taxatton

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax aSseseed For tne vaar iu iower G077 e Than Ins standard cale of o roorat onlex ntbe Jhofon g args

company of 13s 2021 19%) )
The difference g explained beonw §
S,
2022 2021 2021 2021 .g
Revenue Revenue Capital Total 3
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Net profit/(foss) on ordinary
activities before taxarion B 4R4N4 235201 283605 39656 192,853
Corporation tax charge at 19%
(2021:19%) 9,197 44,688 53,885 7,535 36,647 44177
o
Effects of: i
Non taxable gains on investments - {47,317) (47,317) - (37.351) {37,351) 8
Currency movements not taxable - (337) (337) 877 R77
Tax relief on expenses charged to
capital - 3,243 3,243 - 139 139
Nor-taxable returns - (3,109) (3,109) (23) (3,380} (3,403)
Non-taxabie UK dividends (603) - (603) (572) - (972)
Non taxable overseas dividends (5.810) - (5,810) (4,573) - (4,573) g
Qverseas withholding taxes 2,135 - 2,135 866 8 874 %
Deferred tax movement - (217 (217) (108) (686) (794) -+
(Qver)/under provision in respect 3
of prior years - - - {1.980) (1,980 %
Disallowable expenses 26 - 26 19 - 19
Deferredtaxnotprovided 22 -~ 22 3. o84 1,087
4967 (3049 1918 67 (2867 (1.900)

c) Provision for deferred taxation

@
=]
g
Tne amounls for oelered laxalon aroyvide $at 05 D07 T amprise §
o
Group z
=
2021 2021 2021 s
Revenue Capital Total 3
£'000 £'000 £000 @
Accelerated capital allowances - - -
z
Unutilised losses carned forward - (e03) (903 - (68E) - (e86) )
Shown as: S..
>
Deferred taxasset . - {903) _(903) - (6BE) (686} g
g
1]
g
oy
>
o
3
g
2
=

AN SREorT A T g s



Notes to the financial statements
continued

Iaearon
c) Provision for deferred taxation continued

Company 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Unutilsed losses carried forward . (903) (903} s (688) {686}
Shown as-

Deferredtaxasset , - (903)  __(903) e .. {686) .. (686)

The movement in provision in the year is as follows:

Group 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021

REELUE Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000

Frovision at the start of the year - (686) (686) 108 - 108

Accelerated capital allowances - - - (108) - (108}

Unutiised losses carried forward - (@17 {21 (686)  (68%)

Provision at the end of the year - (503) {903) - {686) (H86)
Company

2021 2021 2021

Revenue Capital Total

£000 £'000 £000

Provision at the start of the year - (686) (686) 108 108

Accelerated capial allowances - - - (108) (108}

Unutilised losses carried forward (217) - (688) (686)

Provision at the end of the year (903) .1686)

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earmings per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital as below

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£000 £000

Net revenue profit 43,437 38,889

Netcapitalprofit N . . 238280 ) 195,520
Net total proﬁl ) 281,687 ) 234‘4097‘
Weighted average number of shares in issue duning the year 317,350,980 ) 317,350,980
Revenue earnings per share 13.69 1225
Capital earnings per share N B o 7507 61 61
Earnings per Ordinary share _88.76 7386

The Group has no secunities in issue that could dilute the retura per Oradinary share Therefors the basic and dilutad return per
Ordinary share are the same



10 Investments held at farr value

a) Analysis of investments

Company Group Company

2022 2021 2021

£000 £'000 £'000

Listed in the United Kingdom 516,076 516,076 364,176 394176

Unlisted in the United Kingdom 2,341 2.3 1,468 1,468

Listed Overseas 940,744 840,744 921,801 921,801

Investment properties 47,275 47,275 83,071 83,071

Invesbients Leld for sale .. 48980 48980 - .

Investments held at fair value 1,555,416 1,555,416 1,400,516 1,400,516

Investments in subsidianes

at fair value et 36,297 . 43312
1,555,416 1,591,713 1,400,516 1,443,828

IFvestnents

b) Business segmernt reporting

Listed nvestments
Unlisted investments
Contracts for difference
Total Investments segment

Direct property segment

noseekimg 1o
anrrd o Ly
rgr'_ 3 that there are two

OB D s1nes

[he ropert

[
r=Gr g segmen

yoanty ey

Anreal Moo s s o et Do

nela for sale Moxed U
to complete oy the end of June 2022 Noimparment l055e5 o

T ily nestmert obpact

- diztint reporung .
oerfornaroa and i i drwﬂﬁfrf—umurw = [ o fan
T w>qmer Aonaregalar bas’s
segrients, general administratrse expenses
asssls and 3ooas resenes for 2ach s=gment 47

e wathin mote 5 ogme £

R D S RIS TUR NI L aE

sed oroperty, me Uolonradess, Londar W2
rreversals are antic

Valuation

31 March
2021

£'000
1,315,977
1,468
(147)

1,317,304

83071
1,400,375

(Lo T

LT Y
pated

Net Neat
additions/ appreciation/
{disposals) (depreciation) ]

£'000 £000
(54,724) 235,067

(42) 915

©(8563) 16,361
(102,829) 252,343
_. 178 13056
(102.701) 265399

S Ne=simerts g7 'J
h 5 e I}_, ad
anc arel g
HH' roallow ac JF‘ A

arder offer with g s

Gross

Valuation revenue
31 March 31 March
2022 2022
£000 £000
1,456,820 43,775
2,341 395

- 7,657 5,701
1,466,818 49,871

_...96255 3876

_. 1563073 = 53,747

wourties of o
1~ e K T
whicnare used fo- #
ar recepss riormntne
s rTrbutes LI e Teratiing
LJ'T@"* e be determined The

opeTy
e ey

SIS ol

o

als expaniad

Gross
revenue
31 March
2021
£'000

36,403
154

3320

39,877
4236

- 44013
Cr el
Sy b arefiore
HNDLE e
Nt

] et
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

Zem

Destleat s Peed at b oy i

¢) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net SERYEHTE) revenue revenue

31 March  additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2021 (disposals) (depreciation) 2022 2022 2021

£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

UK hsted equities and convertibles 394,176 30,844 91,056 516,076 11,731 10,265

UK unlisted equities 1,468 - 873 2,341 395 154

UK drect property’ 83,071 128 13,056 96,255 3,876 4,236

Conrinental European listed equities 921,801 (1257110) 144053 940744 32044 26138

1,400,516 (94,138) 248,038 1,555,416 48,046 40,793

UK contracts for difference? 584 (9227 10,270 1,627 1616 1,242

European contracts for difference? (725) 664 6,091 6,030 4,085 2,078

1,400,375 (102,701} 265399 1,563,073 63,747 44113
Mcluded inthe above Ggures are purchase costs of EI3G.000 12027 £7LT 000 ars rosts of £259 00012027

£ DO
Tridae s s de ANy 31arm s Suly 2ned Jormer s
Tre Saripany
year Tre boo
[MREENSEI Lz re

Vi e o the mvesiments

! Ml ucdiions, [dis;::

PN A NS roreanaert OF rant fras non g

B ; rereer e for cont PRI L FR E R ir
postior s b o Trs aoracghon T N L
‘ Thadeprs anen roe TRE reliaben e et P s g e T pean Ll

d) Substantial share interests

T Tropentedd prleranisn A

CR D B B B T I DA S R
[ .ol ’:"Q" PR IR L =T S EEE SRS - = L
L S I IPRSRERC I FRE R B I 1. a5 O A T
T a Lt - Gamn L TEII T T LT el - ] - 1T
B P
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T Invastrirents held at Far value

e} Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The table belowe 2215 oot farvaloe megsuremeris ns ng tFRS T faer walus nieran_hy

Financial assets/{liabilities} at fair value through profit or loss §

(1]

-1

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 3

At 31 March 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000 §
Equity investments 1,456,820 - 2,341 1,459,161
Investment properties - - 96,255 96,255
Contracts for difforence 7,657 - 7,657
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 273 - 2,736

1,456,820 10,393 98,596 1,565,809 9

g

o

3
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 3% March 2021 £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Equity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445
Investment properties - - 83,071 83,071
Contracts for difference - (147) - (1471}

Foreign exchange forward contracts L (1eh i - 107 §

1315977 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268 %

The tabie above represents the Group s fair value hieras by Ths Sormpany 2 fair va ue hisrarchy s identica except for lhe "y

mncasion of the fair value of the irvestment in sLosicarn vhick o 31 March | Fo0, 97, 000 (2027 £271,797 2 066! E

Thase nave baen categorsed as lase 50 ooth years The mos=mentin the year of £70 PUAGA T ET 1T 000 05 the i

change in fair value in the year, which includes a distribution from g subsidiary company of £7,000,000. "ne total finaraizl @

e

assets at far salus fortbe Company ol 31 March 207 2 pun £7 501 7172050 2007 0 110

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

31 March Appreciation / g

2021 Purchases Sales (Depreciation) | a

At 31 March 2022 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 <2
2

Unisted equity investments o 1468 - - . B73 2,341 E
Investment properties §
- Mixed use 47,977 3/2 - (162) 48,187 §
- Office &Industriel 35094 T BEYAL 48,068 £
i} 83.071 a2 1305 96285 "

S 84,539 _.37? J1382% 98,596 z

Al aporecaion (deprer @ior] as L7a7esd abo e s2lato L L Tew=m=nl o n i s L un stad eg ity nesen ey ard g
s TSN et iz b2l ot 4 Marc bk 20 by
o

TP BT aD e LT RO IS T ST T e it s T e T i) e

Transfers between hierarchy levels

There voere i, Uandher, during Re yea  DeTs oon any o7 e e

UOIVBLLIOJ U Japjoyaseys
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

BT TR R N I A S I TL AT

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant unobse-vasle inputs used mthe fat salie measaremen g
i : cenl properlies g

Lo fH - feh e o

soraed arhin Levsl #oof e for alle

s Estimgtes rer

L rales 2 DA o %y

Canitaesat

Signif-zant noreases (decreases) ir estimat ed rental value and rersgras
migher lawer) fair /alu: TEaSUTEman: & sIguncart ing ‘e cre P irgetermvaca
result in g significantly lower (Righer farr vzlue measurarr

e msolaton vesolg resulric g sigevizactly
¢ rate ir solatan

Thera arsinterrelatanst ps betwean ey e ds ard renal saclaes os ey o e
The sersitivity of the valuatior o changes inthe rost signif cant -routs par ﬂiasa ’lf in e;t Tlmt promﬂrt« 372 .shc‘n i
el

Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial

2022 arising from " £'000

Increase In rental va\ue by 5% 306 2,266 145 2,717
Decrease In rental value by 5% (299 (2266) L) (2,561)
Increase in yield by 0.5% (3,865) (6,343) (832) (11,040}
Decreasenyeldby0S% 481 =~ 8Mm S 1L 14,653
Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial Other Total
2021 arising from £000 £000 £'000 £000
Increase In rental value by 5% 31[) 1,585 50 1,945
Decrease inrentalvalueby 5% (250) (1.610) ey {1,885
Increase in yeld by 0 5% (4,040) (5835) (925) (10,800}

Decreaseinyieldby05% 5,165 9%05 1,328 15,985

I

Eoanceal imstryments

Risk management policies and procedures

. - e - - o er - - -
- Cavinal LoLll o SRR T RS A 5 PR O i
= r Cel ezl N . M M I bl S - -
- e e T R TR ros - e o
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S Al Repart B A T ourts

Froancial mstruments

11.1 Market price risk

By the very nature of s actites, tne Group s irvast mienafs are exoosed 1o maswe! srce Fuctuatons
Management of the risk

Tre Manager runs a diversified partfolio and ruc\,rtdt ot
mMieeing C e Board mantors theanvsstment gt 1 i

rd onthe portfoho acieat, ane oerfarmance at ez
Ty oo e o i LWITpR I s .

W]

The Group s & changes nomatke orices 07l gueata T 2oty e seslrrents UFDL Gn my@simisrt 2roperty

porifoing, wa

Investments held at fair value 1,555,416 1,400,516
CFDlong gross exposure 144642 14500

Concentration of exposure to price risks
As selout:n the Invesimen: Fol'g1es an page 273 1 are ara Quiasinegs Lo 1me amo r [ e o= o 2 :.mqe IRMIpany,
gecgraphcal region or direct property The TS ar app i sad of wxp ;
orice risks As an nvestment company de Mentn che Sropen var b
Moveman!s ac s the propesty asset Cass

Price risk sensitivity

The following tanle illustrates the sensitvity of the profit after taxarion for e year ang the salue of sharshaolgers funds t
arincrease ar decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Sroun's eguit,, “xed interest, CFD and direct property in.estments
The \s val of change is consictent vtk thel'us-aion snownin the orevious yeas The sensilizily s el on the Group's
aquity, fixed interest, CFD ard direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, wth 3l sther variables hela constant,

2022 2022 2021 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Statement ofComprehemswe
Incorme — profit after tax

Revenue return (115} 115 (103} 103
Capital return 234176 (234,176) 209801 ) (203,801)
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’funds 234,061 (234,061) 209698 (209,698)
Change to total earnings per Ordmary

Share } - 1375 (G375 . 6608p o _(6608)p

11.2 Currency nsk

A oroportion of the Groun s portfeho iz nvested noovarseas securiws ol thai
Dy I semenls o fore g exe iange e,

signitcanth atfectag

terhrg valoe 2an be

Management of the risk

The Board racetves g repor at each Board mezlng rnitbe on
Lares orciher currene jes Tre Grogp my
furiding investrnentsin o
'V‘ Jy‘.‘“w‘arlj ".U”‘“f\".“

e bir steri e
1 Coarmzone oy
Cyourtbrsge

ER AR Sl

IR AT~ To I

SEEL SACLT S

e tan
ZTN e Iy

Steeremgy s s Dur e e el 2 e 0t

2022 2021
- £'000 £000
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

DR LA T R N TR

Foreign currency exposure

At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:

(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency m 2021
Sterling i 34.0% 28 0%
Euro 42.0% 51.0%
Swedish Krona 16.0% 13 0%
Other o 8.0% 8 0%
Tre o cing tatle sets out the Srou's 1ota expuost e B foragn curransy nsh and e o2 2v00a 002 L frire g~ curencies

of the et moretary assats ard datilites

2022
Recewvables (due from brokers,
dividends and other income receiwvable)

Cash at bank and on deposit
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts

Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors)

FX forwards

Total Vférelgn'c'urrency exposure on net
mongtary items

Investments held at fair value
Non-current assets
Non-current habilities

To{arlﬁcrgrrrgncy exposure

2021
Recelvables (due from brokers,
dividends and other income receivable)

Cash at bank and on depgasit
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts

Payables (due to brokers, ac¢ruals and
other creditors)

FX forwards

Totaf -fore|gn currency exposure on net
rmonetary items

Investments held at far value
Nan-current assels
ngjgggrrent habihtes
Total currency exposure

Fereign currency sensitivity

Tretalln

Sterling
£000
53,912 27,758 12,659
20,341 3,247 2,883
{35,000) - -
(25,642) (111) (1,634)
(88,280) (10,996) 59,877
(74,669) 19,898 73,785
614,672 680,755 181,455
903 - -
_(15,000) _ (42283) e
525906 658,400 255,240
Swedish
Sterling Euro Krona
£'000 £'000 £000
49 467 10668 561
22 853 4,339 650
(95,000)
{10.142) (1,037
(61,209) 13,848
(94,038} 13,976 15.058
478,715 707968 155,635
686
(15000) (42,593) .
370365 678,35 170,694
i’ B eI S N T LR T cLooenL
B R T
N
=

608
5,638

(3,722

_ 42335

44,659
78,534

123,193

Other
£'000

299
1272

46,254

47825
58,188

106,023
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Finunuia instruments

Foreign currency sensitivity continued

A starlng had strengthened aga’™~st ' ne currencies snow, this woou d Pave fiad 1

Year ended March 2022
Swedish

Euro
£'000

Statement of Comprehensive
Income - profit after tax

Revenue raturn (3,500)

Capital return

Change to the prdﬂ_t'gt-ér_'tgi far

the year/shareholders funds (92,941}

Change to total earnings per Ordinary share

..(89.441)

ol oy (IS | = et

Swedish
Euro Krona
£000 £'000

Krona
£000

(2,726)
(83243)

(589)
(20.269)

(436)
(23,632)

(276)
(10,228)

(24,068)  (10,504) (85969

2022

I¥ 5ter 17 had weakensd agamst the currenc.es shown, 1h < wou d have e fallowing effect

Year ended March 2022
Swedish

Euro
£000

Statement of ComprehéHsive
Income ~ profit after tax

4,896
121,078

Revenue return
Capital return

Swedish
Krona
£'000

Krona Furo
£000 £000

341 732
124633 27,440

525 345
31,996 13,847

Change to the prb-ﬁ-f-“a-\fte-r- tax for
the year/shareholders’funds

125974
Change tototal earnings per Ordinary share

11.3 Interest rate risk
[lerast rale masernee s miay of =el

32521 14192 128044 28172

~the fair value of any nvastrreris v fixed ‘nterest sacannss,

<R fair sgte of e aan eotens

k e res ety - frose ~ash g
OF mbarest Sxpenae on ary vatinll-
Slerprices o the andetlyng aecarhes he'd o

el

Management of the risk
The posaibis 2*fects oo Yair value and cask ™
dcoonun wher rraklng e iiment dec

Pl mudhitor e g,

PR T I S STyt B M AT

R AR TN sl W

e partfolos

T
qpr

SIS o B
RSN Lato I LN AR~ IN s T=al B e

¢ The pterast ~afes 211

oo

Tl Len

BT R T ST L B A T

{20,858)

Year ended March 2021

Other
£'000

(250}
(7,579)

(7,829)

2021

(36.13)p

Year ended March 2021

Other
£'000

318

10,262

10,580

2021
52 56p
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

Management of the risk continued

Traltarager Sons ders batk the l=ue of gen o -
drasr; ard the see-inaiLgn gear ng takmg ni-
canziderieg e mvestment purfoins Trewe qeanr] evai. gos r2p0r e

“he mrajarity of the Sroun s investment portfol o i nor- el oL ELAIs R Re

drectly subject 1 significant armounts of risk dus to fl norsin e oreys

Interest rate exposure

The exposure at 31 Marck of financial assets and f-anoal ab lries o 1msrest raTe nak s 2o oy 2fereros by
- floatng interast rates wher the inarest rate s due to e re-.e0

- tixed interest rates: whan the financial instrurrart 1a due 1o oe repaid

The

Tne Group s expasure to fxed nlerest rates an fas |

The Group s exoosure 0 Foating interest -ates on hablites s

In*erest race™ ;

+ The finance charges on tne £00m and £7bm lcar naes areat

The yegr anm amusLrl ot ol repregertyl e of e e g
shangas as mvestrmerts are made i fixed tarest
borrowmings netweaer Foatnig and frxed iverestr

Interest rate sensitivity

e bl Th Rl I S ol

2021 2021
Increase Decrease
£'000 £'000

(1.176) 1176

Change to shareholders’ funds

Change to total earnings
per Ordinary share

(037)p

037

TR o ) SRR MO TE LT 3T R T P PR e
11.4 Liquidity risk
soreeilAT - o -
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Fotaii e InSiniment

Debt and Financing rmaturity profile

Within Within More than

1year 4-5 year 5year
At 31 March 2022 £000 £'000 £000
Bank loans* 35,000 - - - - - 35,000
Loan notes - - - 42,253 - 15,000 57,253
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,241 539 2,124 7954
Secunties and propertias
purchased for future settlement 5,364 - - - - - 5,364
Accruals and deferred mcome 25,523 - - - - - 25,523
Othercrediors 222t Tt 222

e ... 67459 1350 1,350 43494 339 17124 131,316

Within Within Within Within Within  More than

1 year 1-2 year 2-3year 3-4 year 4-5 year 5 year Total
At 3T March 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans 95,000 - - - : - 95,000
Lean notes - - - 57,593 57,593

Projected interest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 2178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,293
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - 10,719
Othercreditors R L ) el ) e 110

o 108007 - 1,355 1.356 1356 135 60286 173717

* A F50mM multicurrency féCll\ty with RES was rerewed for one yé-‘;r |n_February 2022.£35m '\2021 £50m) was drawn on this facmtﬁf at the balance sheet date.
* A £30m one year facility with ING Luxembourg was renawed in July 2021 NI (2021 30m) was drawn on this faciity at tne balance sheet date
* A £40m facity with ICBC was renewed n November 2021, Nil (20271 15m) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet cate.

Management of the risk
The MINAQar Lol guigelines for the rmgirmdrm e posar= of e pars®
Lt the | Tent Folcies anpage /70 Al g, ;
valae orser £5 7 hon must be gporossed by e L

F3 LT s T dra pn ner e lnels The e
il e seer BT and dre L pnoberty ine=s I 2ol

ein e

dhroun he

Lo T e

wEdent o

The Corrgany mamntams regular coo Ty th s Danac pros ding v g B i 2t am e e
vl aread of fac Ty rensyg: dates 0 ada o Tha Ly Mosmy 2% anr ] re s Shorin iz
urgoing bass

VOSLT

11.5 Credit risk
The fnllre ot 4 untergrty 1o g bransa en i £ e nre g L T o)
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Management of the risk
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

2022 2021
Maximum Balance
exposure Sheat
£'000 £000

Debtors 97,673 97,673 60,990

Cash and cash equivalents . _.32109 32109 29714
129,782 129,782 96104

Vmere the Gre
and Fo-al n higs, i1 ke wable aboy
impact of these loases s immaterial as

(=]

Offsetting disclosures

Inorder to better gefine its coniractualrights and 12 3
the Group may 2ntas inte a1 1504 Master Agreer~

Al AJTEement uan agreemeant ket
[orepgn 2 Par g SOriracts gnd Yo Sy o el

e o ST a deianll ane arrsrevnat,n 2
to offset with the countarpart; certair dery
Medang orcosed and crealhar e sir gl ~2l

; Jer pomkrunicy ur
gntof sffseir baree o

es set aur in the falloving tables ircluds Trancat 2 sard franc gitaolit s s
1150

Sler ™ ng arange mMert o0 Srmilas g JrasrTien”

DOt 2T the Group’s dere e

T B e O AR R To A o i

Mgt

2021
Maximum
exposure
£'000
60,950
26114
90,104

Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021

Net amounts 5 Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ : assets/

- liabilities liabilities
presented in e presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance
Sheet .. . pledged Sheet

£000 . : £000 £'000

CFD positions
Goldman Sachs

1,657
1857

(141}

FX forward contracts:
H38C Z76 . = JLn167)

273 . " 1.167)

45133 L e

Cash collateral
pledged
£000
50813
50,913
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YO Fmoancialbmatrinmients

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
sost freferto Note 15, the fzirvalues o7 the financial assets

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amartis

ard finanaial llabhtes are either carmed in tne balarce sheet at therr faic valse Jmoestmentsy or the balance sheet ]

amourt s a reasonatle zpproxireationr o far wa e (ceblors oot cashat cank and cark ooerdrafls sooroale anc g

prepIyIT=nis) S

: : 3

Tha farvalnes of the isted mvasimeants are derrved o the o lns g prese ar Ias frade Lol g 0wreek 1oe Lol it en ars B

qucl=d oa the Lundon Siock Bxchang dotberreragmie=d e hiunges 2

Tre fair vinlue of corracts far diffaranc e ura Doaw 58 P nCeri N 1sTed SRS TTer dorvat above arg =

amra it due from o 1 the countergarty oo der the oo L mmnerten 35 anasl o dar ity aceord raly wheen

cisctged o Note 15 for the current yesr

Tha fair values of the properties are derived (rom an spen rmar<er (Rec Bood falualior o7 ne ooaperties un the Balane 2

Sheet date by an ndeperdens firm of valuzrs (Knight Frank: o
Q

Trere was one unquot=d mvestirent al the Baance srest date, Atrate wetn g "o value of 2,000 (2021 Arglo, &

£1,488,000) B
8

b

In the Parent Caompany asrounts there are nueatments of £70 297 00072027 £47 73712 0001 r unlbsted subsidiarsa whick
are classihed as level 3.

The amourts of cnange i fair valug for investments (mclud ng net etdrms or CFDg recogreed ntne consolidated profis
arloss far the yeas was 4 gam of £765.399 00075271 . ]

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
Tre (roup s capital management abjeelives ary
< teeensure that il will be able 1o continue as a geng enno=m; g

© Lo maximmss the otal return 1o s egqaity starebolders through an appronizie balance of 30 Uy capital ann den:

Are capetal soare orermourn capital regempnr on
- Gronp ooes notregard the logn aoes anid

The equity capital of the Group at 3% Marer 2020
and revenues reserves tatalling £1,562 739,000 (2027 L1 73268
DArs s permanant capral

~ors stea of g e d up s
FIULT

SUMLDIS [BrouSUly

s e Agusted Tola Assels shall at gl ey ba e s et 3 0 neeges 7 G S Tolal Bormoy mgs, and

shie ol b beas tran £276000000 oy

coir2 ATpusted NA

Group Company
2021 2021
£000 £000

2INsoPRsIp QWY pue Aessolg

Amounts falling due within one year

Secunities and properties sold for
future settlement 33,138 33,138 267 267

Foreign exchange forward contracts
for settlement 2,736 2,736

Tax recoverable 3,344 2,879 4,231 3,761

Prepayments and accrued income’ 5168 5168 5176 5176

Amounts recevable in respect of
Contracts for Difference 7,657 7,657 -

CFD margin cash 45,133 45133 50,613 50,913
Other detors ) 487 . 497 403 403
97,673 - 97,208 60980 60,520

WOV Jo 3ON

Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset .. 903 903 , 686 .. 686

UGIIBILIO UL JBP|0YIBYS

' Incluges amounts inrespect of rent free penods.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

13 Current and non-current hiabilities

Group
2021
£000
Armounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdrafts 35,000 35,000 95,000
Securities and properties purchased
for future settlement 5,364 5364 194
Amounts due to subsidianies - 35,869
Amounts payable in respect of
Caontracts for Difference - - 141
Tax payable - - 9
Accruals and deferred income 25,523 25,523 10,719
Foreign exchange forward contracts
for settlement - - 1,107
Other creditors o w22 18 110
e, . ..em9 101,939 107,280
Non-current liabrities
1 92% Eurc Loan Notes 2026 42,253 42,253 42,503
3 59% GBF Loan Notes 2031 15000 15,000 - 15,000
_ 57,253 ,, 57,253 57,593
Loan Notes
S L TN L AN A TP - Loam bt oo
GO Loan bt R - '

ey Losar Tote PR ! [ el ¢ RN AR S IR e
o st gd ek -

I B e B L T L I e B L L I R T AP IS

Thelzan ~0t=3 agresmeant regares 2o oliz T T VA P S P Bt LA e S ol WVl B gk

ToralBarr e maz by rom e s TR LT e

Fo e T e T U — P DA

LT

Tro ’"’f)'/,’:’;'u; ™I =2 T -] . P Ml i I

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities

i e EARS LT - - 7 = .

Company
2021
£000

95,000

194
42,880

141
9
10,685

1107
104
150,120

42,593
15,000
57,593



3 Current and non-current hiabiines
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term Short term
debt debt

Group and Company £'000 £'000
Opening liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 57,593 95,000 152,593
Cash flows:
Repayment of bank loans - (60,000) (60,000)
Non cash-flows
Movement on foreign exchange  (340) = (340
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2022 ) ) 57,253 35000 92,253

14 Called up share capital

Ordinary share capital
The balance classifed as Ordinary share 2apital neluges the nomiral value proceeds on treissue of the Greimary equity
share capital comprising Ordi~ary shares o8 2o

Issued, allotted
Number and fully paid £'000

Ordinary shares of 25p
At April 2021 317,350,980 79,338

At3TMarch 2022 - 317,350,980 79,338

15

The yatirg rigbhts are disrinsec in the Report of the Direr tars 0 pang= 45

Durfr'q the year, lre Lompany Macs ro mareet urrasey for Canse aior o5 deany sharas <f 755 =ath ool nona)

ce A March 2022 e Ordirary shares boL = pesr purrrassn ard - grosliag

4

13 Share DFEW‘ U acoount and canital redemniior r2Ls L2

Share premium account

The balance classified as snare prem i no ludes the pramiLm above ~ominal value fromiing proceads o ssee of the
2QUIty arare capita comprising Ordinary o ares a7 URE
Capital redemption reserve

The cnpital fedemptan CeRenie 1L Lanrd o fod ar 1 A our e L Lslent e trs v rdl vn e o pur bages ot e
Comrpary Loovin shares inarder 1o e nls SInpEry L apil

T g “ru:!;irl‘:,u"

Group Company

2021 2021

£'000 £'000

Investment holding gains 412,934 431,260 335,322 360,663
Realised capital reserves 918,057  B91,806 757418 731,167
1,330,991 1,323,066 1,092,740 1,091,830

Revenue reserve 85277 73,202 67,222 - 68,137
B 1,396,268 1,396,268 1,159,862 ) - 1,159,962

Jarirele gt

Lt
; o

entreent hold ng gars g <7 Riuree
AATTIRNTE AN A g S ERE el T T
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

17 Dividends

8 B0p) per Ordinary share

(2021 5 20p} per Ordinary share

year

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£000 £000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equrty holders in the year
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9 00p (2020
28,562 27,927
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 5 30p
B o 16819 16,502
— 45,381 44,476
Amagunts not recogrised as distrbutians to equity holders in the
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 9.20p
26,196 28,562

{2021 3.00p} per Ordinary share

Thergidifoend nas ot ocesn includes as a lan by inotrese froae ual sizterients
Irs raport ng pas o

naccordarce v tbh [AS 7D Coents after

AT Ul e s AT il e mat TR SIS SN e T DI
SEtne Corporaton Tgx A0 20
' 2022 2021
£000 £'000
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2027 of 5 30p. ' ’ N
(2021 5 20p) per Ordinary share 16,819 16,502
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022
of 9 20p (2021: 9 00} per Qrdinary share 29,196 28,567
46,61&} 45,064

H P Ias by

NHENy Slaternent GF COMTEN T L 0

:ret profitaftertaagtan o
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21 Subsidiaries
The Groop has the folceng prinoipal suzsid aries, all 07wk fase regiatered ane parn g
in Scotlard, England and Wares

Name Reg. Nurmber Principal Activities %
* New England Properties Limited 788885 Non trading company §
* The Colonnades Limited 2826677 Nan-trading company %
* Showart Limited 2500726 Non-trading company =
* Trust Union Properties Residential Developments | imited 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investment Trust Ltd 2475846 Non-trading company
The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited 2416015 Non-trading company
The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited 2415843 Non-trading company o
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited 2416017 Non-trading company g
* Trust Union Praperties (Number Five) Limited 24715839 Non-trading company %
* Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited 2416018 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited 2415836 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited 2416019 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limnited 2415833 Non-trading company
Trust Urion Properties (Number Ten} Limited 2416021 Non-trading company
Trust Urion Properties {Number Eleven} Limited 2415830 Non-trading company é“
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited 24160272 Non-trading company %
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen} Limited 2415818 Non-trading company §
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Nan-trading company g
Trust Unien Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited 2476026 Non-trading company ®
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited 2475806 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 2416027 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited 2415768 Non-trading company @
* Trust Urion Properties (Bayswater) Limited 2416030 Property investment g
* Trust Union Properties (Cardiff) Limned 2415772 Non-trading company g
* Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited 2416031 Non-trading company ng'
* Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two) Limited 2415765 Non trading company %
* Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited 2416036 Non-trading company g
= Skillion Finance [ imited 2420758 Non-trading company é
* Trust Union Finance (1991) Plc 2663501 Investment financing ’
* FGH Developments Limited 1481476 Non-trading company §
* FGH Developments (Aberdesn) Limited SC68799 Non-trading company g
* FGH (Newcastle) Limded 1466619 Non-trading company §
*NEP (1994) Limited G77481 Non-trading ccmpany
* New England Developments Limited 1385909 Non-trading company
* New England Investments Limited 2613905 Non-trading company
* New England Retall Properties Limited 1447271 Non trading company
* New England (Scuthern) Limited 1787371 Non-trading company w
* Sapco One L imited 8034840 Nan-trading company EZ
* Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624 Non-trading company %
* Trust Union Finance Limited 12339498 Investment holding and finance company (5:’,.
* [R Property Finance Limited 2475941 Investrnent holding and finance company g
* Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097 - Nen trading company Ej

- .
1177 e
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

N Shbod
Atk suns daries ore fully ownag and s ks okl

g5t sffice of Excha
FOH Geveloprmerls (Azeniesny Limited whizr 3 2000

* The Corpany ras provided g guarantas for aos
regaremicnt of an gadil T ong eotn e

P
(3]

Related party transactions disclosures
Balaroas and transactuor s bey
consolidation Tas ba ances ars inler-s] e s Lred

[Ehale

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

2022
£000

The Colonnades Limited 22,619
TR Property Finance Limited 13,270

New England Properties Limited ] (20
35,869

=t Lonaon B2 ZHS sth the o

4 Fecvalmooare Barbargs s B

pEe ) e Lormipar sy il g e gretmated parbe s Pains Do

N of

aon frumibe

S BT T

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remmunarglion of ez Direr o ors wt
categores specified 1n 125 24 Ralatec
Fepor: arpage S/

IR SR TR I R A e T
adedg ribe audted pats

Directors’ transactions
Trarsactons.e anares Sy et gre Lo dere g e g el le Dy iyt g ten et e
aleas Lrestars
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

Titivg PerTor nance

Altermative Periormance Measuras are numen.z:
meaas.Jes of the Company's cu-rent or histaral
performance financial position or cash flows oTner
tha~ tre financial measures def ned or specified in the
Sirancial Statements

Te neasyres defined nelow are considered o be
Alternative Performance Measures They are vigwed o
partirulaly relevant ard are frequently quotad for ol
ended Investmert nomoanies

Total Return

The NAY Total Retur~ s caloulated oy reinvesting tre
disiderds in the agsets of the Company fromthe relevat
ex-diacent rate Dividends are deanec (e o2 renvasted
amiTe ex Gradena date as this 1s the pratocol Leed

Sy ime Comnpary's berchmark ard other 1mdices The
Snace Prca Total Return s caloulated by einsesting e
diadands intne srares of the Comoany from the “elasart
ex-didend date

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2021 (pence) 417 97 392 50
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence) 49243 45650
Change in year 17 8% 16 3%
Impact of dividends reinvested 3.6% 36%
Total Return for the year 21 4% 19 9%

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2020 (pence) 35811 3175
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2027 (pence) 41/ 97 3925
Change in year 16 7% 23 6%
Impact of dridends reinvested 4 0% 4 7%
Total Return for the year 20 7% 28 3%

Ongoing Charges

The Jrgore Drarges “atid has
arnaroanTe Wikt the et by tne A0 as the
tatal of meestment maragemert fees and acmimsttati.e
SXEANGES exaransad Gs i pertentage of the aserage

Mat fgs=2t Values threuybour (e year The da2finition o7
ACTNNISIratl, e BX2enses e 0 2ude gronert, rolated
Sxpensss the (ngor 17ges calzulatnon i o

S -JF th

aeen caloulatadin

1A

nclosive ang exclus 232 akzenses o alltw

cmparisen of tre dirsct acrmimistrative ard maragemesnt
charges with the rmajonty of Irvestment Trusts vhich oo
not rold any drect orope-ty iryvestmeants

Excluding
including  Exchuding  Performance
Perforrnance Performance  Fees & Direct
Fees Fees Properly
Management
Fee (note 9) 31,140 6,651 6,651
Other
Administrative
expenses
{note 6) 2720 2,220 2,220
Property
Costs 332 332
Less: Non
recurring
expenses
33692 9,203 8,871
Average Net
Assets 1,536,825 1,536,825 1,536,825
Ongoing
Charge 2022 219% 0 60% 0 58%

Managemeant

Fee (note 5} 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses

{note 6) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Property

Costs 270 270

Less: Non

recurring

£xpenses
) 17,989 8,330 8,060
Average Net

Assets 1,283,051 1,283,051 1,783,051

angoing

Charge 2027 140% 0 65% 063%



Net Debt

N2t rdebt s the total vatue ot loan ~otes, loars Oncluding
rotional exposure o0 CFDSs and TR3s) less cask as o
proportion of net asset value

The net geaning has been calculatec as follows

| oan notes 57753 57,593
Loans 35,000 95,000

144642 146,001
(32,709)  (29,114)

CFD positions {noticnal exposure)

Less: Cash

Less: Cash collateral (included within

‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) {45133} (50,613)

159653 218,567

Equity sharehclders’ funds 1,562,739 1,326,433
Net gearing 10 2% 16 5%

Tne Ongoing charges ratio provided 11 the Cormpay's
Key information Document 15 calcutated in ing vtk
the PRIIPS regulatiors whicn s different to the AIC
methodology above

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

This s calculated by laking the final dvidend in the
tme sertes, divided oy the mihal gradend in the Denicd,
ralsed to the powveer oF 1 diviced by the number of
17 the senes

YEATS

Average Discount

The sum of each daly discourt { the discount of trs
slosing share prine 1o the published AIC NAY vt
irzomel draded oy the number of daves int-e given
time penag

Key Performance Indicators

Tae Roard assesses the performance of toe Marage-
inomeetmng e Trust's objectve againgt 4 ~umoer of
<ey Perfarmarce [marmators, these are 2onspiereo o
bie Alternatrse Performance Measares Details of thess
caleulations are set oat above

A ol I L APSTIEDON s L R

for regulating tne manugers of “alternative invastment
tunds” tAIFS) 1His cesignen to regalate any Fund whirn
15 nota LIS il-dertakangs fo- Collertas 10 sestment
M Tracsteranle Secunties) fa-c and s s mananed

ormatketed im e LU

AlC

The Aszooiation of nvestment Companes -

the A'Cas the representative nody for closed ended
INvestment companies

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure of financial performance or financial
positian other than a linancial measwere defined or
specified in the accou~ting stataments.

Discount

The amourt by which tre mnar<et arice ¢° & shase of ar
irvestment trust s lower than the Net Asset Value per
srate expressed as a percentage of the NAY per share

Key information Document

Linder the SRIIPS Regllatiors a short, consumer friendly
Key riormation Documentis reculred setiing out e
key features, ris<s ewards a~d nosts of the 7202 ard
15 Intendes to assistinvestors to ottar undarstanc the
[rust a~d mak= compan 5 batween Trusts

The documest inciunes ashimatas of Investment

ceonder a namoer of scenancs [ ase
caloulaticns g2 orescanes oy tre regulatinn anag are
aaned purely an cecent fustoncal data tisamoortart
far s, 7410 rate trat trare 15 no judgem=et apolien
and these do not nany way reflect the Board or

GRCTONMEG

Key Performance Indicator ('KPI')
A KOs aquant Fable measares thiat evaluates how

LU, e st 15 e

Pruat’s KIF G oare T s S e 00 Dagy

MiFID
[ he Mg et s =g 2l nstre e ts Directr o2 s tne B

egislation teat regolates frmvs who orovide s2rices 1o

Ay e e

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
Toe zilue af il acaets e hambhes anclaeino

corrosang .t diac=a by the rambe of sramesirmsae
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
continued

maccerdance wite the AI=M D infarmatcr in elatic
to the Company's leverage anc ~emuneratian of the
company's AIFM, FRC I-vestment pusiness Limitzc,

Is requirea to be made avallavle to mvestors Jetalar
egulatory aisclosures ircluding those on the A M 's
remaneration pohoy are azailable an the FAD webaits
or from FRG o~ reguest The rumencal remaneration
aisclosures inrelatior 1o tne AIFM's first relevan:
anzoanting penad will be Made avaltable i dus sourse

Leverage

Urcer the A FM Directive, it 18 necessary for Alrs
to tiscloze therr leverage in asocraance with
presenbed caloulaticns

Altnoug~ leverage 1s often Lsed as anothar term for
gearing, under the AIFMD leverage is specifieally d=tined
Twiotypes of leverage caiculations are defined; the gross
arc.ommitment methods Thess methods summarnly
press leverage as aratio of tre exposars of tre A F
aganst its nel aszet value Exposuce tymeally voludes
rent the value of any phvsral properfies .0
martagage, non-Ste-hrg curenoy, equity or curren
regging at anscolute roticnal valuey reven trose hald

onetenittotos ¢

) =t

kale N eIstcIiiltal:)
serlvatiie st L ments whils e gross methon

aggragates team

Tr=1tg
lirrnt ard e -

LSTERETTT TS

Lompoary as

ar 21 Marie 2i

Maxmum permitted hmit . QOO% 200%
Actual 136% 178%
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This notice is important and requires your
immediate attention

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take
you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdom, or if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accompanying documents to the purchaser, or
transferee, or 1o the person who arranged the sale
or transfer so they can pass these documents to the
person who now holds the shares.

Notice 15 hereby green thal the An~ual Gereral FAeeting
at TR Broperty IMvestment Trust ple ithe Company v
be -~elg at -2 Royal Automaotile Club, 89,91 Palt Mall,
Laondon SW1Y 5HS on Tuesday 26 July 2022 at 2 30ormr
for the purpose of transacting the following bus

Tocens'cer a~d, ™ thought fit, pass the tollawing
Fesclutions, of which Resolltions T 1o 10 will be
aroo0sed as Oromary Resolutions a~d Rasolitors 1
ard 17 s~all be proposea as Special Resolatics

1 Toareos
Adrited AL ounts forthe vear 2noed 31 Ma-o- 200

120 the Report of the Directors and the

2 Taaoooiethe Directory Remureratic Heport

vt a~ the part cortarog the Directo s’

e

]

\

- Rl Telal i g e -
Tz Compan; ool cifce urhilthe o -
med e a Gersal Meeting of the Dornan

E Trogto

e

Special business

Ordinary resclution

10 THAT 1 suostitonae Sar gl s Lok 2x
tre dreltors e gere
AuUnGrs
Sectien

SFthe Dompanies ATt 200 .
eall tme auveers o tne Comoany tu allot

Ctreomoany aod to gract aghts to

SNare

sobsonice tor arte on.ert a0y selunty 170 shatEs
I e Corm2any up b ancminal valus oF £251%1 155

(heanq apnroxirmiataty 3375 0f the total 1SSueC 57are
capital of the Coumpany as at tre latest pracucable
date pricr to pLblicatior of t1s Noticed aroaded

tnat tris autronty s-all expire at the date of the next
eral Mesting of tre Cuomoany (ur 1* 2arhier
of ausiress oo 25 Octooss 2023) save
lomoany shalt be 2-titles to maxce gFfers o7
ny ot s aathenty which

st e allottee orngrts

AnTua
at the :
trat tre
agreem2nts b
sLlsormignt rooLrs S
o oe grantea atts
= 2ntit]s

v and tne Jirentars shgll
rantrights oursLant

ts a1t tres aut—onty

Special resolutions

17T THAT 1n 5 bt for
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=rer] parsart
S beallst

AllFLin s lng autrann2s




Arrogal Serort 4

(L) 10 the case of the authonity aranted under
Resciution 10 andysor i the nase of any sale
of treasury snares for cash, to the alletment
fotreryase tnar under paragraph 1) abovel
of equity securities o- sale of treasu -y sharas

o toa nominal amount of £3,966 887 (oenyg
rm:)rom”matelv 5% of the total 1ssued shae
capital of the Company as at the latest
praf.;ncable aale pnor to publicabon of the
rotice of mesting),

The gawer given by this resolution snall axore Lpon
the expiry of the authority conferred by Resolution

10 above, save that the Company shall be entitlea to
make o'fers or agreements before the expiry of such
power wnich would or might require equity secunties
to be allotted after such exoiry and the Directors shall
pe entitled to allot eauty secunties DarsLart to any
sueh offer gr agreement asif the power conferred
hereby Fad not exprred

THAT the Company De ancis nereoy generally and
sneonditionally authorisedir accordance vtk
Section 701 of tne Act to make one or mare market
purchases fwitnin the meanirg of Secticn 623(4) of
me Act) of Ordinary shares of 25p each 1n the Lapml
of the Company on such terms ard in such manner
44 the Directors may from time 1o tme determine

provided that

{a} the maximum number of Ordinary sbares ~e-aby
authorised to be purchased srafl be 14 597 o
the Company's Ordinaty shares i 15sue 4t 11e
tate of the Annual Gene-al Maeting feaurialent
10 47,570,911 Ordinary shares o* 2ap eacr at
13 June 2022, the latest practicable date pror
to publication of this Notee),;

1) the masarmum price {exclusive 0f exo :
werien ndy be st for any saeh 21are shal \ rot
D& more a0 tog higher of

nd o 105% of the ayerage of the rmicole markat
quotators for an urdmdw sha'e 45 taxen
fromithe cordon Stock Excharge Daily
Gfficial L'st fr)r e fve bosiness days
rnmeatiately preceding the cate o e
tne Company agrees o ouy the s-ares
~oreeed and
0 the g-es of tre price of tneigst
Inftepengent trade and tre highest
ncepandent bia for an Ordina~y shamen the
Company onthe traditg rerus vihors toe
aurchane s carned out at the relevan
trme, and

Ut

ryLnts T

1 the minimum prce fexclusive of expensest whiee

may be paid forar Jrdinany shase shall be 25p,
bemg the ~omimnal L alue pes Ordirasy share

The autnonty ~ereby o ferrad shall expire g
the onclasion of the Aqnual General I‘Ae‘—"tm(*
the Comoary i 2623 Jor it earlier, at the close
Cpusieass on Y5 Dctoner 2043) save that the
Cumparw f‘hmll agenttlad 1o erter 1nto a confra ot
to purchass Drdinary srases s h yvall, o0 may, oe
conpleted or oxenuted sholly or partly after 1-=
power expires and the Company may puchase
Orcinury snares pursaant 10 s.eh contrast as o the
a0veer corferred herehby had

not expired
%mm Lattan

ol

By Order of the Bovard

Registerad Dffice:

Company registered in =~gland ard Walas
Company number Ba457
13 Woodstock Street
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Whilst COVID-19 restrictions have been lifted as

at the date of this Notice of AGM and it is currently
anticipated that shareholders will be permitted to
attend and vote in person at the meeting, the COVID-19
situation continues to evolve and the UK Government
may introduce new restrictions or implement measures
relating to the holding of shareholder meetings which
may mean this is no longer possible. Therefore,
sharehclders are encouraged to appoint the Chairman
of the meeting as their proxy for the AGM. If any

ather person is appointed as proxy and COVID-19
restrictions are introduced which affect the holding of
the meeting, that proxy may not be permitted to attend
the AGM. Any changes to the arrangements for the
AGM will be communicated to shareholders prior to the
meeting, including threugh the Company's website, at
www.trproperty.com and by announcement through a
regulatory information service.

Sharehclders intending to attend the AGM are

asked to register their intention as soon as practicable
by email to the following dedicated address:
trpitagm@bmogam.com.

Shareholders who are not able or do not wish to attend
the meeting in person will be able to watch a live
webcast of the meeting. This will include the formal
business of the meeting, the Manager's presentation
and questions and answers. The webcast will not
enable shareholders to participate in the meeting or
to vote. However, shareholders will be invited to
submit questions through our website, by 12.00 noon
on 22 July 2022, Questions of a very similar nature
may be grouped together to ensure the orderly running
of the AGM.
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Tt

ANy corporation woich 1s a member of te
Jampany can dppoint one o7 maore narporats
representatives who may exercise onits hehall all
of its powers as a member provided that they du
not Go s0 11 relation to the same shures

The gt to appoint a proxy does nat apply to
persons wnose shares ate neld on ther aenal® oy
arother oorscn and who have beer rominat=d

0 recelye corrmnanication fom tne Comonany
inaccordance with Sectior 146 of the At
(Nominated Persons’) Norminated Persons may
have a right under ar agreement with tne ~egisterad
shareholder who holds shares on their pehalf te be
appoirted (or 10 nave someone else appointed) as
aproxy Alternatively, if nominated persons do rot
have such anght, or do not wish to exercise 1t tney
may have a night under such anagreemert to give
Instructions to the persen holding the shares as to
the exercise of voting nghis

CREST members who wist 1o appont a proxy
o7 oroxies through the CREST electronic proxy
appoirtment service may do o for tne AGM 1o
be held on 26 July 2022 and any adjournment(s)
thereof by using the procedu-es descibed in the
CREST Manual CREST personal members or oimear
CREST sponso=d members, and those CREST
members whe have anpointed a volirg servize
orovider should refer to tneir SRS T sponsors
or veting sevice providen s), who will ne aole 1o
ta<e the approonate zcticn on therr e-alf
order for a oroxy apocintment ormstruction made
by means of CR=ST to be vald, the anoropnate
CREST message (@ CREST Proxy Instruotion)
must De properly guthenticated ir accordarse $tn
E.roclear UK & lreland | imited's specifications ard
ust contam the information required for ;.20
netructiors as descnbed im the CREST Magrial
Ihe message must be transmittes 5o as o oo
ecelved by the Company's agent, Compotaong e
Irvestor Seryices PLO (LRFST Partimipant B
ZRASDY No Jater than 28 hours pofore toa hme
apooirted for tne mzetirg =or this pupos= e
time of receipt witl De taken 1o be e me
determinec by tre ime starmo apahan 1o the
2ssage by tne CREST \DD|HEdUOﬂ Host trom
v fﬂu" the Comouny's dagent 15 able 1o in—. e
the message by enou y 1o CREST in e moanse
prascnbed by CRESH

A

CREST memoers and, where apphrable thes
ST 2nonscs or wohing serdacs oreaider 2rould
~otethat b oo r"\@')r\ K & Trelara Lirmitec does rot
MNake avanlable sperial orocecures 1o CHEST for
any p;iw’t\!‘;u\d' me:m:g;.;,

caryort ¥

Noral systert trmirgs ana imitations vall there®nre
apply In “elation to the nout of CREST Proxy
Instruehions s tee resoorsiolity of (e CREST
Mmermnoer corcernad 1 ta<e ror 1f the CREST member
15 a CREST personal memaoer 07 gponsored member
Orhas annoirted a Jotrg cervice provider, to proce
trnat his oo her SREST sporsor or veting sarvine
orovider ta<es, such achan as shall be recessary
By ensyr2 irat amessage 15 fransmitted by mears
nf e LAEST a',atem by ary particulas time in a3
=ST members and, wroerz anphoablz,
their CREST spansor or voting service provider

are referred m paticular 1o tnose sections of the
CAREST Manuat concerning practsal imutations of
tne SReEST systern ard tmings The Company may
teeat as invaha a CREST Praxy Instruction in the
mircumstarces set outir Regulatior 3505)a) of the
Unecertificater Securt 23 Regulations 2001
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

S Kembers satisfying the thresholds in serti o 335
of the ACt may "eg.me tre Company 1o giee Lo
meatribers ¢f the Company entitted (o etaie ~uh -
of tne AGY notice of a esclutic weirh thass
members ~tend to maove ranc wnich may orooely
be moved) at t~e AGM A esolutinn may orode’ly og
rnoved at tre AGW unless

Hotwould it passed, be ineffective iwretb s
reasor of any INeonsSIsiency with ary eng
ar the Comzany's constitutior or othersse)

yoits aefamatary of any persor; or
(s ats frivelous o wexatious

Arecaest Mmace oursuatt 1o this gnt may be in narg
cuny or electrorc form, must identfy tne resol e -
SPiLr notine s to e grier, must be aut~s

the personis) makimgat and must be re ;
company Tot later than six weeks 0802 e aate of
e AGN

rtcates o,

s By T

10 Menbers satisfying tne thresholds in sechio~ 345
of tne Act may req.est tre Compary tGiriburis
e Dasingss te oo dealt witr at the AGM any mate -
iot-er than g prouesan resolution) whie - mug,
proce-ly oo ircluces inthe busi~e t
Amuatter may grooerly g ohodzd in e
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2, and 3: Accounts,
Directors' remuneration report

and dividend

These are the esolubians which deal with the
presentation of the audited accounts, the aporuwal
ofthe Drrectors’ Remunaration Reno-t a~a the
declaration of the final divigend

The vote to approve the Remuneration Repost s
advisary anly and will not require the Company to
alter any arrangements detailed in the repart shoule
tne resolatio™ not ne passed

T'ne Board is proposing a final dividend for the year
ended 31 Marcn 2022 of 9 20p per Qrdinary share
fapproved at the AGM . the Company will pay the
cividerd on 2 August 2022 to thase shareholders on
the Company’s Register of mempers at the Llose

of business on 24 June 20Z2,

Resolutions 4 to 7: Re-election

of Directors

Tnese resolutions deal with tha re-election of Kate
Bolsover, Sgran-zare Curtis, Tim Gillbanks and
David Watson In accordance with tne UK (orporate
Governance Code, all Directors retire an a1 annual
nasis and have canfirmed that they vl offer
themselves for re election

Aperformance evaluation nas been completes a~d

your Beard nas determired that eack of toe Directors

continues to oe effective and demonstrates ther-
camTtment to ther role

Tner biographical details wnicn are set out gn
pages 40 and 41, demonstrate tnat tne 3oarc
ras the appropniate balance of skills, experience
ndependeance and <nowledge (o lzad the Sempany
Accordingly. the 2oard urarimovsly recormmerds
telr re election

Resolutions 8 and 9 Auditor

Trege deal witn ne =anpamtment of the A Loitar
KPMG 1P ard the authonsaticon forthe Drreotars (o
CETSITIre el rernLneration

Resolution 10: Allotment of share capital
Oor doarg corsidars it ansnepnate trat ar authonty
be granted 1o allet srares v the capital of the
Comnary up to a maximo ~ominal amolst of
F261817 44015 stated 1n tre resclution (representing
approximately ona third of tha Company's 1ssued
share capital as a7 13 Jore 20272, being the laiest
practical date pnorta poblizaton o this Notine of e
rmeetingt A

Lsoat e date ¢t this notire the Company
aoes not Fold any snares i treasary

The Directoss Fave no presert intention of exercising
this authonity and wolld arly expect to use the
autronty 1f shares ~oulo ceisseed at o at a

prermium to, the Net Asset Value pe-share

11z actronty will expire at the earhier of close of
busimess on 25 Octaber V023 and the coralusion of
e Arneal Genesal Meetirg of the Tomoany (o e
helrin 20023

Resolution 11. Disapplication

of statutory pre-emption rights

This resolubon would grvs the Directors the aathonty
to wllot shares (or sell any shares which the Comoary
elects to hold in treasury} for cash without first
offering then to existi~g skarcholders in proporticn
to tre existing shareholdings

Trig autronty woold be brnited to allotments or sules
N oo non it 002 emotive 0ffers and offers to
nalmers of ot-er equity sennnties if recured by e
shares or g3 the hoard othernwisa
2T5ary, Or OthenwIse un to an ag4g
~ominal amount of E3568 237 This agoregate
~omIral amount represents 3% of toe total msued
share capral of “he Company as at 13 June 2022,
the latast prati-aole date paos to 2ublication of this
Notce Inrespe b of this uogregate nomisal amont
tha Diractars confirm tnainimtation 1o follow the
proasnns of 102 Pre cmphics GroLp's statamentof
D5 TegardiTg a0 of Autronites
LItRm a roling Beess e tre Prneiples
Do e tnat wiage 17 evees s of 7570 sroulc not Lake

rgnes of tnos:

:)ate

Comiglatiee

plane pathogt oo Lona_ltation wate soaerold=re

Irc astnc sty vail expire ut the carhar of close of
mer 20T and ing Lonclaniss of

Aretimg Lot Company 10 o=

MIIAIBAY

uodai ojbajens

FIUBUIIADG

SUAWIE)S [RIDUBLIY

aInsojasip AW4IY pue Aessopn

WOV jo 30N

UOIIELLIOJUI JaPIOYIRYS




Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 12: Authority to make
market purchases of the Company’s
Ordinary shares

Jthe AGRN ~oldin 2021 a speoial resolubion was
passec which gave Ime Jirectors autronty urtl tre
corolusion of the AGM 1 2022 to make market
purcrases of the Comoany's 2wnisgaed shares L0 to a
Mo 0 141387 of the issued share zapital

Your 30ard 15 proposing that they shadld be give
reqewes authority to purchase the Compary's ")T‘”ilha"‘v'
sha-gs i the market Your Board beheveas t-at to make
such purchases in the marxet at appropnate times and
orices is 9 %unab\ﬂ method ¢f enbarairg snarcholide
value The Company wouta, withir guigehnes set

from time t@ time by the Boar, make either 3 si-gle
purchase or a serss of purcnases whan maket
editiors are suitasle vath tre arn of nakimisirg e

senef ta to sharsholders.

DEID e
shate 171 wlbennar o2

Vihere puronases are mada at pnces

pravalling Net Assat Val Le per
the et Asset Val.e fo the 2maring sharesald
~erefors Dur-*h'am #GalC orly he mate at prces
aelow Net Azset Value Your Board congidears that i
vl be most advantagesus 10 snarenulders i the
Company o e anle to maxe .ok purcranss 3T 303
e onSiIder e T 0 fg oo rasls ara
atimetanls for

tharafore aose not propose o se

Td<Irng any ST o shasey

W Bhares o Trean

CompaniET T s

Tr= Compar=s A

FRagUlaticre

o Of

ey barepuroT
=saleat g Lt e date ca10e
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Sl as thps Fortmis regson the Comoaany 1s miting
1Tyt Mske sLoh porohases to 14 995 of
25 I 15400 At the date
‘jfd\rﬂr"‘
ITge m‘ /5p sar-incmimal val.e 11,332 72 at
12 June 2022, rhe latest ;:uracﬂcaale Jate prior to
oubdimation this Notice T-e acteonty wall last Lntil
fre Ann e d| Mc@t\"q of tne L Ompaﬂv o be
held in 2025 ar f earlien, at tne close o business or
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Directors and other information

Directors

P viargon (17oa rman)
K Balzo, e

Sl TurhE

T aillbanks

Sharnscr

Registered office
ko strect

127000810

ondar

Wil DA

Registered number
egistared as am ineastTen Sompary i
Fagland andWalos Ne 84492

AlFM and Company Secretary
ShATimes e nt Pyt nogs omired

fr~ras
S ardion

S I

Portfolio Manager
Tharmes ReJerd apita- i anihor

and-egalatecty the o ransahooroe

Fund Manager

A PRI ot ol
Finance Manager and
Investor Relations

R R R

Deputy Fund Manager

e

Direct Property Manager

]
The Association of
Investment Companies

Registrar

Seorehcloors o

cerlhcated fnrrn can shegs 1oor v oldirgs

YLl et s Onone Lomputeshary

Yol Ineead s rglaer referars s ~umnr

zarzdontha ool

smarecartifogs

Auditor

<P

| Zrdon
Fidso.

Stockbrokers
[EEtateal T B O N

Solicitors
W
r r—: e -

Depositary, custodian and fund
administrator

Website

Tax advisers

oy
-



General Shareholder information

Announcement of resuits
The hal® yeur esults are annouraad n late Novemiber

Tre full year results are annaunced in early Juna

Annual general meeting
The AGM ‘s hald i= London in July

Dividend payment dates
Niadends are Lsually pai 07 the Jrdimary srares

as follows

Interim Jaruary
Final August

Dividend payments

Dradends can pe paid 1o s~areholders by means of
BACS (Barkers' Automated Cleanng Services) mandate
forms for this purpose are avallable from (re Registrar
Allernatively, shareholders can wnite to tne Registrar
ithe addressis giver o1 Dage 114 of thig report) to qive
thar inst-uctions; these must include the ban< account
numbe- the bank account title and the sort code o* the
banx to wrich payments are 1o pe made

Dividend re-investment plan ( DRIP'}

TR Property Investiment Trust ol offers shareholders
tre opportunity to parchase further snares e the
Lompany though the DRIF Blease rote that foilowing
Brexit sharenoldars in ELrope are ng longe able 1
parhcicate ir the ORIP DRIF forns may be ontainec
frumn Computersnare nyvestor Services 210 frough their
sucure wepsie www Investorcentre oo < or o 07350
707 1694 Charges aoplyidealing commission of 0 757%
subjsct toa mimimam of £2 50) Governmmeant stamo
daty o 0 57, also apples

Snare price listings

The astimates Net Asset Value a~d market gring of t-e

i

Company's Oramary shares, as weall as the aisoont
oremidrm are pubhshens daily 1o The <inancial Times
200 als0 o tound on the Companys webaite at
cowey frprona -ty com

Share pare information

SEDOL 459004045
Ploombe-g

TRY NRellers
Ty _

Datastream TRY

AN LR Dort S Tanny e

Benchmark

Details af the berchmark are givan im tre Strategic
Report on page 22 of this Report a~d Accouts
Tre penchmark index s puolished daily and can
oe found on Bloomberg:

“TSE EPRA NAREIT Developec Europe Capped het Toral
Return Indexin Sterling
Blcomoerg TRORALG ndex

Disability Act

Coples of tus Report and Aczounts ard other
gocuments issaed by 1re Dompany are avallahble from
the Company Secretary If needed. copies car be made
availzble in a vanety of formats. incluading Sradle, audio
tape or larger tvpe as approonate

Youcan contact tre Registrar, Computershare Investor
Services =1 C, which has mstalled texiphones to allow
speech and hean~q 1impaired peoole who rave their own
textonon:2 t¢ contact trem directly, without the need
for an intermediate operator, py diathing D870 702 0005
Sperially traired coerators are avallable durng no-mal
AUSITESS hou s 1o answer qaeres via this service
Alternatively 1f you prefer to go through a ‘typetal<’
operator (provided by the Royal National Institute for
Dea’ Peoplel you snould cial 18007 followed oy tre
number yoL wish 1o dial

MBIASIAD

yodai yfajeng

SHIBWIBIRIS |eIoUBUl4 BIUBUIBADLD)

aInsojas|p QW4|Y pue Alessolg

WOV JoadioN

UONBULIOHS SPIOUBIBS




General Shareholder information
continued

Nominee share code

Vo here notification has been provided in advance,

the Compary will arrange for cones of snaranoloer

communizationrs to be provices to the goeratars o

romiCee accounis Nomines Investars may att21aq

(‘;ﬂe'd\ TMeetings and speak at meetirgs viher
stec o oo so by tne Crarman

CGT base cost

Taxation of capital gains for sharehelders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Uaon a disposal ot all or pa-t of a shavzholders
holding of Ordinary shares, the mparct on the
shareholder’s caoital gans tax base cost of tha
SONVErsIon 1o Sig-ma shares in 2007 and the
redesignanon to Qrainasy shares in 2012 sheuld
be consigerad

pect of the nonversion to Sigma - 2007
ent wias f&«a-"‘ dwith HM leevela &
s THMRE S T bas‘e the apportvmmm
ital gairss tax base cost o7 tne aroparioen
of Ordinary snares that were consertac Oy
sharenolder into S'grma shares on 25 July 2307

i~erzfore Fan Orci-ary sharebalder convarted 207
t%\ w/|5t|r~g Ore \"a’y Snates 171 SIgE 3nare s
or Ta gy 2007, the capital gars
Ih= e Bigma 57 are
0% ol tre ongimal maotal gar
arestratthey 2 3T
Pee nase cont of tne 'Ffmmng nolaing of Groran,
rares solld tres be 207 of the onginal Saoital

s Ordinany srates Tl

ArEry 3
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

Tre ghares of TR Property investment Trast ple are
hsted and traced cn the Lonaon Stock fxchange
rvestors may purchase snares through ther
stockbroker, nank or other fnarcial intereciar,.

Holding shares in certificated form

[nvesiers may mrd their investment in certificated form
Dar regist-as Computerahare operate 4 dealing servioe
warch enabiles 1nvestors to bay and sell shames quickly
anc easily arline watnout a oroxer or the need to open a
tracing account Alternatively the Investor Centre alloves
investors to manage portfolios quickly and securely
Joeate detalls and view balances without annual
charges Further cetads are availlable by contacting
Computershars on Q270 707 1355 o wisit www
comautershare com

TR Broperty ‘nuestmert Trust olc now offers

shareholders tre gpportanity to purchase furtner shares
In the company through the Dwuaend Re imvestment
Plan {DRIPY thro.gh the registras, Computershare
Shareholders can obtan further mformanc.ﬂ- o e DRIP
trough therr secure website www investarcentre co uk
or by phoning 0370 707 1694 Charges do apply Please
note that 1o gam aceess to your details or register for the
ORIF or toe Comaotershare site you vl neec the halde-
reference rumber stated on tne top left Fang ~orer of
your share certficate,

Saving schemes I3As and cther plans
Anumoer of banks and wealth managemeart
crganisations provide Savings Schemes and SAS
trroucn wrih LW Chents canimyestin TR Property
Investrment Tust oln

IS4 ard sasirgs sohema provicers co charge dealing
Jr\d otrer fees for oo ah™g the ausounts, and Investong

snould read t~e Terms ana Cardincns provided by trese
~omiparies and ecsare tnal the o barges best suit ther”
plannec irvestreen profle Vost schemes carry ann JF
Jharges but trase sary artwesr proveder and produ
Wirare dealing charges aoply 10 some tases thess are
E .mhc-.-d a3 mDercentage o fu CE INvESTed Aand others as
g flat charge, T'we aptirnurn way to hold the shares will e
citforent for eaon i motor depending Loon e fregaenoy
and size o investmerts to be mane
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Srgras it TR Sropecty Inysstment Tryst £t there
Ar=nan, ctrer aohioes

/“‘rrw'-‘ (e fl )-* 'l - _‘f---.rl"- S

interactive investor (i)

Irterachive 1mvestar provits and admeists” g range o
self aolent investmant plams i ladirg focads infaged
ISAs anc SiPPs Snlf o Parsncal Penapai 40
Trachng Accounts For Mo 1mfar D IEErn ot e
Irvestor can be contacted or 95 607 001 ar by
GISITING W L0 LR

nterastive Investor affer meastors in [ Pronerty aoed
other mvestmer‘t tusts a frea antin earhine Saarerolder

voting ard informe
recens snare mMer c':omm\m;’zanc-rw';; a~d it ney wis™ 1o
vote on the share~oldings neld 1 ther acoourt

e that ergoles 1nsestn s e

TR Property is alsu or the irteraltive supe” b rated st
BMOQ Asset Management Limited ('BMO’)
BMD offer a number of Priate nyesior Plang, - sestrment
Trast and unier 1SAs ana Child-ens Inastmant Plans
‘nyvestmerts —ar e made as lLmp sums o trrc.ugh
reg.lar savings For mors mtormation ses inside tre Satk
cover BMO can ne cortactes on 0800 136 420, ar a3t
v BIogam.ooim

Please remember that the .af.e of your 17 sestments and
any ircome from them may ¢o down as well as us ~ast
performance 13 rot a goarde to fub.re wrformw‘r:e hEsH
may nNot get nack the ama.at that vou
any coubt a5 totha sutasiity o™ an \-JP o7 anyinyestmeant
avallable vathir a plan, pleass ta<e profassin-al an

mrest b you are 1n

Saving Schemes and ISAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings (ATS'} BNP Paribas
Following tre acausitior 5t alliamoe Trost 5q4476% Dy

ooy

Mteractive 1mvestor ATS aeir-Clrelted oo e
trans*erred to the nteralti e in 2t plat’
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust pic
continued

Share fraud and boiler room scams
Sharcnolcers » 4 nurnber of vestnent T-usts nave
been approachec as part ¢f a s~a-e fraug whera thay
areirformed of an oppe-tunity to sell tner- sharaes as tne
SGMPAnyY 18 sugject to a takeover tid This s rot t-ug and
15 an artemipt to ge‘raud starehclgers The srare fraun
also oeeks paymert of a commissian by a-areholoars e
tne Dasfes carmyi™g out the fraud

Srgrebolders snould cernam alett to s type of scam
ana treat with suspicicn any contant by telephone
offerirg an att-active investment opporturity, s.oh

as a oremium orice for your shares or a- attempt to
Convince you that payvment 1s required in order to elease
asettlement for vour shares These fraucs may also offer
to sell vour shares in comparies which have hittle ar nc
cAlue or may offer vo L honus snares These so callen
botlar room’ ccams a7 alsoimeol e an attempt to abtar
voLr personalard. o sankirg informatin - vtk wbich e
ommitice ity frasd

The zalles may e fnendly and reassaring oo trey rnay
la<e a mors urgent tona, ercourdaging you 1o act auickly
> y0u Tould luse marey ar miss out on a deal

I*you~ave been 2ontacted B, an Lnauthorises
egatditg yeLr shares tra FOA wolld ke 1o hea”
o au Yoo can eport an whsutboneed 1 rmousing
th— FCA raiphiee on G200 171 BT by wistrg tner”

i~tarmatinT,
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How to invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc

is through one of the savings plans run by BMO.

BMO iSA

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the current tax
year with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from £25
amonth. You can also transfer any existing ISAs to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits

BMO Junior ISA (JISA)*

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 fump sum o
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BMO Lifetime ISA (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life. Invest
up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 or regular savings from £25 a month,

BMO Child Trust Fund (CTF)*

if your child already has a CTF you can invest up to £9,000
per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a month CTFs
with other providers can be transferred to 8MO.

B8MO General Investment Account (GIA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
investments can be made from £100 lump sum or

£25 a month.

BMO Junior Investment AccounT {JIA)

This is a flexible way ta save for a child in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and the plan can
easily be set up under bare trust {where the chiid is noted as

the beneficial owner) or kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investment. investments can be made from a
£100 lump sum or £25 a menth per account. You can aiso make
additional lump sum top-ups at any time from £100 per account

* The CTF ard JISA accounts are opened by parents n tne child's name and
they have accessto the money atage 18

** Calls may be recorded or monirerag for tra ning and gually purposes.

COLUMBIA
BMO 9 saror a4 THREADNEEDLE

INVESTMENTS

© 2022 BMO Global Asse: Management. SMO Gicba Asset Managemen:

s aregistered trading name for varows affiliated entit'es of BMQ Giobal

Asset Management (EMEA] that provice investment management Services,
‘nstitutional c'ent services and securrties products Fnancial promctions are
ssued for markeung ang informauan purposes; in the Lniled Kingcorn by

3MO Asset Managernent Limted, which s authonsed and regulated by the
Finencial Conduc: Author Ty This entity 1§ 8 wholly cwned subsidiary of Colurmbia
I hreadneedle nvestments UK International Limited, whose direc: parent 1s
Amerprse Inc., a company incorporated ‘nthe United Siates. It was formerly par:
of BMO Financia: Group and :s current'y using the "BMO® mark ander icence.
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New customers

Existing plan holders
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HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre
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TR Property investment
Trust plc is managed by
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